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Chairman’s Statement
EREHE

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board” or “Directors”) of China
Healthwise Holdings Limited (the “Company”] and its subsidiaries
[fogether the “Group”], | present to you the annual results of the
Company and the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022.

CORPORATE INFORMATION

The principal place of business of the Company in Hong Kong is Unit
1209, Shun Tak Centre, West Tower, 168-200 Connaught Road
Cenfral, Hong Kong and the telephone and facsimile numbers of the

Company are (852) 2268 8248 and (852) 2548 5575.

RESULTS

The Company hereby announces its annual results for the year ended
31 December 2022 (the “Reporting Year” or “FY22"). For the Reporting
Year, the Group's turnover decreased by approximately [“approx.”)
16% to approx. HK$142 million, compared with approx. HK$170
million for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the "FY21" or

"Corresponding Year").

Gross profit margin for the Reporting Year was approx. 37% compared
to approx. 54% in the Corresponding Year. Overall, loss affributable to
owners of the Company was approx. HK$54 million compared with
HK$103 million in the Corresponding Year. The Directors do not
recommend the payment of any dividend for the year ended 31

December 2022 (FY21: Nil).
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Chairman’s Statement
EREHE

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the Reporting Year, revenue decreased due fo the net effect of (1)
the decrease in revenue from the investment in financial instrument
segment from gain of approx. HK$34 million in FY21 to loss of approx.
HK$ 1 million in the Reporting Year; (2) the increase in revenue from the
Chinese health product segment from approx. HK$ 114 million in FY21
to approx. HK$128 million in the Reporting Year; and (3] the decrease
in revenue from the money lending segment from approx. HK$22 million
in FY21 to approx. HK$ 15 million in the Reporting Year.

The Group recorded a decrease in loss for the year ended 31
December 2022 as compared fo the year ended 31 December 2021.
The decrease in loss was mainly due to decrease in the impairment loss
recognised during the year in respect of loan receivables from approx.
HK$103 million in FY21 1o approx. HK$25 million in FY22, which has
been partially offset by the net realised and unrealised losses on
investment in financial instruments of approx. HK$16 million for FY22,
as compared fo the net realised and unrealised gains on investment in
financial instruments of approx. HK$ 18 million for FY21.

Chinese Health Products

Chinese health products business engaged in the sales of Chinese and
other pharmaceutical products, health products, ginseng and dried
seafood products to wholesaler and retailer. Nam Pei Hong Sum Yung
Drugs Company Llimited, one of our subsidiaries, engages in the
business of trading and retail of “Sum Yung” () and dried seafood
products since 1977 and the brand name of “Nam Pei Hong" (F1t4T)
is highly recognised in Hong Kong and Southern Mainland China.

During the Reporting Year, this segment had contributed revenue of
approx. HK$128 million (FY21: HK$ 114 million) and segment profit of
approx. HK$2 million (FY21: loss of HK$O million). As at 31 December
2022, there were 10 (31 December 2021:

Pei Hong.

10) retail shops of Nam

The increase in revenue contributed by the Chinese Health Products
during the Reporting Year was mainly attributable by (1] the
Consumption Vouchers Scheme launched and the relaxation of several
social distfancing measures by the Hong Kong Government which
stimulate spendings from the customers; and (2] increase in the revenue
contributed from online platform.

o] China Healthwise Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2022
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Chairman’s Statement
EREHE

Money Lending

During the Reporting Year, the Group’s money lending business
generated interest income on loans amounting to approx. HK$15
million (FY21: HK$22 million), and reported a segment loss (before
taxation) of approx. HK$30 million [FY21: HK$98 million). The
decrease in interest income was mainly because a loan with principal of
HK$35 million classified under stage 3 [creditimpaired) in the
Corresponding Year has commenced to generate interest income based
on its effective interest rate on its net carrying amount (after deducting
accumulated allowance of ECL) rather than the gross balance of the
loan during the Reporting Year. Despite the decrease in interest income,
the decrease in segment loss was mainly attributable to an approx.
HK$78 million decrease in allowance for ECL provided during FY22.
The decrease in allowance for ECL was mainly due to the fact that no
loan receivables were reclassified to stage 3 (creditimpaired), which
usually generates a high allowance for ECL, during the year.

During FY22, the Group granted two new loans in the aggregate
principal amount of approx. HK$9 million to two customers and
extended the final repayment date of three loans fo three customers in
the aggregate principal amount of approx. HK$30 million. The Group's
customers made drawings in the aggregate principal amount of approx.
HK$ 16 million from the existing and new loans and repaid approx.

HK$ 1 million to the Group.

At 31 December 2022, eleven (2021:

outstanding, in which (i) seven (2021: six) loan receivables with the

nine) loans remained

aggregate gross balance of approx. HK$118 million were classified
under stage 1 (initial recognition), (i) one (2021: Nil] loan receivable
with gross balance at approx. HK$33 million was classified under
stage 2 (significant increase in credit risk) and [iii) three loan receivables
with the aggregate gross balance of approx. HK$170 million (2021:
HK$ 169 million) were classified under stage 3 (credit impaired). During
the year ended 31 December 2022, one loan receivables with the
aggregate gross balance of approx. HK$33 million were re-classified
from stage 1 (initial recognition) to stage 2 [significant increase in credit
risk) as the interest payment pattern of this borrower was considered
unsatisfactory.

At the end of the Reporting Year, the Directors performed an impairment
assessment on the Group's loan receivables with reference to a
valuation prepared by an independent professional valuer. The valuation
measured impairment on loan receivables using the “expected credit
loss model” established by Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9
Financial Instruments.
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Chairman’s Statement
EREHE

Based on the valuation, a total of approx. HK$187 million [2021:
HK$162 million) allowance for ECL on loan receivables was made, an
approx. HK$25 million (2021: HK$ 103 million) increase compared to
that for FY21. Of the total allowance for ECL, approx. HK$5 million
[2021: HK$7 million) was recognised for loan receivables classified
under stage 1 (initial recognition), approx. HK$11 million was
recognised for loan receivables classified under stage 2 (significant
increase in credit risk) and approx. HK$ 170 million (2021: HK$155
million) was recognised for loan receivables classified under stage 3
[credit impaired).

At 31 December 2022, the Group's loan receivables, together with
accrued interest receivables (after accumulated allowance for ECL),
amounted to approx. HK$134 million (31 December 2021: approx.
HK$139 million).

Further information on the Group's money lending business, including (i)
business model, i) internal control system, [iii) basis of defermining the
allowance for ECL on loan receivables, (iv) major terms of each
outstanding loan receivables, and [v) actions taken for recovering the
loan receivables classified under stage 3 (creditimpaired) are disclosed
in note 37(a) to the consolidated financial statements.
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Chairman’s Statement
EREHE

Investment in Financial Instruments

During the Reporting Year, the Group's investment in financial instruments
business generated dividend income and realised gain on sale of
financial instruments amounting to net loss of approx. HK$1 million
(FY21: net gain of HK$34 million), and reported a segment loss before
taxation of approx. HK$ 18 million [FY21: segment profit before taxation
of HK$17 million) mainly including (i) a loss of approx. HK$15 million
(FY21: HK$15 million) arising on change in fair value of financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss; and |(ii] a realised loss of approx.
HK$1 million (FY21: realised gain of HK$34 million) by disposal of

certain listed equities.

Movements in the listed and unlisted equities held by the Group during
the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021 are as follows:

REEMIA
RBEEFE  AEERESRTAXRBEERE
WARHESRITAELCD R - BIEFHE

WrR—BBET(Z—REE: Ka F8E
=THAEET)  MERGHRMA D AERLY
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—TEtEEET)  TBEAERATFEFARE
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Audited Audited

RER LEZ

31 December 31 December

2022 2021

—E-—F —E-—F

+=A=+—-H +=ZA=+—H

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET BT

At beginning of year REH] 59,304 107,699
Acquisitions g 16,768 15,453
loss arising on change in fair value NPEEHELZER (15,325) (15,300)
Disposals HeE (3,434) (48,548)
At end of year REFER 57,313 59,304
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Chairman’s Statement
EREHE

Details of certain significant Hong Kong listed equities held by the R-ZT-—F+—-F=+—H AEEFEHZH

Group at 31 December 2022 are as follows: TEAEB EHRAFEBOT :
Fair value as
compared fo Fair value loss
the consolidated recognised
Costof Number of fotal assefs of during the
shares o shares held ot Fair value of the Group ot year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2022 2022 2022 2022 2022
R=%==% REE
T=A=t-H ZBIZE

R-B=2F R-B=ZF R=B-2f  AVERARE  tZA=t-H
+ZA=t-A2 tZA=t-B t=A=t-Rz RKeKEAEZ HEERRA

ReRE  BEZRGHA AYE ity ZAVEEE

Name of Hong Kong listed equities Principal activifies HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
ERLTRAEH TEEH TR T TR Téx
Huanxi Media Group Limited Media and enteriainment related businesses, including

[siock code: 1003) development ond invesiment in film and TV programmes righs,
BEEREEARAR" as wel as operation of an online video plafform.

[Huanxi Media Group Limited) BERRLEREE AL ERRETY REREINE

(B3R - 1003) IREBESEHETR 36,923 22,960 25,256 9% 7,001)

* (EHER
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Chairman’s Statement
EREHE

Details of certain significant Hong Kong listed equities held by the
Group at 31 December 2021 are as follows:

RIE-_—F+-_A=+—8 £K&EBE&EHEA2H
FERBBLMRAFHBOT :

Fair value as
compared fo Fair value loss
e consolidated recognised
Cost of Number of fotal asses of during the
shares cf shares held cf Fair value at the Group af year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December
2021 2021 2021 2021 2021
i REZE
tZA=t+-A S
RZFZ-%  RZFZ-F  RZFZ-F  AFEEARE TZAST-A
TZA=T-BZ tZA=t-H TZR=t-Bz HGAEEHEZ IHFEERR
BiaA  BEZRHEE LTE N ZRVEER
Name of Hong Kong listed equifies Principol activifies HK$'000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
EELTRAER IREH T TH TEL TER
Huanxi Media Group Limited Media and entertainment related businesses, including
[siock code: 1003) development ond invesiment in film and TV programmes righs,
HEEREEBRAR" as wel os operation of an online video plafform.
[Huanxi Media Group Limited) BERRLEREE ARLERRESY REREINE
(RAARSE : 1003) NREERRHATE - 35,963 22,260 31,387 10% (3,256

* EHEE

The Group had made investments with a short fo long term perspective
with the objective of making capital gain as well as income from
dividend. The Group invested in a diversified portfolio of listed equity
securities in various industries. The directors believe that the future
performance of the Hong Kong listed equities held by the Group is
largely affected by economic factors, investor senfiment, demand and
supply balance of an investee company’s shares and fundamentals of
an investee company, such as investee company’s news, business
fundamentals and development, financial performance and future
prospects. Accordingly, the directors closely monitor the above factors,
particularly the fundamentals of each individual investee company in the
Group's equity portfolio, and proactively adjust the Group's equity
portfolio mix in order to improve its performance.

ARFEHEHEGERRIRE  EERIELRNK
m R BN - AEBRERZEITE EHBRA
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Chairman’s Statement
EREHE

PLANS AND PROSPECTS
Chinese Health Products

In view of the increasing awareness in health and the aging of
population in Hong Kong, demand for health care products, especially
Chinese medicine, “Sum Yung” ( 2 & )and dried seafood in Hong
Kong has grown steadily in recent years. The Group will also strengthen
the promotion on health care products, such as cordyceps sinensis (%
#|EE), ginseng (A2), tiangi (H+), and dendrobium nobile (‘A
1) efc. In order to cope with the rapaid pare of life of modem people,
the Group also provides products like ginseng powder, energy drink,
probiofics capsules and ganodevma capsules.

Following the relaxation of the various COVID-19 related restrictions on
social distancing and cross-border activities, it is expected fo have a
positive impact and economic recovery on the retail market of Hong
Kong. To take advantage of the shift to online shopping since the
outbreak of COVID-19, the Group will continue to develop online sales
channels for our Chinese health products.

During the Reporting Year, our sales channel through online platform
"HKTVmall” reported a growth in tumover of over 20%. Due to the
COVID-19 pandemic, more people are concerned about their
healthcare and prevention from being infected. We concentrated on the
promotion of all types of healthcare products that can safeguard our
health and enhance immunity.

The Group also actively affracts corporate customers. During FY22, our
marketing campaign successfully attracted certain charitable
organisations and institutional customers fo order products such as anti-
epidemic fea bags, nutritions stew series and gift hampers.

In addition, we have added sales channels in China by setting up our
solely operated “Nam Pei Hong [FG3E1T) Overseas Flagship Shop” in
Tmall Global (RFEBIE ) with an expectation to create synergistic effect
by our online and offline sales platforms, so as to increase our turnover
and enhance the awareness of our brand in China.

12 China Healthwise Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2022
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Chairman’s Statement
EREHE

Money Lending

The Group's loan receivables together with accrued inferest receivables
decreased to approx. HK$134 million (31 December 2021: approx.
HK$ 139 million). Given the reopening of the border and the easing of
COVID-19 restrictions, Hong Kong is expected to have a rebound in ifs
economy in 2023. However, the Group expects the business
environment for money lending to be challenging and difficult because
of the tightening of the monetary policy in the United States of America
and the expected increase of Hong Kong Dollar interest rate in 2023.
The Group will closely monitor the repayment pattern of our customers
and formulate an action plan of recovery should the risk of default
increases. Our recovery strategy can involve a wide range of actions,
which includes the revising of repayment terms, adding of collaterals/
guarantees, reaching of setlement, the commencement of legal actions
against the custfomers, and/or enforcement on collaterals/guarantees,
efc. The Group will also be more cautious by strengthening its credit
policy and risk control policy.

Investment in financial instruments

The Group will closely monitor various factors such as global economy,
investment senfiment and fundamentals of investors and their future
prospects and protectively adjust our portfolio in order to improve our
performance. The Group will change our equity portfolio mix from fime
fo time and realise the equities held by the Group info cash as and
when appropriate.

Business Portfolio Management

The current business strategies of the Group with an aim to achieve the
best use of ifs resources and improve its overall performance and
portfolio diversification have been continuously evaluated. The Company
has been actively looking to diversify the revenue sources of the Group
in order fo creafe shareholders’ value through making investments and/
or acquiring business or projects that have promising outlooks and
prospects.
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Chairman’s Statement
EREHE

GROUP RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's cash and bank balances were
approx. HK$17 million (31 December 2021: HK$40 million). The
Group's total borrowings and convertible loan notes were approx.
HK$31 million (31 December 2021: HK$12 million) and approx.
HK$71 million {31 December 2021: approx. HK$72 million),
respectively. The convertible loan notes will be mature on 10 October
2024. Cearing ratio, calculated as the total borrowings and convertible
loan notes divided by shareholders’ equity was approx. 73% as at 31
December 2022 (31 December 2021: 44%). As at 31 December
2022, the Group recorded fotal current assets of approx. HK$275
million (31 December 2021: HK$202 million) and total current
liabilities of approx. HK$75 million (31 December 2021: HK$120
million). The current ratio of the Group, calculated by dividing the tofal
current assets by the current liabilities, was approx. 367% (31
December 2021: 168%). The Group recorded a decrease in
shareholders’ fund from approx. HK$193 million as at 31 December
2021 to a net asset position of approx. HK$139 million as at 31
December 2022. The decrease was mainly due fo the operating loss of
the Group during the Reporting Year.

EMPLOYEES

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had approx. 100 employees
and confract workers based in Hong Kong headquarters. The number of
employees of the Group varies from time to time depending on
operation needs and they are remunerated based on industry practices.

APPRECIATION

In conclusion, | would like to sincerely thank my fellow Board members
and senior management, and all the employees for their contribution
and dedications to the Group, which enabled us to overcome the
challenges encountered during the Year. My appreciafions go fo our
investors, customers, financiers and suppliers for their support to the
Group during the past year.

Lei Hong Wai

Chairman and Executive Director
28 March 2023
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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FINANCIAL REVIEW

During the Reporting Year, the Group recorded a decrease in revenue
for approx. 16% from approx. HK$170 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 to approx. HK$142 million for the year ended 31
December 2022. The decrease was due to the net effect of (1) the
decrease in revenue from the investment in financial instrument segment
from gain of approx. HK$34 million in FY21 to loss of approx. HK$ 1
million in the Reporting Year; (2) the increase in revenue from sales of
the Chinese health product segment from approx. HK$ 114 million in
FY21 to approx. HK$128 million in the Reporting Year; and (3] the
decrease in revenue from the money lending segment from approx.

HK$22 million in FY21 to approx. HK$ 15 million in the Reporting Year.

Cost of goods sold ("COGS") increased by approx. 13% compared to
FY21. The increase was mainly attributable to the corresponding
increase in revenue from sales of the Chinese health product segment as
mentioned above during the Reporting Year. The COGS were approx.
HK$89 million in FY22 compared with approx. HK$79 million in FY21.

The gross profit decreased to approx. HK$53 million for the Reporting
Year versus approx. HK$Q1 million in FY21. Gross profit margin
decreased to approx. 37% (FY21: 54%) mainly due fo the realised loss
of approx. HK$ 1 million (FY2021: gain of HK$34 million) from the

investment in financial instrument segment for the Reporting Year.

Other income, gains and losses, net for the year ended 31 December
2022 amounted to a loss of approx. HK$ 10 million (FY21: HK$15
million). Other income, gains and losses, net mainly included (1) fair
value loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
approx. HK$15 million (FY21: HK$15 million); and (2] government
grants of approx. HK$3 million in FY22 (FY21: Nil).

Selling and distribution expenses for the year ended 31 December
2022 decreased to approx. HK$29 million, representing a slight
decrease of approx. 6% against approx. HK$31 million in the
Corresponding Year. The slight decrease in selling and distribution
expenses was mainly due fo the decrease in promotion and advertising
expenses in the Reporting Year.

Bt 75 1o R

RFEFE  AEEHSRAREE S =-—F
T A=+ —HLEFEZH—EBETFEBLRLD
HNEDZTAREHE-_T-_—F+=-F=+—H
EFEZH— BT _EEET - 2R TIER
THREZFLEMY : (1) RESRITAS K
AR BMBRFEZERZH=THEES LR
ERBEFEZEBH—BEBIL (2HEP &
REGZOPBzZWAB - —GFBEEZH
— B THEEELENEREFEZH
—EBZFNB&EET RB)HESEBBRABRZ—
MRFEZHN_T_BE8FIRIEREFEZ
H—FTHREEBT

HERA(THERA DB - —MBRFREENNT
DZT= e RIEMEEANBEFEALW LA
RHE P ERE @D A2 WARLIE N - == FF
BERZHERANBN\TNLEEET  M=—
MBRFEEANNRETLAEELT -

ENH-_—FREEZONT-BEETELE
BEFEZHORLT=-A8BTL - REFEZEN
ERLENAEDZ2=TE(Z—MBEE - BHZ
) T2HRRESHTASHZEZEE
BOR—BEAT(C—MBEFE : Ra=THNA
BETI MK -

HE-_ -4+ -_F=+—BItFE  Hitlk
A RERGEFEABEY—TESL(Z—§
BREE: —TREEST) - A - WS RE
EFBIERERATFEFABSZERMEE
ZATEBBO-—TREESL(Z—UHHREE
—THBEBERL): RRZ-HRFEZBRFH
MEH=—"EEBT(Z—HMRFEE &)

BE-_Z-_—_F+-_A=1+-—HLFE #HEHEX
DEAZBIEN_THLEEBTL  RIEEFE
HN=F—BEBLBHMTRYBED 2N HER
DT ERMEAL  FERAARBEFEN
EERESEHAADAE -

RESEREERERAT T 4R 15



Management Discussion and Analysis
EHEMRR S

Gross Profit Ratio

ERNR

For the year ended 31 December 2022, 31 December

2021 and 31 December 2020, for the period from 1 April

2019 to 31 December 2019 and for the year ended 31

March 2019

REBE_F_—F+_H=+—H" #'_#‘ A

=t+—AR-E-FFS _HA=+—HILFE =N

@Cﬂﬁ HE-F-AF+_A=1— Eﬁ@’?ﬁ%&%ﬁi
—NEF=A=1—HILFE

—_=__

31 December 2022
—®-—&+-A=t—8

31 December2021
—2-—F+=A=t+-8 54%
31December 2020
—Bo2F+-A=1+-R
31 December 2019
—E-AF+ZA=1+-A

31 March 2019
—E-NF=A=t+-H

44%
46%

37%
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General and Administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December
2022 amounted to approx. HK$38 million, resulting in an increase of
1: HK$33
million). The general and administrative expenses increased by 15%

approx. 15% as compared with the previous period (FY2

because of the increase in employee costs (including directors’
emoluments) in FY22.

Finance costs incurred mainly for convertible loan notes and other
borrowings during the Reporting Year was approx. HK$7 million as
compared with approx. HK$6 million in FY21.

Impairment loss under the expected credit loss model provided for the
year decreased to approx. HK$25 million for the Reporting Year versus
approx. HK$ 103 million in FY21. The impairment loss mainly in relation
fo the loan receivables was recognised based on a valuation prepared
by an independent professional valuer. The impairment loss decreased
mainly because no new loan receivables were reclassified to stage 3
[creditimpaired), which usually generates a high allowance for ECL,
during the year.
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All'in all, the Group recorded a loss atfributable to shareholders of
approx. HK$54 million in the Reporting Year compared with approx.

HK$103 million in FY21.

General and administrative expenses/Revenue
—RRTHEX WA

For the year ended 31 December 2022, 31 December
2021 and 31 December 2020, for the period from 1 April
2019 to 31 December 2019 and for the year ended 31
March 2019
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GROUP RESOURCES AND LIQUIDITY

As at 31 December 2022, the non-current assets decreased approx.
88% to approx. HK$13 million compare with approx. HK$112 million
in the previous year. The decrease in non-current assets was mainly due 47
fo certain non-current loan receivables as at 31 December 2021 had

become current as at 31 December 2022.

BEmMS  AEERREFESSRREERERE
MATHBESAET MR- —MEFEASLD
—EE=E&ET

Finance Costs/Revenue
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Management placed much emphasis on inventory control and will
maintain a sufficient inventory level to match future demand and to confrol
cost of sales. The decrease in inventories of approx. 10% compared tfo
the Corresponding Year, value of inventories decrease from approx.
HK$61 million as af 31 December 2021 to approx. HK$55 million as
at 31 December 2022 to restore the normal inventory level for the
increasing demand in the Chinese New Year. Inventories turnover days
were 238 days compared with 280 days in the Corresponding Year.

Inventories

rE RERARE
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Total Liabilities

31 December 2022 55,121
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The trade receivables remained stable as at 31 December 2022 at
approx. HK$6 million, compared with approx. HK$6 million as at 31
December 2021. Debtor turnover days were 15 days in FY22
compared with 12 days in FY21. The Management regularly evaluates
the Group's customers, assesses their known financial position and the
credit risks.

Cash and bank balance as at 31 December 2022 were approx.
HK$17 million, compared with approx. HK$40 million as at 31
December 2021. The Group dealt with different revenue and
expenditure currencies during the Reporting Year such as HK$, US$ and
RMB.

Trade payables, other payable and accrued charges recorded a an
increase against the Corresponding Year. Trade payables, other
payables and accrued charges were approx. HK$36 million as at 31
December 2022 compared with approx. HK$27 million as at 31
December 2021 as a result of the corresponding increase in inventories
for the increasing demand in the Chinese New Year. The trade
payables mainly consisted of payables relating to material purchases
and the trading products. During the Reporting Year, credifor tumnover
days were 85 days compared with 81 days in FY21.
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Borrowings and convertible loan notes increased to approx. HK$102
million as at 31 December 2022 from approx. HK$84 million as at 31
December 2021, mainly attributable to the increase in short-term
borrowings as at 31 December 2022.

Debtor Turnover Days
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As at 31 December 2022, the Group had fotal assets of HK$288
million which was financed by shareholders’ fund, payables and
borrowings. The Group mainly generated revenue and incurred costs in
HK$, US$ and RMB and did not have any related hedges for the year
ended 31 December 2022. No financial instrument was used for
hedging purpose. The Group adopted a prudent funding and treasury
policy and managed the fluctuation exposures of exchange rate and
inferest rate on specific transactions.

As at 31 December 2022, The Group's borrowings with an outstanding
principal amount of approximately HK$ 15 million were denominated in
HK$ (bore inferest at a fixed rate], repayable on demand or within one
year and were pledged by a subsidiary’s investment in Hong Kong
listed equities with carrying amount of HK$56 million. The Group's
borrowing with an outstanding principal amount of approximately
HK$ 16 million were denominate in HK$ (bore inferest at Hong Kong
Prime Rate [as quoted by the Hongkong and Shanghai Banking
Corporation Limited) plus 4% per annum and maturing on 16 May
2024. As at 31 December 2022, the convertible loan nofes issued by
the Company amounted to HK$71 million which bore interest at 6% per
annum and will be matured over one year upon the extension of the
maturity date for two years from 10 October 2022 to 10 October
2024 at their principal amount or can be converted into ordinary shares
of the Company at the holder's option at the fixed rate of HK$0.38 per
share of the outstanding principal.
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As at 31 December 2022, the Group recorded total current assets of
approx. HK$275 million and total current liabilities of approx. HK$75
million. The current ratio of the Group, calculated by dividing the tofal
current assefs by total current liabilities, was approx. 367%. The Group
recorded a decrease in shareholders’ funds from approx. HK$193
million as at 31 December 2021 to approx. HK$139 million as at 31
December 2022. The decrease was mainly due to the operating loss of
the Group during the Reporting Year.

Total Assets

EERE

31 December 2022

287,659

31 December 2022
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Bank and other Borrowings
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Save as aforesaid or as otherwise disclosed herein, the Group did not
have any debt securities issued and outstanding, or authorised or
otherwise created but unissued, any term loans (secured, unsecured,
guaranteed or not), any other borrowings or indebtedness in the nature
of borrowing including bank overdrafts and liabilities under acceptances
[other than normal trade bills) or acceptance credits, any morigages or
charges, or other material contingent liabilities or guarantee at the close
of business on 31 December 2022. Foreign currency amounts have
been translated at the approx. exchange rates prevailing at the close of
business on 31 December 2022.

The Group's operation relied upon the support from suppliers and
financial institutions. Facilities and credit terms are provided on the basis
of which certain financial and operational undertakings are complied
with. On behalf of the Board, the Directors are of the opinion that, after
taking info accounts the Group's internal resources and cash flow from
operations, the Group will have sufficient working capital fo safisfy its
present requirements for the next twelve months from the date of this
report in the absence of unforeseen circumstances.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

A summary of the principal risks and uncertainties which may impact the

Group's financial conditions, results of operations or future performance

and how the Group to mitigate these risks is sef out below.

This summary should not be regarded as a complete and comprehensive

statement of all potential risks and uncertainties faced by the Group, but

rather those risks which the Group currently believes may have a

significant impact on the Group's performance and future prospects.

FERBRTHABRREE

AREFERKE ZMBRR - EEREIARKE
RzxX2RE L TAAERRE R AEBE A%
R ERBEN T -

LR AR RS AR B E R 2 A BERR
RARBRER 2 T EFERML - HEARSK B3R E
ERERRAEHAEEZ KRB L RKAEENK
BEARE -

Principal risks Description Mitigating actions
FEREE 2ES RIS
Strategic risk Strategic risk is the risk that medium and long- @ Extensive investment management experience

SRES 1L

Economic risk
47 3 fex

Credit risk
ZERE

term profitability and/or reputation of the
Group could be adversely impacted by the
failure either to identify or implement the
correct strategy, or fo react appropriately fo
changes in the business environment.
5RBE I R e A5 IR R BE 78 1) =k B il I i SR Mg
FHEXERRBOMFLEEREMEASE
BB RRBAATGENL IBBEXKT
NMEEZzRR -

Economic risk is the risk of any downturn in
economic conditions could impact the
Group's performance through higher bad
debts as a result of customers’ inability to
repay loans and lower asset values.
RERBASEATFPENEBEERME
BORRENMREEEBEREMTEAKHE
RIZ ETEE T TR

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the
Group if a customer or counferparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual
obligations.

FERRAWERTAZEFARZHF
REBTEHANE T AEBAIPEE
Bz R -

of the Board.
EEEgNREEBIEELR -

e Regularly review on sfrategy and performance
of each business unit.
IR S RBEM 2 R NRR -

e Perform comprehensive due diligence on all
potential acquisitions.

A EERBEFERETEEERES -

e Regularly review forward looking indicators to
identify economic conditions.

TE it IR MR AR DA RS B B BRI -

e Fully understand customers and carry out credit
quality assessment on customers before
granting loans.
RELERAEZETHEFPLHETFPETE
EE =M -

®  Regularly monitor loans receivables and assess
for their recoverability.

EHERBWRE R L ZE A RRRE -
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Principal risks

E- 30

Description

RE

Mitigating actions
FRIER

Liquidity risk

nBE R

Price risk

(EREYE

Exchange risk

BEE 50 g
22

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will not
be able to meet its financial obligations as
they fall due.
RBECRERASAEEREEITEIHZ
MBEEZ kR

Price risk is the risk that changes in equity
prices will affect the Group's income and the
value of its holdings of equities.
(BSR4 15 572 B AN S B U B H P R
REEZREZESH AR -

Exchange risk is the risk that changes in
foreign exchange rates will affect the Group's
income and the value of ifs holdings of assets.
MERRR AT EREBRAREMEE
EBEZIMNEEXZE B 2 ER
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Regularly monitor liquidity and statement of
financial position.

EHERRBES MMBIRRK

Maintain appropriate liquidity to cover
commitments.

REBBEEREDE S IR AG

Limit liquidity risk exposure by investing only in
securities listed on stock exchanges.
FBRERENX M ETRBFREIADESR
Bz

Ensure acceplable and appropriate finance in
place, or believed to be available before
commitfing investment projects.
AEREBANERESAEIEA IR NE

Regularly monitor equity portfolio to address
any porifolio issues promptly.
FHREEREREAS UK EIEERRE
HEmRE -

Spread price risk exposure by investing a
number of equities.

REZERFEAD BRERRER -

Closely monitor statement of financial position
and cashflow exchange risk exposures and
where considered appropriate use of financial
instruments, such as forward exchange
contracts, foreign currency options and forward
rate agreements, fo hedge this exchange risk.
BYERMEIRAR MR SRELRAR - I
EERRBERZBEATEAERITANE
HIOME A X ~ SMNE R SRR IR R %) ¥
R EZ I R o
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EEEAWR S

Principal risks Description Mitigating actions

E- 30 AES A EE

People risk People risk is the risk of loss the services of ®  Provide competitive reward and benefit
AER R any directors, senior management and other packages that ensure our ability to aftract and

legal and regulatory risk
ERMEERR

key personnel which could have a material
adverse effect on the Group's businesses.
AFRBRATAES SREEABRHE
EBABRIERME A EHAEBERE
REATHFEZ R o

legal and regulatory risk is the risk that a
breach of laws and regulations could lead to
litigation, investigations or disputes, resulting
in additional costs being incurred, civil and/
or criminal proceedings and reputational
damage.
FEREMEERRAERER LR TS
BERE - #EHA S  EEEINKA R
Eh/IMERFRABEEZER

Capital and Financial Risk

Our capital and financial risk management are set out in the Note 36
and Note 37 to the financial statements.

refain the employees we need.
BB F N 2 2B RN EURERASE
EAREN TSI RBERTFZAL -

e Ensure that the staff of the Group has the right
working environment o enable them to do the
best job possible and maximise their
satisfaction at work.
BRAKEZEIRGEZTIERTUSTE
IHRFAARHT TIERERREMIES B
IZIEREE -

®  Monitor changes and developments in the
regulatory environment and ensure that
sufficient resources being made available to
implement any required changes.

BRNERIEMRTE 8 -

e Seek legal or other specialist advice as
appropriate.
HERSEEHIAMEXALER -

EX R E R

BAZER T BERARERSHNPHEHRERMEIO
K fEE 37 ©
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CHANGE IN BOARD LOT SIZE

With effect from 9:00 a.m. on 29 September 2022, the board lof size
for trading in the shares of the Company [the “Shares”) on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited will be changed from 50,000 Shares
to 10,000 Shares. The reduction in board lot size will lower each
board lot value and thus the threshold for investors to acquire the Shares,
which will facilitate the trading and improve the liquidity of the Shares
so that the Company can atfract more investors and broaden the
shareholder base.

USE OF PROCEEDS FROM FUND RAISING ACTIVITIES

During the Reporting Year, no proceed from fund raising activities was
used. As at 31 December 2022, there was no unutilised proceed from
fund raising activities.

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS AND ACQUISITIONS

Saved from those mentioned in this report, the Group did not have any
other significant investments or acquisitions or sales of subsidiaries
during the Reporting Year.

24 China Healthwise Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2022

EREBFEEEN
BE-_Z-__FAA-+TABLFARBER AR
BRMD(TRB D REBBERSMERAFEE
Z2EHEFEEFENMBEBHS0000% KM E N A
10,000 fh - A EBFEEEMNBRESFE
EBENZEE  WmBREREEEERD ZPE
IR R D MR B N E B - (e fE
RARREHRSIE L HEE WA EER

SERBZRBEREAR

RIFEFERN TESHEEZHHMEZTIE - &
BT _F+-_A=+—8 HMEAPEEEL
SEENFTISFA ©

EARERKBEE

BRASRE ATl E SN - ANERE R S F R W&
HtEARESWERHENB AR -



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE CODE

The Company recognise the importance of achieving the highest
standard of corporate governance consistent with the needs and
requirements of its businesses and the best interest of all of its
stakeholders, and the Board is fully commitied to doing so. The Board
believes that high standards of corporate governance provide a
framework and solid foundation for the Group to manage business risks,
enhance fransparency, achieve high standard of accountability and
profect stakeholders’ interests.

The Group has adopted a corporate governance statement of policy
which provides guidance on the application of the corporate
governance principles on the Group, with reference to the Code on
Corporate Governance Practices (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 of the Rules Goveming the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock
Exchange”).

In the opinion of the Directors, the Company has complied with all code
provisions as set out in the CG Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2022.

CORPORATE PURPOSE, VALUES AND STRATEGIES

For many years, the Board has focused on pursuing the corporafe
purpose of empowering and developing our employees to create long-
term value and sustainable growth for our shareholders.

srnance Report
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The Board recognises the need fo establish the correct culture and values
to pursue the Company’s purpose and fo ensure good standards of
behavior are maintained throughout the Group. To foster the Company's
culture, the Board continues to promote the following values within the
Group:

(a) Integrity
We insist on trustworthy behavior and always acting with integrity
— “doing the right thing”, infernally and extemnally.

(b) Responsible

We conduct our business in a responsible way and are
responsible for our actions, outcomes, and reputation.

(c) Collaborative and supportive

We foster a collaborative and supportive environment for
attracting, developing, and retaining the best talent for our
business.

(d) Teamwork

We promote teamwork in a fair and open environment, where
employees and their contributions are valued and respected.

(e) Customer focus

We take the time to know our customers and understand their
business needs, so they feel listened to and valued. We are
responsive and flexible, ensuring they stay with us for the long
term.

In pursuing the Company’s purposes, the Company adopts two principal
strategies, namely: (i) to grow recurring eamings, cash flow and capital
refurn and fo strengthen its financial position; and (i) to attract, refain,
and develop falented employees.

The Board believes that the culiure of a business, in conjunction with its
values, is vitally important to the Company'’s successful long-term
performance. How the Board members conduct themselves sefs the
culture within the Group — the good standard of behavior has to be set
from the top.

The Board constantly monitors the Company’s culture fo ensure that

policies, practices, and behavior throughout are aligned with the
Company's purpose and strategies.
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MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code”) set out in Appendix 10
to the Listing Rules as the code of conduct for dealing in securities of the
Company by the Directors. All Direcfors have confirmed, upon specific
enquiries made by the Company, that they have complied with the
required standard set out in the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2022. To ensure Directors’ dealings in the securities of the
Company (the “Securities”) are conducted in accordance with the
Model Code and securities code of the Company, a Director is required
to notify the Chairman in writing and obtain a written acknowledgement
from the Chairman prior to any dealings in the Securities.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for providing leadership and control of the
Company and monitoring the performance of the management,
approving the financial statements and annual budgets. It focuses on the
formulation of business strategy, policy and control. Day-to-day
operations of the Company are delegated fo the Executive Directors and
senior management of the Group. The Board reviews and approves key
matters affecting the Company’s strategic policies, finances and
shareholders, such as financial statements, dividend policy and major
corporate activities. Decisions of the Board are communicated to the
Management through Executive Directors who have aftended Board
meetings.

The Board currently comprises six Executive Directors and three
Independent Non-executive Directors. There is no relationship (including
financial, business, family or other material /relevant relationship) among
members of the Board. Their names and brief biographies are sef out on
pages 54 to 56 of this Annual Report.
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The Independent Non-executive Directors are high calibre executives
with diversified industry expertise and bring a wide range of skills and
experience fo the Company. One of the Independent Non-executive
Director possesses recognized professional qualifications in accounting.
All Independent Non-executive Directors bring independent judgement
on issues of strategy, performance, risk and people through their
confribution at Board meetings.

The Board has received from each Independent Non-executive Director
a written annual confirmation of independence pursuant fo Rule 3.13 of
the Listing Rules. The Board considers that the three Independent Non-
executive Directors, representing one-third of the Board, are independent
in character and they also meet the independence guidelines as sef out

in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules.

Board meetings are scheduled at approximately. quarterly intervals, and
additional meetings will be held when required. The Directors have
access to all relevant information as well as the advice and services of
the Company Secretary of the Company. Independent professional
advice may be taken by the Directors as required. There were fourteen
Board meetings held during the year ended 31 December 2022.

All Directors are subject fo retirement by rofation once every three years
and are subject fo re-election in accordance with the arficles of
association of the Company.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

The roles of the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of the Group
are clearly defined and segregated to ensure independence and proper
checks and balances. The Chairman focuses on the business strategy
and direction of the Company and has executive responsibilities,
provides leadership for the Board and ensures proper and effective
functioning of the Board in discharging of its responsibilities. The Chief
Executive Officer is accountable to the Board for the overall
implementation of the Company's strategies and the co-ordination of
overall business operations.

There is currently no officer carrying the fifle of Chief Executive Officer
up to the datfe of this annual report. In the absence of the Chief
Executive Officer, the duties of the Chief Executive Officer have been/
will continue to be undertaken by other executive members of the Board,
namely Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton, Mr. leung Alex, Ms. Lo Ming
Wan, Mr. Tse Chi Keung and Mr. Yuan Huixia, therefore, in the
opinion of the Directors, the roles of the Chairman and the Chief
Executive Officer have been/will continue 1o be properly segregated in
the absence of an officer carrying the fitle of Chief Executive Officer.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three committees, namely the Audit
Committee, Remuneration Committee and Nomination Committee, to
oversee particular aspects of the Company’s affairs. All Board
committees of the Company are esfablished with defined written terms
of reference. The terms of reference of the Board commitiees have been
posted on the Company’s website and the Stock Exchange’s website
and are available to shareholders upon request.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS ATTENDED/HELD

The attendance records of each Director at the meetings of the

srnance Report
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shareholders, the Board, Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee  HEfE - £He  ZERLEE  FHES SR
and Nomination Committee during the year ended 31 December 2022 12 £F 8@ @i 7 0588 &H 50T ¢
are set out below:
2021
Annual
General  Extraordinary
Remuneration Nomination Audit Meeting General
Board Committee Committee Committee ("AGM") Meeting
—BC-F
RRAFAE
TRRBF R
EEg® FMZE® REEEE ENZERT X&) BRIKE
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. lei Hong Wai (Chairman) TIEERE(EE) 14/14 1/1 1/1 - 1/1 1/1
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elon REIEEE
[Vice Chairman) (BIFE) 14/14 - - - 1/ 1/1
Mr. leung Alex R RE 14/14 - - - 1/1 1/1
Ms. lo Ming Wan L) - 14/14 - - - 1/1 1/1
Mr. Tse Chi Keung EilEE: s 14/14 - - - 1/1 1/1
Mr. Yuan Huixia REELL 14/14 - - - 1/1 1/1
Independent Non-executive BUFHTES
Directors
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen EERETE 14/14 1/1 1/1 3/3 1/1 1/1
Mr. Lai Hok Lim RERRE 14/14 1/1 1/1 3/3 1/1 1/1
Mr. Lien Wai Hung EEREELE 14/14 1/1 1/1 3/3 1/1 1/1
FESERRERERAT —T--FR 29
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A

COMPLIANCE WITH RULES 3.10(1) AND (2), AND
3.10A OF THE LISTING RULES

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board at all times met
the requirements set ouf in Rules 3.10(1) and (2], and 3.10A of the
Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at least three independent
non-executive directors (representing nof less than one-third of the Board)
with at least one independent non-executive director possessing
appropriate professional qualifications or accounting or related financial
management expertise.

INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

In defermining the independence of directors, the Board follows the
independence guidelines sef out in the Listing Rules. The Company has
received from each independent non-executive director an annual written
confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the listing
Rules in respect of the year ended 31 December 2022. The Company
considers all of the independent non-executive directors are
independent.

RELATIONSHIP BETWEEN BOARD MEMBERS

There is no relationship between the members of the Board.

CONTINUOUS PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT
OF DIRECTORS

To assist Directors’ confinuing professional development, the Company
recommends Directors fo aftend relevant seminars to develop and refresh
their knowledge and skills to ensure that their contribution to the Board
remains informed and relevant. During the year ended 31 December
2022, the Directors have participated in continuous professional
development programmes, such as external seminars organised by
qualified professionals, to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills in relation to their contribution to the Board. A record of the training
received by the respective Directors are kept and updated by the
Company.

The Directors also understand the importance of confinuous professional

development and are committed to participating any suitable fraining to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills.
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According fo the records provided by the Direcfors to the Company
pursuant to the CG Code, all Directors have participated in appropriate
continuous professional development activities during the Reporting Year
under review. The individual training record of each Director for the year
ended 31 December 2022 is summarised below:

overnance

rt
ERELH

EREFRECREATARMAR R 20
FPREFCAREFESRBEZHBEIXER
AE e HE_T
BEFMES Z @RS HRnT -

Directors’ duties and
responsibilities/
Corporate Governance/

Updates on Laws, Rules and

FT-_A=+—BLLEE"

Business related/Accounting/

Financial/Management or

Regulations other professional skills
BESCREREE t¥ER EZ:YE] Vs -y v
EB - RAIRRB 2 EH#H EENHMEERRE
Attending Attending
Reading seminars/ Reading seminars/
materials conferences materials conferences
HEWRE HEmEE
et =k RO E AR 23
Executive Directors HITES
Mr. lei Hong Wai (Chairman) THERTE(EE) v v v v/
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton REE A
(Vice Chairman) EEE) v v s v
Mr. leung Alex R EE v v v 4
Ms. Lo Ming Wan BHRBLZ T v v v/ v/
Mr. Tse Chi Keung EilE:p e v v v/ v/
Mr. Yuan Huixia RIBERAE v v v v/
Independent Non-executive BYFHITES
Directors
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen EEGERE v v v v/
Mr. Lai Hok Lim RERRS v v v/ v/
Mr. Llien Wai Hung EEEEE v v v v
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INDEPENDENT VIEWS AND INPUT TO THE BOARD

To ensure that independent views and input are available to the Board,

the Company has established the following mechanism, and the

implementation and effectiveness of such mechanism are reviewed

annually.

[a)

le]

(g

32

The Board must ensure the appointment of at least three
independent non-executive directors and at least one-third of its
members being independent non-executive directors [or such
higher threshold as may be required by the Listing Rules) from fime
fo time.

Each Board committee must comprise a majority of independent

non-executive directors.

The independence of independent non-executive directors is
assessed upon appointment, annually, re-appointment, and af any
other time where the circumstances warrant reconsideration.

The independent non-executive directors are required to inform the
Company as soon as practicable if there is any change in their
personal particulars that may materially affect their independence.

Independent non-executive directors receive fixed fees for their role
as members of the Board and Board committees and are not
enfifled o equity-based remuneration (e.g. share options or grants)
with performance-related elements.

Further re-appointment of an independent non-executive director
[including the long-serving independent non-executive director] is
subject to a separate resolution to be approved by the
shareholders.

Independent non-executive directors should not be involved in the
daily management of the Company nor in any relationship or
circumsfance which would affect the exercise of their independent
judgement.

All directors are entifled to seek independent professional advice

on issues relevant to their function and duties at the Company's
expense.
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(i)  Directors are required fo declare their and their connected entfities’
direct or indirect interests, if any, in proposals or transactions to
be considered by the Board at Board meetings and withdraw
from the meetings as appropriate.

[l The Chairman of the Board meets with the independent non-
execufive directors at least annually without the presence of the
executive Directors.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

All non-executive directors of the Company are not appointed for a
specific term, but are subject to retirement from office by rotation and re-
election in accordance with the provisions of the Company's bye-laws.
At each annual general meeting, one-hird of the directors for the time
being, [or, if their number is not a multiple of three, the number nearest
to but not less than one-hird) shall refire from office by rotation, provided
that every director shall be subject fo retirement by rotation at least once
every three years.

DIVERSITY

The Board believes that a diversified Board brings constructive challenge
and fresh perspectives fo discussions. The Board considers diversity, in
its broadest sense (and not limited fo gender), during Board composition
reviews and the development of selection criteria for appointing a new
direcfor.

The Company's Board diversity policy, which is available on the
Company's website, provides that selection of candidates during the
nomination process will be based on a range of diverse perspectives.
These perspectives include but not be limited to gender, age, cultural
and educational background, professional experience, ethnicity, skills,
knowledge, and length of service. The ultimate decision will be based
on the merit and confribution the selected candidates will bring to the
Board. The policy does not contain any measurable objectives or targets
for implementation. The policy is reviewed annually by the Board to
ensure ifs effectiveness.

The Company currently have both male and female directors on the
Board. To achieve and improve gender diversity, each time a new
director is appointed fo the Board, where possible, both male and
female candidate will be shortlisted.

Details on the gender ratio in the Group's workforce can be found in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report of the Company.

EFEVEHEETEER LHRNE AR
ERGCESSHEENERARFITHEE
AN S (A)  UEEERELNEE -

(i

l EFEeXRELESFEBIIFRTERST
G MATESETEES -

FHTES

ARRIABFATESNREL BIEEEH - 1
R FARBEA QB 2 5 4 B 75 R AE S B IR &
T -NERRBEASG L EREEN=02—
= (GMABAIF=MEE - RISSKEIETD
RE=DZ—WAR) BWmERE  HESEFAED
B=FRE—R-

Z it

EXZeRR ZRNERSHAEIRRERE
RENKERFFNEA ELTQERTESTE
HAREBIEREFESNRERER @8R
BzEE LML (A TERRMER) -

ARBNEESEZ TR (EARRREE LE
B)MRE - EIRBAERET - HRE— R TR
BHBEEREA ZFBEHERENRRMER -
Fie  YERBEER EXLH - B &5
FEE N RIS FIR o JAORTE A E NPT EUE M 1RE
ABREESTRNEHRRERMEL - ZBEKL
TESEMAEENEEXRNTRE - ZBERE
FHESSHETER  NEREAMIL -

ARREZCRAMASENBELEEST - /7T
BERENAEURZTTE BREEHNESNAE
ZER - ERENERAT BERZEEREAS
SRIIARERE -

BEREASEE THRILLHINEE  I2HARE

MIRE g REREE -

RESEEEERERAT —T- 4R 33



Corporate Governance Report
LETLRSE

DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S
EMOLUMENTS

The Company has adopted a directors’ remuneration policy aiming fo
set out the overall guiding principles and structure for remuneration
packages of direcfors to affract, motivate, reward, and refain the right
talent in pursuing and driving the Company’s long-term goals and
ensuring business sustainability and growth. The directors’ remuneration
policy comprises remuneration guiding principles and remuneration
structure. The remuneration of executive directors is defermined based
on, among others, their scope of duties, responsibilities, skills, and
experience required, corporate and individual performances, prevailing
market practice, and general economic situation. The remuneration of
non-executive directors and independent non-executive directors is
defermined based on, among others, the number of board committees
served, experience and level of responsibilities undertaken and
prevailing market practice. In the remuneration structure for independent
non-executive directors are not entifled to reward with equity-based
remuneration. A copy of the direcfors’ remuneration policy is available
on the Company's website.

Defails of the remuneration of each of the Directors for the year ended
31 December 2022 are set out in Note 14(a) to the consolidated
financial statements.

The defails of the five individual with highest emoluments are set out in
Note 14(b) to the consolidated financial statements.

The remuneration of the members of senior management [excluding
directors) by band are sef out in Note 14 to the consolidated financial
statements.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Remuneration Committee in 2005. The
Remuneration Committee currently consists of three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Llai Hok Lim, Mr. Wong Tak Chuen and
Mr. Lien Wai Hung and the Chairman, Mr. Llei Hong Wai. Mr. Lai Hok
Lim is the Chairman of the Remuneration Commitiee. The function of the
Remuneration Committee is fo review and make recommendations to the
Board on the Company’s remuneration policy for all remuneration of
Directors and senior management. As part of the decision-making
process, the Company has adopted the standard declaration of inferest
procedures for all Board and commitiee meetings to ensure that no
director or committee member will be asked to participate at any
decision-making of matters in which they have a material inferest, such
as decisions regarding his own remuneration. The fees of the Non-
execufive Directors (including the Independent Non-executive Directors)
are determined by the Board.
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From this year onwards, the Remuneration Committee will also review
the share option scheme and the share award plan of the Company on
an annual basis. During the year, no share option or award was
granted under the share option scheme or share award plan of the
Company. No material matter relating to share schemes, such as grant,
vesfing, lapse, cancellation, exercise or alteration of terms, was brought
to issue during the year requiring the review or approval of the
Remuneration Committee.

All members of the Remuneration Committee met one time during the
year ended 31 December 2022 for a proposal on remuneration
packages and employment contracts for submission to the Board for
approval.

The Company adopts a competitive remuneration package for its
employees. Promotion and salary increments are assessed based on a
performance related basis in order to atfract, retain and motivate
talented executives/employees fo strive for future developments and
expansion of the Company.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Company has established a Nomination Committee in 2006. The
Nomination Committee currently consists of three Independent Non-
executive Directors, namely Mr. Lai Hok Lim, Mr. Wong Tak Chuen and
Mr. lien Wai Hung and the Chairman, Mr. lei Hong Wai. Mr. Lei
Hong Wai is the Chairman of the Nomination Committee. The function
of the Nomination Committee is to review the structure, size and
composition (including the skills, knowledge and experience) of the
Board on a regular basis and make recommendations to the Board
regarding any proposed changes to complement the Group's corporate
strategy.

In assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee will
consider various aspects set out in the Board Diversity Policy, including
but not limited to gender, age, culiural and educational background,
ethnicity, professional qualifications, skills, knowledge, industry and
regional experience and length of service.

On selection of candidates for directorship of the Company, the
Nomination Committee would consider the candidate’s character,
qualifications, experience, independence and other relevant criteria
necessary to complement the corporate strategy and achieve Board
diversity. All appointment will be based on merit and contribution that
the selected candidates would bring to the Board.
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The Company has adopted a nomination policy aiming to ensure the
Board has a balance of skills, experience, knowledge, and diversity of
perspectives appropriate to the requirements of the Company’s business.
The Nomination Committee will evaluate, select, and recommend
candidate(s) for directorships fo the Board by giving due consideration
to selection criteria including but not limited to:

[o)  diversity in aspects including but not limited to gender, age,
cultural and educational background, professional experience,
skills and knowledge and length of service;

[b)  commitment to responsibilities of the Board in respect of available
time and relevant interest:

[c)  qualifications, including accomplishment and experience in the
relevant industries the Company’s business is involved in;

[d)  independence;
le]  reputation for integrity;

[} potential contributions that the individual(s) can bring to the Board;

and
lg)  plan(s) in place for the orderly succession of the Board.

The Nomination Committee will evaluate and recommend refiring
director(s) to the Board for re-appointment by giving due consideration
fo the selection criteria, including but not limited fo:

[a)  the overall confribution and service of the refiring director(s) fo the
Company, including but not limited to the attendance of the
meetings of the Board and/or its committees and general
meetings where applicable, in addition fo the level of participation
and performance on the Board and/or its committees; and

[b)  whether the retiring director(s) continuels) to safisfy the selection
criteria.

The Nomination Committee will evaluate and recommend candidatel(s)
for the position(s) of the independent non-executive directors of the
Company by giving due consideration fo the factors including but not
limited fo those set out in Rules 3.10(2) and 3.13 of the listing Rules in
addition to the selection criteria.
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The Nomination Committee will recommend fo the Board for the
appointment of a direcfor in accordance with the following procedures
and processes:

(a) the Nomination Committee will, giving due consideration to the
current composition and size of the Board, develop a list of
desirable skills, perspectives and experience at the outset to focus
the search effort;

(b)  the Nomination Committee may consult any source it deems
appropriate in identifying or selecting suitable candidates, such as
referrals from existing directors, advertising, recommendations
from a third party agency firm and proposals from shareholders of
the Company with due consideration given to the selection
criteria;

[c)  the Nomination Commitlee may adopt any process it deems
appropriate in evaluating the suitability of the candidates, such as
inferviews, background checks, presentations and third party
reference checks:

(d)  upon considering a candidate suitable for the directorship, the
Nomination Committiee will hold a meeting and/or by way of
written resolutions to, if thought fit, approve the recommendation
fo the Board for appointment;

[e)  the Nomination Committee will provide the relevant information of
the selected candidate to the Remuneration Committee for
consideration of the remuneration package of such selected
candidate;

/) the Nomination Committee will thereafter make the
recommendation to the Board in relation to the proposed
appointment, and where a non-executive director is considered,
the Remuneration Committee will make the recommendation to the
Board on the proposed remuneration package;

[g) the Board may arrange for the selected candidate to be
interviewed by the members of the Board who are not members of
the Nomination Committee and the Board will thereafter
deliberate and decide the appointment as the case may be; and

(h)  all appointments of directors will be confirmed by the filing of the
consent to act as director of the relevant director (or any other
similar filings requiring the relevant director to acknowledge or
accept the appointment as director, as the case may be) to be
filed with the relevant Companies Registry.
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During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Nomination Committee
conducted an annual review of the structure, size and composition of the
Board.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Pursuant to the Listing Rules, an Audit Commitiee was established on 14
March 2000. The Audit Committee currently consists of three
Independent Non-executive Direcfors, namely Mr. Wong Tak Chuen,
Mr. Lai Hok Lim and Mr. Lien Wai Hung. Mr. Wong Tak Chuen is the
Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Chairman of the Audit Committee
has appropriate professional qualifications and experience in financial
matters.

By reference to “A Guide for the Formation of An Audit Committee”
published by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants,
written terms of reference which describe the authority and duties of the
Audit Committee were prepared and adopted by the Board since the
date of establishment. The principal activities of the Audit Committee
include the review and supervision of the Group's financial reporting
process lincluding the preparation of the inferim and annual results,
internal controls and corporate governance).

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Audit Committee held
three meetings including the review of the annual results for the year
ended 31 December 2021, and the interim results for the six months
ended 30 June 2021 before their submission to the Board and
monitored the integrity of such consolidated financial statements, and the
planning meeting with the audifors in reaction to the annual results for
the year ended 31 December 2022. In addition, the Audit Committee
also had a private meeting with the independent auditor without the
presence of management to discuss any area of concern. The
attendance of each member of the Audit Committee is set out in the

section headed “Number of Meetings Attended,/Held" of this Report.

The Audit Committee has also discussed and reviewed the key audit
matters defermined by the external auditor under Hong Kong Standards
on Auditing for the year ended 31 December 2022. It also reviewed
and discussed the review report on risk management and internal control
systems of the Group from APAC Compliance Consuliancy and Internal
Control Services limited, an independent risk management and internal
confrol review adviser appointed by the Board fo carry out an annual
independent review. The Audit Committee also discussed the Group's
risk management and internal control systfems with the executive direcfors
fo ensure the executive direcfors had performed their duties to have
effective systems properly in place. The Audit Committee also discussed
the accounting policies and practices that might affect the Group and
financial reporting matters with the management and external auditors.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board is responsible for performing the functions set out in code

provision A.2.1 of the CG Code.

The Board has reviewed and is safisfied with the Company'’s corporate
governance policies and practices, fraining and contfinuous professional
development of Directors and senior management, the Company's
policies and practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements, the compliance of the Model Code and the Company’s
compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in this Corporate
Governance Report.

AUDITORS’ REMUNERATION

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the remuneration paid or
payable fo the independent auditor for the audit services amounted to
approx. HK$ 1,080,000 and non-audit services amounted fo approx.
HK$80,000.

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and
understandable assessment of annual and interim reports, price-sensitive
announcements and other disclosures required under the Listing Rules
and other regulatory requirements.

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
stafements as set out on pages /2 to 204. The statement of the external
auditor about its reporting responsibilities on the financial statements is
sef out on pages 66 to /1.

The Directors confirm thot, to the best of their know\edge, information
and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries, they are not aware of
any material uncerfainties relating fo events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt upon the Company's ability to confinue as a going
concern.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Board acknowledges that it has overall responsibility for the design
and implementation of internal controls and risk management which
covers financial reporting, operations, compliance and risk management
of the Company, as well as continuous monitoring the effectiveness of
such infernal controls and risk management. The Board has delegated
such responsibility to the management of the Company. The
management, under the supervision of the Board, has established an on-
going process for identifying, evaluating and managing significant risks

faced by the Group.
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The Audit Committee reviews the infternal confrols and risk management

that are significant to the Group on an on-going basis. The Audit

Committee also considers the adequacy of resources, qualifications and

experience of siaff of the Group's accounting and financial reporting
function, as well as their training programmes and budges.

(a)

40

the process used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks

The processes used fo identify, evaluate and manage significant
risks by the Group are summarised as follows:

Risk Identification
e Identify risks that may potentially affect the Group's business
and operations.

Risk Assessment
e Assess the risks idenfified by using the assessment criteria
developed by the management; and

e Consider the impact and consequence on the business and
the likelihood of their occurrence.

Risk Response
e Prioritise the risks by comparing the results of the risk
assessment: and

e Defermine the risk management strategies and infernal
confrol processes fo prevent, avoid or mitigate the risks.

Risk Monitoring and Reporting

e Perform ongoing and periodic monitoring of the risk and
ensures that appropriafe internal control processes are in
place;

e Revise the risk management strategies and internal control
processes in case of any significant change of situation;

and

e Report the results of risk monitoring to the management and
the Board regularly.
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(b)

(c)

(d)
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the main features of the risk management and internal
control systems

Control procedures have been designed to safeguard assets
against misappropriation and disposition; ensure compliance with
relevant lows, rules and regulations; ensure proper maintenance
of accounting records for provision of reliable financial information
used within the business or for publication; and to provide
reasonable assurance against material misstatement, loss or fraud.

an acknowledgement by the board that it is responsible
for the risk management and internal control systems and
reviewing their effectiveness. It should also explain that
such systems are designed to manage rather than
eliminate the risk of failure to achieve business
objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal
control systems of the Company and reviewing their effectiveness.
The Board oversees the overall risk management of the Group and
endeavours fo idenfify, confrol impact of the idenfified risks and
facilitate implementation of coordinated mitigating measures. The
risk management and internal control systems of the Company are
designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failures to
achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable
and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

the process used to review the effectiveness of the risk
management and internal control systems and to resolve
material internal control defects

The Company does not have an internal audit function and is
currently of the view that there is no immediate need to set up an
infernal audif function within the Group in light of the size, nature
and complexity of the Group's business. It was decided that the
Board would be directly responsible for internal control of the
Group and for reviewing its effectiveness.

(b)

(d)
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(e)

As the Company does not have an infernal audit function, the
Board has engaged APAC Compliance Consultancy and Internal
Control Services Limited as its risk management and internal
control review adviser (the “Adviser”) to conduct the annual review
of the risk management and internal confrol systems for the year
ended 31 December 2022 and 31 December 2021. Such
review is conducted annually and cycles reviewed are under
rotation basis. The scope of review was previously determined
and approved by the Board. The Adviser has reported findings
and areas for improvement to the Audit Committee and
management. The Board/Audit Committee are of the view that
there are no material internal control defeats noted. All
recommendations from the Adviser are properly followed up by
the Group fo ensure that they are implemented within a reasonable
period of time. The Board therefore considered that the risk
management and infernal control systems are effective and
adequate.

the procedures and internal controls for the handling and
dissemination of inside information

An information disclosure policy is in place to ensure potential
inside information being captured and confidentiality of such
information being maintained until consistent and timely disclosure
are made in accordance with the listing Rules. The policy
regulates the handling and dissemination of inside information,
which includes:

e Designated reporting channels from different operations
informing any potential inside information to designated
departments;

e Designated persons and departments to determine further

escalation and disclosure as required; and

e Designated persons authorised to act as spokespersons and
respond fo external enquiries.
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The Board reviewed the need for an internal audit function, but has
decided that because of the size of the Group, it cannot be justified at
present. The Board will review this decision annually.

EEeNENASENST MY BHREBENE
R BTERNER  JlEEMBENTRME -

The Board also reviewed the adequacy of resources, staff qualifications
and experience, training programmes and budget of the Group's
accounting and financial reporting functfions.
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The Company has adopfed a policy and procedures on disclosure of
inside information which contains the guidelines to the directors and all
the relevant employees of the Group to ensure that the inside information
of the Company is to be disseminated to the public in an equal and
timely manner in accordance with applicable laws and regulations.

The Board is satisfied that the internal control system in place covering
all material controls including financial, operational and compliance
controls and risk management functions for the year under review and
up fo the date of issuance of the annual report is reasonably effective
and adequate.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. lo Ming Wan, is the Company Secretary of the Group and has
day-fo-day knowledge of the Company’s affairs. She reports to the
Chairman. Ms. Lo has confirmed that she has undertaken no less than
15 hours of relevant professional training during the year ended 31

December 2022.

WHISTLEBLOWING AND PREVENTION OF BRIBERY

The Company is committed to maintaining good corporate goverance,
emphasising accountability and a high degree of transparency which
enable its sfakeholders fo have trust and faith in the Company to fake
care of their needs and to fulfill its social responsibility. In line with this
commitment, the Group expects and encourages ifs employees and
other parties who deal with the Group (e.g. customers, contractors,
suppliers, creditors and debtors, etc.] to report any misconduct,
malpractice or irregularity within the Group. The Company has a
whistleblowing policy that provides the reporting channels and guidance
on reporting possible improprieties in matters of financial reporting or
other matters. All reported matters will be investigated independently
and, in the meantime, all information received from a whistleblower and
his/her/its identity will be kept confidential. A copy of the
whistleblowing policy is available on the Company's website.

The Company commits to maintaining confidence in the integrity of the
Group. All directors and employees should show the highest business
integrity in their dealings with others and should conduct the Group's
business in accordance with the law and principles of good business
practice. The Company prohibits all forms of bribery and corruption and
has embedded in the Group’s Code of Business Conduct and Ethics a
set of prevention of bribery policies.
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DIVIDEND POLICY

On 31 December 2018, the Company has approved and adopted a
new dividend policy. The Company considers the new dividend policy
creates flexibility on the Board in declaring the payments of dividends.

Under the new dividend policy, the Company does not have any pre-
defermined dividend payout ratio. The declaration, payment, and
amount of dividends are subject o the Board's discrefion having regard
to the following factors:

la)  the eamings, financial conditions, capital requirements and future
plans of the Group;

[b)  the shareholders’ interests of the Company;
c)  the economic outlook;

[d)  the contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends by the
Compoany to its shareholders;

le]  the statutory and regulatory restrictions on the payment of

dividends by the Company; and

[l any other factors the Board may consider relevant.

SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

To safeguard shareholders' interests and rights, o separate resolution is
proposed for each substanfially separate issue at general meetings,
including the election of individual directors. All resolufions put forward
at general meetings will be voted on by poll pursuant to the Listing Rules
and poll results will be posted on the websites of the Company and of
the Stock Exchange after each general meeting.

The procedures for shareholders of the Company to propose a person

for election as a Director of the Company are available on the
Company's website (www.healthwisehk.com).
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Procedures for shareholders to convene extraordinary general
meeting and putting forward proposal at general meeting

There are no provisions allowing shareholders to propose new
resolutions at the general meetings under the Cayman Islands
Companies Llaw [the “"law”]. However, shareholders are requested to
follow Article 72 of the Articles of Association (the “Articles”) of the
Company. Pursuant to Article 72 of the Articles of the Company,
general meetings shall be convened on the written requisition of any two
or more members of the Company, or on the writtlen requisition of any
one member which is a recognised clearing house, deposited at the
registered office specifying the objects of the meeting and signed by the
requisitionists, provided that such requisifionists held as at the date of
deposit of the requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of
the Company which carries the right of voting at general meetings of the
Company. Such meeting shall be held within two months after the
deposit of such requisition. If the Board does not within 21 days from
the date of deposit of the requisition proceed duly fo convene the
meeting, the requisitionists themselves or any of them representing more
than one-half of the fotal voting rights of all of them, may convene the
general meeting in the same manner, as nearly as possible, as that in
which meetings may be convened by the Board provided that any
meefing so convened shall not be held after the expiration of three
months from the date of deposit of the requisition, and all reasonable
expenses incurred by the requisitionists as a result of the failure of the
Board shall be reimbursed to them by the Company.

PUTTING FORWARD ENQUIRIES TO THE BOARD

For putting forward any enquiries to the Board of the Company,
shareholders may send written enquiries to the Company. The Company
will not normally deal with verbal or anonymous enquiries.
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Contact details

Shareholders may send their enquiries or requests as mentioned above
to the Company:

Address: Unit 1209, Shun Tak Centre, West Tower,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
[For the attention of the Company Secretary)
Fax: (852) 2548 5575

For the avoidance of doubt, shareholders must deposit and send the
original duly signed writfen requisition, nofice or stafement, or enquiry (as
the case may be) to the above address and provide their full name,
contact details and identification in order to give effect thereto.
Shareholders' information may be disclosed as required by law.

INVESTOR RELATIONS

The Company highly values its relationship with its shareholders and
other stakeholders. It has put in place an effective corporate
communication system which provides fransparent, regular and timely
public disclosures fo its shareholders and other stakeholders. The main
features of the system are as follows:

®  The Company maintains a corporate website (www.healthwisehk.com)
on which comprehensive information about the Group, including
core business, financial reports, public announcements, circulars
and news of the Group, is disclosed. Shareholders can obtain
corporate communication electronically via the Company's
website.

e The Company esfablishes and maintains different communication
channels with its shareholders and other stakeholders through
annual reports, inferim reports and other publication.

e AGM provides a useful forum for shareholders to exchange views
with the Board. The respective chairmen of the Board and Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees (or in the absence of
the chairmen of such Committees, another member of each
Committee or failing this his duly appointed delegate) will
endeavor to be available to answer questions raised by
shareholders.
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e Separafe resolutions are proposed at general meetings for each
substantially separate issue, including the election of individual
Directors.

e Defails of the proposed resolutions to be put forward at a general

meefing are, where necessary or appropriafe, included in a
circular to the shareholders dispatched prior to the date of the
relevant general meeting.

e All resolutions put to the vote of a general meetfing are taken by
poll. The poll results are published on the Stock Exchange's
website at www.hkexnews.hk and on the Company’s website in
accordance with Rule 13.39(5) of the Listing Rules.

The Company’s shareholders’ communication policy, which is available
on the Company’s website, ensures that shareholders and the investment
community are provided with equal and timely access to information
about the Company, including its financial performance, strategic goals
and plans, material developments and corporate govemnance, and also
allows them to engage actively with the Company. The policy sets out
various communication channels, including, among others, the
Company's website, investor briefings, and shareholders’ meetings,
through which shareholders may communicate with and provide
feedback to the Company from time to time. The policy is reviewed
annually by the Board to ensure ifs effectiveness.

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Board reviewed the
policy and considered that the policy was effective and sufficient, given
that multiple channels were in place and adopted to facilitate
communications with shareholders and the investment community in
conformity with market practices.

Shareholders and other stakeholders may write directly to the Company
at its principal place of business in Hong Kong for any enquiries.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no change to the Company's bye-laws during the year. The
Company's byelows are available on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange.
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The Directors submit their report together with the audited financial
statements for the year ended 31 December 2022.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES AND GEOGRAPHICAL
ANALYSIS OF OPERATIONS

The principal activities of the Company are investment holding and
investment in financial instruments. The principal activities of ifs
subsidiaries are sales of Chinese health products, money lending and
investment in financial instruments.

An analysis of the Group's turnover and segment information is set out in
Note 6 to the financial statements.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2022 are sef
out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page /2.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended 31 December
2022 is set out in Management Discussion and Analysis on pages 15

to 24.

The Company has complied with all the relevant laws and regulations
that have a significant impact on the Company. The Company will seek
professional legal advice from legal advisers, where necessary, fo
ensure fransactions and business to be performed by the Company are
in compliance with the applicable laws and regulations.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend any dividend in respect of the year
ended 31 December 2022 [year ended 31 December 2021: Nil).

RESERVES

Movements in the reserves of the Group and of the Company during the
Reporting Year are set out in page 75 and Note 30 to the financial
statements respectively.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of the movements in share capital of the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2022 are sef out in Note 28 fo the financial

statements.
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PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, p|c1nf and equipment are set out in
Note 15 to the financial statements.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The Group's emolument policies are based on the salaries paid by
comparable companies, employment conditions and responsibilities,
and individual performance of the Directors, senior management and
general staff and are reviewed by the Remuneration Committee
periodically.

The emoluments of the Directors are recommended by the Remuneration
Committee and are decided by the Board, having regard to the salaries
paid by comparable companies, time commitment and responsibilities,
and employment conditions elsewhere in the Group.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme fo provide a flexible
and effective means of incentivising, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating to eligible participants who contribute the success of the
Group. Details of the schemes are set out in the paragraph headed
"Share Option Scheme” below and Note 29 to the financial statements.

None of the directors waived any emoluments during the year ended

31 December 2022.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The register of members of the Company will be closed from Monday,
12 June 2023 to Thursday, 15 June 2023 (both days inclusive), during
which period no fransfer of shares will be effected. In order to determine
the entilement to attend and vote af the 2022 AGM of the Company fo
be held on Thursday, 15 June 2023, all transfers accompanied by the
relevant share cerfificates must be lodged with the Company’s branch
share registrar in Hong Kong, Tricor Abacus Limited, at 17/F, Far East
Finance Centre, 16 Harcourt Road, Hong Kong not later than 4:30
p.m. on Friday, 9 June 2023.

INFORMATION ON SUBSIDIARIES

Particulars of the subsidiaries are set out in Note 19 to the financial
statements.

ME - BEERBZEDFBTHNYHHREM T
15°

R

AEBZHFMBRIDALBAR N 2 - &
REHEEBERES SREEENREBRETIZ
BARRASER - WhFHME BT =M -

EEHFMKR2ELRARANZHM - AN
2 B ] R B B DA e AR S [ LA BT 2 (8 R MR A
MR EeRE YHEFSETE -

i
®

ARREHRA—BEBEE - LWEERBRTT
AAR/AKRERNIELERMZABERSEERH
S - 2R ML AE - ZEAE ZFHBERN
TX MR8 — BN BT HRaRMIRE 20

REE-_TE-_—F+-A=+—HILFE  #=
BEEWETETH -

EERERDBEER

AREEE_E_=ZFNA+-B(EH )=
T =FRNA+THRBE(EHN) IF(BEEMABIEE
) EERERMBEER  RULBREE T #T
R BFER - BREERRLEARABR-F
—ZFXNATREAEHMNETZEFF
BEBFRERNRE EREZER  FTERNKE
FXHEREEREREAR T _=F AN
B(EHR) FTFUB=+%  KEAQAEEE
ZROBEFELYREEERMASHER AT -
AEBEBRETARRRESHAOTHZ-

M B AR 2 E
I A ) 2 AR B BRI 10 -

TRSAREERERAT TR 49



Ré})ort of the D

AK'#E%

FIVE YEARS FINANCIAL SUMMARY

The following is a summary of the consolidated results, assefs and

liabilities of the Group for each of the last five financial periods.

TFEUBHRE

RARME BEMABE-

TR ASENBEDESMBREASHE

Period from
1 April
Year ended Year ended Year ended 2019 10 Year ended
31 December 31 December 31 December 31 December 31 March
2022 2021 2020 2019 2019
RZT—NF
BE BE BZE MA—HZ BZE
—E-—F —E-—F —T-TF —E-NEF —T-hE
t=A=t-H +-A=t-R tZA=+—-A tZA=+-A =A=1-8
LFE HFE HFE 1HERR HFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THERT TAET TAET FTAET FTAET
Revenue WA 142,058 170,079 137,853 107,907 451,615
loss before income fax from KA RHERL LR
continuing operations ZBRETEHAEE (56,401) (100,580) (72,929 (118,951) (71,712)
Income tax credit/[expense]  FTEEE R,/ (F) 2,127 (2,466) 3,648 (1,265) 1,967
Loss for the year from FRRERELS
continuing operations iV ERE (54,27 4) (103,046) (69,281) (120,216) (69, 745)
Profit/[loss) for the year fom  FRREE LR ILE
discontinued operations B 2%,/ (B5E) - - 44,059 16,658) (34,667)
Loss for the year FANEE (54,274) (103,046) (25,222) (126,874) (104,412)
Attributable to: AT AL
Owners of the Company AREZHEBA (54,27 4) (103,046) (25,222) (124,345) (95,3106)
Non-controlling inferests JEFR AR I = - - (2,529 (9,096
(54,274) (103,046) (25,222) (126,874) (104,412)
Total assets EERE 287,659 314,095 434,278 598,427 697,792
Total liabilities BEesE 149,010 121,031 137,987 271,754 304,352
Total equity gyt 138,649 193,064 296,291 326,673 393,440
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DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2022, in the opinion of the directors, the Company
do not have any distributable reserves (31 December 2021 Nil).

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES

Neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased, redeemed
or sold any of the Company's listed securities during the year ended 31
December 2022.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

On 14 September 2012, the shareholders of the Company approved
the adoption of a share option scheme [the “"Scheme”).

Details of the Scheme are as follows:

(1) Purpose

To provide a flexible and effective means of incentivising,
rewarding, remunerating, compensating, to eligible participants
who confribute the success of the Group.

(2) Eligible persons

Any person who is an employee (whether full time or part time)
holding salaried office or employment under a contract of
employment or service contract or terms of employment
["Contract”) with the Group or is a Director (including executive
and non-executive directors) of the Group or any adviser,
consultant, agent, contractor, customer and supplier of any
member of the Group or any subsidiaries of the Company.

(3) Maximum number of shares

The scheme mandate limit of the Scheme was refreshed by a
shareholders’ resolution passed in the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 4 September 2018, details of which have
been set out in the circular dated 30 July 2018. Accordingly, the
maximum number of shares available for issue under the Scheme
is 85,213,083, representing 10% of the issued ordinary share
capital of the Company as at the date of the annual general
meeting affer the share consolidation of the Company on 25

September 2020.
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The tofal number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all outstanding Options granted and vyet to be exercised under the
Scheme and all outstanding options granted and yet to be
exercised under any other Scheme shall not exceed 30% of the
shares in issue from time to time. No options may be granted
under the Scheme and no options may be granted under any
other Schemes if this will result in the limit being exceeded.
Subject to specific approval of the shareholders of the Company,
the 10% limit may be refreshed with reference to the date of such
specific approval of the shareholders of the Company.

Maximum entitlement of each eligible person

Unless approved by shareholders, the total number of shares
issued and to be issued upon exercise of the share options
granted fo each eligible person in any 12-month period must not
exceed 1% of the shares of the Company in issue.

Time of exercise of option

An option may be exercised during the periods to be determined
and notified by the Directors to the grantees af the fime of making
offers to grant share options fo them provided that such periods
shall not exceed the period of ten years from the date of offer.

Acceptance of offers

Offers for the grant of share options must be accepted within 21
days affer the offer date. Offers for grant of share options have fo
be accepted together with remittance in favour of the Company of

HK$1.00.

Basis of determining the option exercise price

The subscription price for the Shares under the Scheme shall be @
price determined by the Direcfors at its discretion, provided that it
shall not be less than the whichever is the highest of (i) the closing
price of the shares as stated in the daily quotation sheets issued
by the Stock Exchange on the date of offer; [ii] the average
closing price of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange's daily
quotation sheets for the five business days immediately preceding
the offer date: and |iii) the nominal value of the shares. Details of
the scheme are set out in the circular of the Company dated 29

August 2012.

The remaining life of the Scheme

The Scheme will remain in force until 14 September 2022, being
the date which falls ten years after the date of adoption of the
Scheme.
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Details of the share options movement and outstanding as at 31
December 2022 have been disclosed in Note 29 to the financial
statements.

During the Reporting Year, no share options was granted, exercised or
lapsed and no outstanding share option as af 31 December 2022.

The Scheme had been lapsed on 14 September 2022.

DIRECTORS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2022 and up fo the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors:

Mr. lei Hong Wai (Chairman)

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton (Vice Chairman)
Mr. Lleung Alex

Ms. Lo Ming Wan

Mr. Tse Chi Keung

Mr. Yuan Huixia

Independent Non-executive Directors:
Mr. Lai Hok Lim

M. Llien Wai Hung

Mr. Wong Tak Chuen

In accordance with Article 116 of the Company's Arficles, the Directors
retiring by rotation at the forthcoming AGM are Mr. lei Hong Wai, Mr.
Cheung Kwok Wai Elton and Mr. Wong Tak Chuen. They will retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for reelection as Directors at the
Annual General Meeting.
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Biographical defails of Directors and senior management are sef out as
follows:

Executive Directors

Mr. lei Hong Wai, aged 54, has over 15 years of extensive
experience in corporate management, investment and business
development. He is the chairman of the Nomination Committee of the
Board and a member of the Remuneration Committee of the Board. He
also holds directorships in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Lei
is also a director of Eternity Finance Group limited, the substantial
shareholders of the Company within the meaning of Part XV of the
Securities and Futures Ordinance. Mr. Lei is currently the chairman of the
board of direcfors and an executive director of Eternity Investment Limited
("Eternity”), a company listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the "Stock Exchange”] under stock code: 764.
During the period from 10 April 2014 1o 2 September 2015, Mr. lei
was the chairman of the board of directors and an executive director of
Huanxi Media Group Limited (“Huanxi Media”), a company listed on
the Main Board of the Stock Exchange under stock code: 1003. Mr. Lei
was also the chairman of the board of directors and an executive
director of Man Sang International Limited (“Man Sang”), a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange under stock code: 938,
during the period from 31 March 2016 to 3 April 2018 and 26 June
2015 1o 3 April 2018, respectively. In 2002, Mr. lei was a director of
The Chamber of Hong Kong listed Companies Limited, which promotes
interaction amongst its members which are listed companies in Hong
Kong and the People’s Republic of China.

Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton, aged 57, has over 29 years of
experience in the area of corporate finance and securities industries. He
holds a Master Degree in Accounting and Finance from the University of
Lancaster in the United Kingdom. Mr. Cheung is also a director of
Eternity Finance Group Llimited, the substantial shareholders of the
Company within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities and Futures
Ordinance. Mr. Cheung is currently the chairman of the board of
directors and an executive director of Global Mastermind Holdings
Limited ("Global Mastermind”| (stock code: 8063), a company listed on
GEM operated by the Stock Exchange and an executive director of
Eremnity. Mr. Cheung was an executive director of the Company during
the period from 11 October 2016 to 16 December 2016. Mr. Cheung
was also an executive director of Man Sang during the period from 26

June 2015 to 3 April 2018.

54 China Healthwise Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2022

EENEREEABZBEFHBWT

HITES

THESE AR AR TRFEEEE -
WEREBGBERZEZER - HRAEESIREZE
BgXFELRESSTMEEENE - BTRAR
AETHEBRARIEAESRE - TELEETAES
R EAEIEBIZEXVEATIE 2 AN ARl E ERFKE
BEBERRABZE S - F 54 B Bbeniy
Investment Limited CK1BRBEIREBR AT *) ([7k
EXREE]) (—HREBHEZSHFBERAR ([H
D EREM AR ROKRIR : 704) 2 EFE
FTREERTEF N _ZT-—"NEFNA+HZ=-Z
—hFENAZHEHE T4 ABEEEEES
RARI([BZEEE]) (—HREIAERLETZA
A BRI 1003) ESSEFERAITES °
ERANR - E—RNF_A=F+t—HE-_ZT—N
FOMA=ARZFE—RAFAAZTARABE_Z
—N\FOA=HHHE  HFEERABEBEERA
A(TRE]D (—HRBRMER ETM AT - BRHD
R O3B EFSEFNNTEE - NZEZT
T REERBEBLTRARBECES %Y
GrTEAREEKNEQR(NEERPEARLE
Mz EAR)EZEBEE -

RBIELLE  ATHm ROXmERERES
X¥RO - TNFLER BEEREERIERE
S MM BB B - REENAES MEEK
BIEXVEFTIEZ AR R EBREKEMBEEER
[RARIZESE - sRIELERABHCEM EHAF]
REKXBEEBRAR(RERB]) (BMHR
B063) 2 EEEEMRWITESURKIEBEREE Z
WITEF - REAEN _ZT—RF+A+—H=Z
TE-RNE+ - A+ BHEEETAQRMITE
FoREANMNR -_E—RAFERNAZF+BEZZ
—N\EFEEHA-HHHETREZHITES -

* EHES



Report of the Directors
EEEHRE

Mr. leung Alex, aged 44, obtained his Bachelor of Commerce degree
from the University of Auckland, New Zealand in May 2000. Mr.
leung had worked in two infernational accounting firms from December
2000 to February 2012. He is a fellow member of both the Hong
Kong Insfitute of Certified Public Accountants and the CPA Australia. He
has more than 18 years of experience in auditing, accounting and
corporate management as well as in the field of corporate finance,
mergers and acquisition matters, financial and accounting management,
corporate governance and compliance affairs. He also holds
directorships in certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. leung is
currently an executive director of Affluent Parmers Holdings Limited (a
company listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange under stock
code: 1466 and formerly known as Man Sang Jewellery Holdings
Limited). Mr. leung was also an executive director of Man Sang during

the period from 16 October 2014 to 5 November 2018.

Ms. lo Ming Wan, aged 37, obtained her Bachelor of Business
Administration in Accounting and Economics degree from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology in 2007. She is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Chartered
Governance Institute in the United Kingdom and The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Insfitute [formerly known as The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries). She has over 10 years of experience
in auditing, accounting, company secrefarial matters and financial
management.

Mr. Tse Chi Keung, aged 41, obtained his Bachelor Degree of
Accounting from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in 2005. He is
a member of the Hong Kong Institufte of Certified Public Accountants. He
has more than 12 years of experience in auditing, accounting and
financial management gained from certain senior positions in an
infernational accounting firm in Hong Kong and a company listed on the
Main Board of the Stock Exchange in Hong Kong. He also holds
direcforships in certain subsidiaries of the Company.

Mr. Yuan Huixia, aged 42, has been admitted as a practicing solicitor
in the People’s Republic of China and has over 16 years of exfensive
experience in corporate management, investment, legal affairs and
business development. He holds a Doctorate Degree in Law, a Master
Degree in law and a Bachelor Degree in Law from the Southwest
University of Political Science and law in the People’s Republic of
China. During the period from 1 August 2016 to 5 November 2018,

Mr. Yuan was an executive director of Man Sang.
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Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Wong Tak Chuen, aged 58, is a fellow member of Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the Institute of Chartered
Accountants in England and Wales, respectively. He has over 30 years
of experience in auditing, financial management, mergers and
acquisiions gained from certain senior finance related positions in an
infernational accounting firm in Hong Kong, companies listed in Hong
Kong and a company listed in the United States of America. He is
currently o Practicing Certified Public Accountant in Hong Kong. Mr.
Wong is also an independent non-executive director of Huanxi Media
and Efemity. Mr. Wong was also an independent non-executive director
of Man Sang during the period from 12 July 2016 to 5 November
2018.

Mr. Lai Hok Lim, aged 64, has been a practising solicitor in Hong Kong
since 1989. He graduated from the University of Hong Kong with a
Bachelor of Arts Degree and holds a Bachelor of Arts {Law) Degree from
the University of Sussex in the United Kingdom and a Bachelor of Llaw
Degree from Beijing University in the PRC. Mr. Lai is also an
independent non-executive director of Global Mastermind. Mr. Lai was
also an independent non-executive director of Man Sang during the
period from 1 December 2016 to 5 November 2018.

Mr. lien Wai Hung, aged 59, has been a practising solicitor in Hong
Kong since 1997. Mr. lien was also the chairman of the board of
directors and an executive director of Zhi Cheng Holdings Limited, a
company listed on the GEM of the Stock Exchange under stock code:
8130, during the period from 15 September 2010 to 31 July 2018
and 27 April 2010 to 31 July 2018, respectively.
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Company Secretary

Ms. lo Ming Wan, aged 37, obtained her Bachelor of Business
Administration in Accounting and Economics degree from The Hong
Kong University of Science and Technology in 2007. She is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants, The Chartered
Governance Institute in the United Kingdom and The Hong Kong
Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The Hong Kong
Institute of Chartered Secretaries). She has over 10 years of experience
in auditing, accounting, company secretarial matters and financial
management.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

All Executive Directors have entered into a service agreement with the
Company for an inifial term of three year commencing from the date of
their first appointment and also subject to the general requirement of
refirement by rofation and reelection at each annual general meeting of
the Company under the Arficles of Association. The service agreement
shall confinue unless terminated by either party by giving a written
notice. Under the agreement, the Executive Directors will receive an
annual fee.

Apart from the above, none of the Directors has a service contract with
the Company which is not ferminable within one year without payment
of compensation, other than sfatufory compensation.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY

Pursuant to the Articles, every Director shall be entitled o be indemnified
out of the assefs of the Company against all acfions, costs, charges,
damages, expenses, losses and liabilities which he/she may sustain or
incur in the execution of his/her office or otherwise in relation thereto.

The Company has faken out insurance against the liability and costs
associated with defending any proceedings which may be brought
against Directors of the Group.
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DIRECTOR’S MATERIAL INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS AND
CONTRACTS THAT ARE SIGNIFICANT IN RELATION
TO THE COMPANY’S BUSINESS

No transactions, arrangements and contracts of significance in relation
fo the Group's business to which the Company's subsidiaries or fellow
subsidiaries was a party and in which Direcfor of the Company and the
Director’s connected party had a material interest, whether directly or
indirectly, subsisted at the end of the Reporting Year or at any fime
during the Reporting Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

As at the date of this report, Mr. lei Hong Wai (Chairman and
executive director of the Company) and Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton
(Vice Chairman and executive director of the Company) have interest in
approximately 25.99% and 15.29%, respectively, of the issued share
capital of Eternity Investment Limited (stock code: 764, a company
listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange engaging in sale of
financial assets, property investment, money lending, and design and
sale of jewelry products, through themselves and their beneficial interests
in Twin Success International Limited. In addition, Mr. lei Hong Wai is
the chairman of the board of directors and an executive director and
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton is an executive director of Eternity
Investment Limited. Therefore, Eternity Investment Limited competes with
the Group's money lending business and investment in financial
instruments business.

As at 31 December 2022, save as mentioned above, the Directors
were not aware of any business or interest of each Director,
management shareholder and their respective associate, that competes
or may compete with the business of the Group and any other conflict of
interest which any such person have or may have with the Group.
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DIRECTORS" AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S INTERESTS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND DEBENTURES

At 31 December 2022, the interests of the directors and the chief
executive and their associates in the shares, underlying shares and
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations, as
recorded in the register maintained by the Company pursuant fo Section
352 of the Securities and Futures Ordinance, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code for
Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of the
Company

EERTETHAERRSD - HER
7 KRB 2 B

REZZE-_—F+-A=+—H  BARAIREE
FREBEGPIE 352G FE 2 B M sr - 2k
BARFIRBRRIE EMETABESHEITES
R ZIZETHRERN EELTETHAER
NS 7 B A TR AR R R EARRSEE 2 A -
TERARR (D MEH R A 2R T

AARERAEZHE - BAEBERZHFR

Percentage of

Number of the issued share

issued ordinary capital of

Name of director Capacity shares held the Company
BEZEB#T EARARE T

EEnE 54 ZER#E RABE DL
Mr. Lei Hong Wai Beneficial owner 56,663,636 7.35%

TR A BEREAA

Other than as disclosed above, none of the directors, chief executive
nor their associates had any inferests or short positions in any shares,
underlying shares or debentures of the Company or any of its associated
corporations aft 31 December 2022.
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS

At 31 December 2022, the register of substantial shareholders
maintained by the Company pursuant fo Section 336 of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance shows that the following shareholders had
notified the Company of relevant interests in the issued share capital of
the Company.

(@) Long positions in ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each of

FERR

R —F+-A=+—H KRAREE:
FHIEIEDGIE 330K TFE 2 T ERRELMET -
THRREREEARACEITRAZ GBER

HEART

(o) FALFEREAEZHZT-EAEBERZ

the Company FAa
Percentage of
Number of the issued share
issued ordinary capital of
Name of shareholder Capacity shares held the Company
BEZE8T HARATE BT
BREEHE S ZEREE BABD K
Eternity Finance Group Limited Beneficial owner 165,662,824 21.50%
KEMBEBERAR EmlEEA
Riche (BVI) Limited Inferest in a controlled corporation 165,662,824 21.50%
2 EEER
Eternity Investment Limited Inferest in a controlled corporation 165,662,824 21.50%
KERBREERAF Sy AE RS
Notes: Btet -

These Shares were registered in the name of Eternity Finance Group
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Riche (BVI) Limited, which in turn is
wholly-owned by Efernity Invesiments Limited, the shares of which are listed
on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange under sfock code: 764.
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(b) Convertible bonds

(b) THRRES

Number of

convertible Number of
Name of shareholder Capacity bonds held  underlying shares

FRzTBRR
RER &M ) BxEE HEROEAE
Heng Tai Finance Limited Beneficial owner 190,263,157 190,263,157
BEmEAA

Heng Tai Consumables Group Limited  Inferest in a controlled corporation 190,263,157 190,263,157
FTRHEEREEBRAR REEE kR
Notes: liof3

These convertible bonds were registered in the name of Heng Tai Finance
Limited, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Heng Tai Consumables Group
Limited, the shares of which are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange under stock code: 197.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2022, the Directors are
not aware of any other person or corporation having an interest or short
position in shares and underlying shares of the Company or its
associated corporation(s) which would require to be recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant fo section 336 of
Part XV of the SFO.
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DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.13 OF THE
LISTING RULES

As at 31 December 2022, the outstanding balance of the loan made
by the Group to the following borrowers, all are independent third party
customers, which exceeds 8% under the assets ratio defined under Rule

14.07(1] of the Listing Rules.

BRiE L TRAE 1313 HRELEE

R-ZZE-_—F+=-A=+—8 ' AQFATHE
PN EBEBILE=FRE)EHERZREE
FREE M2 SHMABEH ETRRE 14.0701){&FT
REBELRZEBEDZ/\ °

Gross Allowance Details refers
Interest rate carrying for ECL  Net carrying to the announcement
Borrower per annum amounts recognised amounts of the Company dated
REER
RMEEER RERXB TSI BEHZ
BRA FR=R BAREE FHRZBE FIREE DNEFRFRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THTT THBTT THETT
Yuen Hoi Po 8% 60,828 (60,828 - 4 July 2018 and 8 July 2020
REBK —E-NFEAWERAR
S WS AN
He Jianmin 12% 67,865 (67,865) - 3 October 2019
2R —ZE-NFt+A=H
Chan Koon Wa Q% 50,315 (821) 49,494 6 December 2020
PR 5 —ETFE+AXA

DISCLOSURE OF DIRECTORS * INFORMATION
PURSUANT TO RULE 13.51B(1) OF THE LISTING RULES

There is no change to the information of the Directors during the year
ended 31 December 2022 and up fo the date of this report.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

In the event that the Company issues, otherwise than pursuant fo the Old
Scheme and the Scheme, for cash consideration of any new shares or
securities [including options and warrants) in the Company convertible
into ordinary shares (the “New Issue Securities”), the holders of the
Company's preference shares (the “Preference Shares”) are entfifled to
subscribe, or procure subscribers to subscribe, for all or part of the New
Issue Securities. Any New Issue Securifies not subscribed for by the
holders of Preference Shares may be subscribed for by the holders of
ordinary shares in the Company upon terms and conditions no more
favourable than those offered to the holder of Preference Shares.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

Other than the confracts of service with the Directors or any persons
engaged in the fulltime employment of the Group, no confracts
concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of the business of the Group were entered info or exisfed
during the Year.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentage of sales and purchases atiributable to the Group's

of the Directé‘)rs

Ei!ﬂlﬂ?!sh

EEEY
ARFERN  ARABREFANFEBELL

BTE2EMALARFTZREE DN

B

AEBEZBRBIIAEENDEBZEIERITK

RIMERFEERMAELD -

FEREFRMER

AEEHATFPRHEEMEZHERERBED

largest customers and suppliers are as follows: R
For the For the
year ended year ended
31 December 31 December
2022 2021
B= HE
—E-F —E-—F
+=A=+—-H +t-HA=t+—H
LEFE IFFE
% %
— the largest customer — ZARF 3 3
— five largest customers combined — EREFAR ? 11
— the largest supplier — &RAHER 23 27
— five largest suppliers combined — AAHEREEET 65 70

No Directors or their associates [as defined in the Listing Rules) and no
shareholders (which fo the knowledge of the directors own more than 5%
of the Company's share capital] had an interest in the major suppliers or
customers nofed above.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee had reviewed (together with the management and
external auditor) the accounting principles and policies adopted by the

Group and the audited consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2022.
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INDEPENDENCE OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received from each Independent Non-executive
Director an annual confirmation of his independence pursuant fo Rule
3.13 of the Llisting Rules. The Company considers that all of the
Independent Non-executive Directors are independent.

CHANGE OF AUDITORS

BDO Llimited has resigned as the auditor of the Company with effect
from 23 July 2020. HIB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited has been
appointed as the auditor of the Company with effect from 27 July 2020
to fill the casual vacancy.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited shall refire in the forthcoming annual
general meeting of the Company and, being eligible, will offer
themselves for re-appoiniment. A resolution for the re-appointment of HLB
Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited as auditor of the Company will be
proposed af the forthcoming annual general meeting.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES, CUSTOMERS
AND SUPPLIERS

The Company is committed fo maintaining, and has mainfoined good
relationships with, its employees, customers and suppliers with a view to
fostering better mutual understanding and/or a sense of belonging
towards the Company. This is conducive o implementing the Group's
strategies and business objectives, as well as the Group's business
development and sustainability in the long term.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE

As a responsible corporation, the Company is commitied fo profecting
the environment in the areas where we operate. To ensure our business
development and sustainability, the Company endeavors fo comply with
the laws and regulations regarding environmental protection and fo
adopt effective measures fo achieve efficient use of resources, energy
saving and waste reduction.
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SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the Company and
within the knowledge of its Directors as at the latest practicable date
prior to the issue of this report, the public float of the shares of the
Company is sufficient to meet the minimum level as prescribed in the
Listing Rules.

AUDITORS

The financial statements have been audited by HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited who will retire and, being eligible, offer themselves for
re-appointment. A resolution for the appointment of HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng limited as auditors of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Company's corporate governance principles and practice are set
out in the Corporate Governance Report on pages 25 to 47 of this
Annual Report.

On behalf of the Board
China Healthwise Holdings Limited

Lei Hong Wai
Chairman and executive Director

28 March 2023
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Independent Auditors’ Report
|3 BE R E

HLB) B #7 & @ ¥ # o 4 ma 4

HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA HEALTHWISE HOLDINGS
LIMITED
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China
Healthwise Holdings Limited (the "Company”) and its subsidiaries
(collectively referred to as the "Group”) set out on pages 72 to 204,
which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31
December 2022, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in
equity and consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended,
and nofes fo the consolidated financial statements, including a summary
of significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a frue and fair
view of the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31
December 2022, and of its consolidated financial performance and its
consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards ["HKFRSs") issued by the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing ("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Audifors’ Responsibilities for
the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA's
Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the "Code”), and we have
fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate fo provide a basis for our opinion.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
3L % BEh iR

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement,
were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the
context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole,

BRELEE

MRERFAEREBEEF CBEHE  HAHR
EBUBBRRCBEREAEEZEH - HEFHEE
EESERERSAVBERRRB AR RKETT
RRIEH) c BEETEHELFREREB LR -

and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key audit matter

BREREE

Expected credit losses (“ECL”) assessment on loan
receivables

ERER:AREEER (RNFERR] G

Refer to Note 23 to the consolidated financial statements.

FE2RE A M MARMEE 23 -

At 31 December 2022, the carrying amounts of loan
receivables was approximately HK$134,051,000.
Accumulated allowance for ECL of approximately
HK$186,749,000 was provided for loan receivables.
RZE-_—_F+-A=+—HB BEREXREEEDLDR
—EB=THEZRE - TET EHERERRES
EEBRRABEBEH —RNA\TFRELTHEEATET -

During the year ended 31 December 2022, allowance for
ECL of approximately HK$24,784,000 was recognised for
loan receivables.

HE_Z-__F+_RA=+—HIFE EREKER
BREHEEEREBEN _TOa Lt \BOTFET -

At each reporting datfe, the Group assesses whether there
has been a significant increase in credit risk for exposures.
The Group considers reasonable and supportable
information including historical and forward-looking
information that is relevant and available without undue cost
or effort for this purpose.

REREEH - SXEFEESERBREGAEEM &
SEZRETERUNETEEXRAEIBNTEFZE
BRAFXFZEBER  BREBENATRMEER

We identified ECL assessments on loan receivables as a key
audit matter due fo use of significant judgement and
estimates.
BEERERERBREEBEN GEN SEREZE
B RERE P ERERHE R

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

EEEREREERZAN

QOur procedures in relation to management’s ECL assessment on
loan receivables included but not limited to:
BEENEEEHRRERFLZBAREEERNGEEITZRE
Fr B8 (BTRR)

Understanding the credit control procedures performed by
management, including ifs procedures on periodic review
of loan receivables and ECL assessment on loan
receivables:

THREBEMETEEEEER BEFBREKER
MEWE Sz EEEBIET 2 EHEMER

Checking, on a sample basis, the accuracy of aging
profile of loan receivables to the underlying agreements;

75 3B 1% AR A thp i T A A B PR M B R B e 2 AR

Checking, on a sample basis, the subsequent sefilement of
loan receivables to bank receipts; and

AR B W S R SRIT YR 2 IR AEE - )

Assessing the appropriateness of the ECL provision
methodology, examining the key data inputs on a sample
basis fo assess their accuracy and completeness, and
challenging the assumptions, including both historical and
forward-ooking information, used to determine the ECL.
HMEEREEERBRIARDEE  mEMREBA
HEAFEHRRERTE  YERARETERGE
EBEMARE  BRELRATELER -

We found that the management judgement and estimates used
in ECL assessment on loan receivables were supported by
available evidences.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
|3 BE R E

OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual report, but
does not include the consolidated financial statements and our auditors’
report thereon [the "Other Information”).

Qur opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the
Other Information and we do not express any form of assurance
conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the Other Information and, in doing so, consider
whether the Other Information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the
audit or otherwise appears fo be materially misstated. If, based on the
work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this Other Information, we are required to report that
fact. We have nothing fo report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with
HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and for such internal control as the
directors defermine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are
responsible for assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going
concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concem
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors
either infend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial
reporting process.
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Independent Auditors’ Report
3L % BEh iR

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obfain reasonable assurance about whether the
consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors’
report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept
liability to any other person for the confents of this report. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a
material missiatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate,
they could reasonably be expected fo influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional
judgement and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

We also:

e Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the
consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error,
design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks,
and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a
material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery,
infentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of infernal
confrol.

e Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in
order fo design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on
the effectiveness of the Group's inferal control.

e Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures
made by the directors.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going
concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group's ability to
continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncerfainty exisfts, we are required to draw attention in our
auditors’ report to the related disclosures in the consolidated
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up fo the date of our auditors’ report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease fo
continue as a going concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the
consolidated financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities within the
Group fo express an opinion on the consolidated financial
statements. VWe are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other

matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit

findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have

complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence,

and fo communicate with them all relationships and other matters that

may reasonably be thought fo bear on our independence, and where

applicable, actions taken to eliminate threats or sofeguards applied.
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Continued)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine

those matters that were of most significance in the audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. VWe describe these matters in our auditors’ report
unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a mafter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected 1o outweigh
the public interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in this independent
auditors’ report is Hon Koon Fai, Alex.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hon Koon Fai, Alex
Practising Cerfificate Number: PO5029

Hong Kong, 28 March 2023
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Inc

FeERaRRfMEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZEZE=ZT=_—F +-_A=1+—HIEFE

2022 2021
—E-C—F T
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B EE THET FHET
Revenue WA 6 142,058 170,079
Cost of sales SHE KA (88,788 (79,085)
Gross profit Al 53,270 90, QQA
Other income, gains and losses, nef Ealg A - Wezs M EE - FEE 7 (10,09¢) (15,146)
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHEZH (28,542) (31 083)
General and administrative expenses —RITHRER (38,330) (33,090)
Finance costs BE AR Q (7,297) (6,410)
Impairment loss under expected RHEEBERREET
credit loss model VERIZN S| (24,784) (102,606
Impairment loss on property, M - BB RREREEE
plant and equipment 15 - (216)
Impairment loss on rightof-use assets FR#EEERERIE 16 (622) (3,023)
Loss before income tax FRETSTRIEE 8 (56,401) (100,580)
Income tax credit/ (expense) Fristiie / (Fx) 10 2,127 (2,466)
Loss for the year FARER (54,274) (103,046
Other comprehensive loss,net of tax HRBEARHM2EER
llem that may be reclassified subsequently ~ H & AJft & B H B E
to profit or loss: BamoHA -
Exchange differences arising from BMEBINEREE L
franslation of foreign operations fEH = (141) (181)
Other comprehensive loss for the year, FRMBRTIAR
net of tax Hith 2 HEE (141) (181)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FREEEERE (54,415) (103,227)
Loss for the year affributable fo RATHER NEGFRNER
owners of the Company (54,274) (103,040)
Total comprehensive loss attributable to RARHER AEEEHERER
owners of the Company (54,415) (1083,227)
Loss per share aftributable to owners of RARER AEGERESR
the Company
— Basic and diluted — BEARREE (7.04) (13.37)
12 cents Al cents Il
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position
FEaMBERALE
As af 31 December 2022 MR-ZE-_—_F+_A=+—H

2022 2021
—E-— —E-—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
ihg=s FHET BT
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES BEREE
Non-current assets FREBEE
Property, plant and equipment Wz - B N 15 676 230
Rightof-use assefs FREESE 16 6,077 2,284
Financial assets at fair value Through BRATEFAERCERMEE
profit or loss 20 1,143 2,400
Deferred tax assets BIERTBE E 27 2,697 1,142
Loan receivables EWE 23 2,049 106,180
12,642 112,236
Current assets REEE
Inventories =g 21 55,121 60,713
Trade and other receivables, deposits FEWE 5 B8R 5 N E b fE W 5koE
and prepayments e MIENFKIA 22 14,721 11,843
Lloan receivables B E TR 23 132,002 32,392
Tax recoverable Al BT I8 153 -
Financial assets af fair value through BRATEFAEBRE CERMEE
profit or loss 20 56,170 56,904
Cash and cash equivalents BHeMBEEEY 24 16,850 40,007
275,017 201,859
Current liabilities REEE
Trade and other payables and JERTE BRI H AR BN 5RIR
accrued charges KIEFTE A 25 35,965 26,610
Lease liabilities HE&E 16 4,752 5,135
Borrowings EBE 26 31,264 12,036
Tax payable FESTIA 2,775 3,562
Convertible loan notes AR E R R 34 - 72,300
74,756 119,643
Net current assets REBEEFE 200,261 82,216
Total assets less current liabilities HEERRBAR 212,903 194,452
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C lidated S

S BERRAE
31 December 2022 W=

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—4F
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
ihg=s FHET BT

Non-current liabilities kRBAE
Lease liabilities HEEE 16 2,843 1,388
Convertible loan notes AR E R EE 34 71,043 -
Deferred tax liabilities FEERIEAE 27 368 -
74,254 1,388
Net assets EEZFE 138,649 193,064

EQUITY Em

Share capital A% 7R 28 7,705 7,705
Reserves s 130,944 185,359
Total equity BRERS 138,649 193,064

The consolidated financial statements were approved and authorised for
issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2023 and are signed on ifs

behalf by:

Lei Hong Wai
TR

Director

The accompanying notes form an integral part of these consolidated

financial statements.
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“hanges in ty
FEREBR
F+=ZA=+—8
(Accumulated
Convertible Exchange losses)/
Share Share  loan notes — fluctuation retained
capital premium equity reserve reserve profits Total
G4
EREE - (RitE5E)
&N RRE BEREE ELRDREE REEF Bt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FHET FHET FHET FET
(Note 28)
(P=E28)
At 1 January 2021 R-—TE-_—%F—A—H 770,481 337,166 19,835 11,074 (842,265) 296,291
Exchange differences arising on BEBINEBEECERERE
franslation of foreign operations - - - (181) - (181)
Loss for the year FERNEE - - - - (103,0406) (103,046)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FERNEEEEBEE - - - (181) (103,046) (103,227)
Capital reorganisation (Nofe 28) EAREB(FEE28) (762,776] (311,491) - - 1,074,267 -
At 31 December 2021 and HW-ZEZ-—F+-A=+—H
1 January 2022 —E--4%—A—H 7,705 25,675 19,835 10,893 128,956 193,064
Exchange differences arising on BREBINEBEECERERE
translation of foreign operations - - - (1471) - (141)
Loss for the year FAEE - - - - (54,274) (54,274)
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEREHEBEEE - - - (141) (54,274) (54,415
Deregistration of a subsidiary A —HNB AR - - - (11,228) 11,228 -
At 31 December 2022 RZTEZ=F+=ZA=1+—H 7,705 25,675 19,835 [476] 85,910 138,649
Nature and purpose of reserves are disclosed in Note 30 to the & ZMEE K& B MRERE B IS HMEM 7 S0HE -
consolidated financial statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

FeERenER

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE_FE-__F+-_HA=+—HIFE

2022 2021
—E-= ZE-—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P EE THET FABT
Operating activities RExK
loss before income tax BRPTS T AIEE (56,401) (100,580)
Adjustments for: MATIEE AR
Interest expenses FMEM% Q 7,297 6,410
Depreciation of property, M - BEREREITE
plant and equipment 15 184 309
Depreciation of right-of-use assefs EREEENE 16 3,120 3,889
Impairment loss on property, M BB RRERERSRE
plant and equipment 15 - 216
Impairment loss on rightof-use assets FREEERBESE 16 622 3,023
Impairment loss on loan receivables, net W E FORE BB F5E 23 24,784 102,606
Gain on modification of BRI AT IR E R RIR 2 W
convertible loan notes 7 (2,459) -
Covid-19-related rent concession Covid-19 tEEEFE &R 2 7 (160) (152)
Loss on written off of property, WM - BERREEE
plant and equipment 7 1 -
Fair value loss on financial assets BATERABRZ
at fair value through profit or loss, net CREECATE
E R 7 15,325 15,300
Operating cash flows before working EEBAREHA K EBRERE
capital changes (7,687) 31,021
Decrease/|increase) in inventories FERL,/ () 5,592 (12,749)
(Increase)/decrease in trade and other U E 5 BRI H A e L zkIE
receivables, deposits and prepayments Be RIARFIEEM), RS (2,878) 1,726
Increase in loan receivables JE I E SR 1 (20,263) [18,064)
Increase in trade and other payables JE B 2R R E M E RIE R
and accrued charges et & RN 10,231 /7,339
(Increase)/decrease in financial assets ot IR A F(EFABZEZ
fair value through profit or loss SREE M), IR (13,334) 33,095
Cash (used in)/generated from operations  #&& %7 (FTA), /B3 23R & (28,339) 42,368
Income tax paid ERPTISH = (285)
Net cash (used in)/generated from KEEE (FTA) Fiigz
operating activities Re 38 (28,339) 42,083
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2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
k=3 FHET THETT
Investing activities REEE
Purchase of property, plant and equipment BEE 1% - B&E K& B 15 (631) (360)
Net cash used in investing activities RETEMAZRESFE (631) (360)
Financing activities RMEEE
Inferest paid ENFE 35 (6,971) (7,464)
New borrowings EIREEE 35 19,228 -
Repayment of borrowings EEEBN 35 = (7,964
Repayment of convertible loan notes BE R ERER 35 - (13,200)
Repayment of principal portion of BEREaB RS
lease liabilities 35 (6,303) (7,736)
Net cash generated from/(used in) REEB S (FTA)
financing activities ZHREEEE 5,954 (36,364)
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and ReERBEESEEY
cash equivalents (RD),/ & nEE (23,016) 5,359
Effect of foreign exchange rate changes ~ SMEE &8 &)~ §/ & (141) (181)
Cash and cash equivalents at FHIzRERASEEY
the beginning of the year 40,007 34,829
Cash and cash equivalents at FRzZASRASEEY
the end of the year 16,850 40,007
Represented by: =i
Cash and cash equivalents BHeMESEEY 24 16,850 40,007
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ORGANISATION AND OPERATIONS
China Healthwise Holdings limited AR EI%S gEfE B AR AR A

(the “Company”] is a limited liability company incorporated in The
Cayman Islands. lts shares are listed on the Main Board of The
Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).
The address of its registered oﬁ(ice is P.O. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands, and the
principal place of business of The Company is af Unit 1209, Shun
Tak Centre, West Tower, 168-200 Connaught Road Cenfral,
Hong Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company and principally
engaged in investment in financial instruments. lts subsidiaries
(fogether with the Company referred to as the "Group”) are
principally engaged in sale of Chinese health products, money
lending business and investment in financial instruments.

The principal activities of ifs subsidiaries are set out in Note 19 to
the consolidated financial statements.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong
dollars {"HK$"), which is the same as the functional currency of
the Company and all amounts are rounded to the nearest
thousand (HK$'000) except otherwise indicated.

Details of the substantial shareholders of the Company are

disclosed in the section headed “Substantial Shareholders” in the
Report of the Directors of the annual report.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—T - —F+ - A=+—HILFE

2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs”)

(@) Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year

In the current year, the Group has applied the following
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants for the first time, which are
mandatorily effective for the annual period beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements:

Amendments fo HKFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework
Amendments fo HKAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment

— Proceeds before

Infended Use
Amendments to HKAS 37 Onerous Confracts

— Cost of Fulfilling

a Contract
Amendments to HKFRSs Annual Improvements fo

HKFRSs 2018-2020

In addition, the Group applied the agenda decision(s) of
the Committee of the International Accounting Standards
Board (the “"Committee”).

The application of the amendments to HKFRSs and the
Committee's agenda decision(s) in the current year has had
no material impact on the Group's financial positions and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on the
disclosures set out in these consolidated financial statements.

2. EREEBMBHRELEN(EFEM
B|EER BT A

(a)

RAEFEBHER 2EBUBRE
HEAMERT 2

WEFE - AEERNEREA T HH
KB EREAEERHHARFES
R-E-—&—A- ARz EMHB
4 [ AR ) A 2 2 R B BB RIS 3R
EARBE A

BEMBMEEL  REBSER

EREACEIR
BAGER nE - BERRE -
F16RETA RERZAZ
SR
BB GHER ZEAH - BTAN

% 37 RIEF AR A
BEMBREEN  BAMHREER

EHEN —E-\FZ
- S
FENE

o AEEEABR S EANES
e@TZEe(ZBe)ZFRRE -

RAFERBEBYBRE LR ZE
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2. APPLICATION OF AMENDMENTS TO HONG
KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS

2. EREAMBEREERN(EFEEH
B EER )BT @)

("H KFRSS") (Continued)

(b) New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not

yet effective

The Group has not early applied the following new and

amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but are not

vet effective:

HKFRS 17 (including the
October 2020 and
February 2022

Amendments to HKFRS 17)

Amendments to HKFRS 10
and HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRS 16
Amendments to HKAS 1

Amendments to HKAS 1 and

HKFRS Practice

Statement 2

Amendments to HKAS 8

Amendments to HKAS 12

2023.
2024.

be determined.

Insurance Contracts!

Sale or Contribution of Assets
between an Investor and ifs
Associate or Joint Venture®

lease Liability in a Sale and
leaseback?

Classification of Liabilities as
Current or Non-current and
related amendments to Hong
Kong Interpretation 5 [2020)?

Disclosure of Accounting Policies'

Definition of Accounting Esfimates’'

Deferred Tax related to Assefs and
liabilities arising from
a Single Transaction'

Effective for annual periods beginning on or affer 1 January
Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to

The direcfors anticipate that the application of all new and

amendments to HKFRSs will have no material impact on the

consolidated financial statements in the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—T - —F+ - A=+—HILFE

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared in
accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA. For the purpose
of preparation of the consolidated financial statements, information
is considered material if such information is reasonably expected
fo influence decisions made by primary users. In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the
Stock Exchange (the “Listing Rules”) and by the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis except for financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss ("FVTPL"), which are measured at fair values
as explained in the accounting policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for good and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received fo sell an asset or
paid to fransfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
parficipants af the measurement date, regardless of whether that
price is direclly observable or estimated using another valuation
fechnique. In estimating the fair value of an asset or a liability, the
Group fakes info account the characteristics of the asset or liability
if market participants would take those characterisfics info account
when pricing the asset or liability af the measurement date. Fair
value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in these
consolidated financial statements is determined on such a basis,
except for share-based payment transactions that are within the
scope of HKFRS 2 Share-based Payment, leasing fransactions that
are accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 16 leases, and
measurements that have some similarifies to fair value but are not
fair value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories or
value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of Asses.
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BASIS OF PREPARATION (Continuved)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value

measurements are categorised info level 1, 2 or 3 based on the

degree to which the inputs fo the fair value measurements are

observable and the significance of the inputs to the fair value

measurement in its entirety, which are described as follows:

level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
markets for identical assets or liabilities that the entity can
access at the measurement date;

level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices included
within level 1, that are observable for the asset or liability,
either direcﬂ\/ or indirecﬂ\/; and

level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset or

liability.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

(a)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and ifs subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

*  has power over the investee;

e s exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

° has the ability to use its power to affect its refurns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it confrols an investee
it facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes fo
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases fo control the subsidiary.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(a)

(b)

Basis of consolidation (Continued)

When necessary, adjustments are made fo the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
in line with the Group's accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
Opfiono\ concentration fest

The Group can elect to apply an optional concentration
fest, on a transaction- by-transaction basis, that permits a
simplified assessment of whether an acquired set of acfivifies
and assefs is not a business. The concentration test is met if
substantially all of the fair value of the gross assets acquired
is concentrated in a single identifiable asset or group of
similar identifiable assets. The gross assefs under assessment
exclude cash and cash equivalents, deferred tax assets, and
goodwill resulting from the effects of deferred tax liabilities.
If the concentration test is met, the set of activities and assets
is defermined not to be a business and no further assessment
is needed.

Asset acquisitions

When the Group acquires a group of assets and liabilities
that do not constitute a business, the Group identifies and
recognises the individual identifiable assefs acquired and
liabilities assumed by allocating the purchase price first to
financial assets or financial liabilities at the respective fair
values, the remaining balance of the purchase price is then
allocated to the other identifiable assefs and liabilities on
the basis of their relative fair values at the date of purchase.
Such a fransaction does not give rise to goodwill or bargain
purchase gain.

4. ETESHBE®)

(a)

(b)

PEBRERRERERAR

REEEE)

WERARZHBERENEBEERT
AE - AEHEHRERAKE S
BF—H -

FIAEASBEREBRAHRXSEBLZ
SEHARRHEERGE #m W
A RAXEBAEREANGAKRARK
BB -

EBEHIANBEE
AT SRR A

AEEAEZENERAXZHELERAA
BEFEAS ATHEMAEE —EE
BREERBYWIF—REBIFHILT
- MATRBREEZ ARBELTE
MEMETEE A HAEESK AR
PRIBRIEES - A A ST A -
HEZRBEETBRASRASEE
Y EERBEE  RARTEHRER
BEEELEZHE - WAAETEAR
Ao MR REEREE R IFE
5 R BAVEE — B a¥E -

WEEE

EAEEKBE - HEEMETEK—
AR - AR AR I HE R (E B A]
BAlz B EERAARAE &
TEBEREEERZERAFES
EESREELERAG  BEER
BREHERENBE AR ZHERRY
BEOEEEMER BN ZEERE
B ZEXFUTSELBHENHE
BEME -

T —FIR 83



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i & M58 R
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE_FE-__F+-_HA=+—HIFE

4.

84

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations

A business is an infegrated set of activities and assefs which
includes an input and a substantive process that together
significantly contribute fo the ability fo create outputs. The
acquired processes are considered substantive if they are
critical to the ability fo continue producing outputs, including
an organised workforce with the necessary skills,
knowledge, or experience to perform the related processes
or they significantly confribute to the ability to continue
producing outputs and are considered unique or scarce or
cannot be replaced without significant cost, effort, or delay
in the ability to continue producing outputs.

Acquisitions of businesses are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred in a
business combination is measured at fair value, which is
calculated as the sum of the acquisition-date fair values of
the assets transferred by the Group, liabilities incurred by
the Group to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group in exchange for control
of the acquiree. Acquisition-related costs are generally
recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

For business combinations in which the acquisition date is
on or after 1 January 2022, the identifiable assets acquired
and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of an asset
and a liability in the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting 2018 issued in June 2018 (the "Conceptual
Framework”) except for fransactions and events within the
scope of HKAS 37 or HK(IFRICHnt 21, in which the Group
applies HKAS 37 or HK(IFRIC)-Int 21 instead of the
Conceptual Framework to identify the liabilities it has
assumed in a business combination. Contingent assefs are
not recognised.

China Healthwise Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2022

4. ETESHBE®)

(b)

EBREHBWBEE (B)

XBast

EBR—BERDPREE  HFERE
—HERAR—EEZEE HHRY
BUEEL ZRENEREXRER » fiPr
BEZERHBEBIEEL ZENE
HEZ BERAALEREE  MEX
i B 2 58 RATHERE
BN EHHEREEELZENA
EXRER Y ARRSZBIFONMG
R REEEEEEEL 2N
EHFERARA - BAHLERZER
TR EA - AR BEEEN -

WRE R YA BB EARR - X554 6
BREIREDARFEFE  ZF
ERAAKREEREENKRERNZ
RV E NEEEWKES ZER
ANESEZ B ERAE B TR
W RE 5 12 A 2 B M 28 2 48D © IR
RN AR ELER IR AR -

FWERAR —_ZE-——F—-A—H%
ZRZEBEHNE  FIRIEZ T
FIBEMMEAREZABVAFEGZE
—NERARMz —FE— \FH K
EHSEL(HRERLD)NEERE
B2EE  WEBFERIZE 375k
BB (HEEUBREREZES) -2
BE2IREENZZHREMHRIN
RZBEAT  AEEERBEBSFE
RBIE 379k BB (BRI B mE e
TEe)-REBE2IRmIEHSIESR
NERIEREBEHPEECARE -
HAEEADTHER ©



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—T - —F+ - A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(b)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

At the acquisition date, the identifiable assefs acquired and

the liabilities assumed are recognised at their fair value,

except that:

deferred tax assets or liabilities, and assets or
liabilities related to employee benefit arrangements
are recognised and measured in accordance with

HKAS 12 Income Taxes and HKAS 19 Employee
Benefits respectively;

liabilities or equity instruments related to share-based
payment arrangements of the acquiree or share-based
payment arrangements of the Group entfered info fo
replace share-based payment arrangements of the
acquiree are measured in accordance with HKFRS 2
at the acquisition date [see the accounting policy
below);

assets [or disposal groups) that are classified as held
for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations are
measured in accordance with that standard: and

lease liabilities are recognised and measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments (as
defined in HKFRS 16) as if the acquired leases were
new leases at the acquisition dafe, except for leases
for which (a) the lease term ends within 12 months of
the acquisition date; or (b] the underlying asset is of
low value. Right-of-use assets are recognised and
measured af the same amount as the relevant lease
liabilities, adjusted to reflect favourable or
unfavourable ferms of the lease when compared with
market terms.
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4.

86

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(b)

Business combinations or asset acquisitions
(Continued)

Business combinations (Continued)

Goodwill is measured as the excess of the sum of the
consideration fransferred, the amount of any non-confrolling
inferesfs in the acquiree, and the fair value of the acquirer's
previously held equity inferest in the acquiree [if any) over
the net amount of the idenfifiable assets acquired and the
liabilities assumed at acquisition date. If, affer re-assessment,
the net amount of the identifiable assets acquired and
liabilities assumed exceeds the sum of the consideration
transferred, the amount of any non-controlling inferests in the
acquiree and the fair value of the acquirer’s previously held
interest in the acquiree (if any), the excess is recognised
immediately in profit or loss as a bargain purchase gain.

Non-confrolling interests that are present ownership interests
and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of the
relevant subsidiary’s net assets in the event of liquidation are
initially measured at the non-controlling interests’
proportionate share of the recognised amounts of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets or at fair value. The choice

of measurement basis is made on a transaction-by-

transaction basis.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(c)

Goodwill

Goodwill arising on an acquisition of a business is carried
at cost as esfablished at the dafe of acquisition of the
business less accumulated impairment losses, if any.

For the purposes of impairment testing, goodwill is allocated
to each of the Group's cash-generating units ("CGU") (or
groups of CGUs) that is expected to benefit from the
synergies of the combination, which represent the lowest
level at which the goodwill is monitored for internal
management purposes and not larger than an operating
segment.

A CGU (or group of CGUs) to which goodwill has been
allocated is tested for impairment annually, or more
frequently when there is indication that the unit may be
impaired. For goodwill arising on an acquisition in a
reporting period, the CGU (or group of CGUs| fo which
goodwill has been allocated is tested for impairment before
the end of that reporting period. If the recoverable amount
of the CGU is less than ifs carrying amount, the impairment
loss is allocated first fo reduce the carrying amount of any
goodwill allocated 1o the unit and then fo the other assets of
the unit on a pro-rata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit (or group of CGUs|.

On disposal of the relevant CGU or any of the CGU within
the group of CGUs, the atfributable amount of goodwill is
included in the determination of the amount of profit or loss
on disposal. When the Group disposes of an operation
within the CGU (or a CGU within a group of CGUs), the
amount of goodwill disposed of is measured on the basis of
the relative values of the operation (or the CGU) disposed
of and the portion of the CGU (or the group of CGUs)

retained.
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4.

88

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(d)

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are tangible assets that held
for use in the production or supply of goods or services, or
for administrative purposes, are stated in the consolidated
statement of financial position at cost, less subsequent
accumulated depreciation and subsequent accumulated
impairment losses, if any.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of
assets less their residual values over their estimated useful
lives, using the straightline method. The estimated useful
lives, residual values and depreciation method are reviewed
at the end of each reporting period, with the effect of any
changes in estimate accounted for on a prospective basis.
The principal annual rates are as follows:
Leasehold improvements Over the shorter of the lease
terms and 5-20 years
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 2-5 years
An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected fo arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or refirement of an item
of property, plant and equipment is defermined as the
difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the assef and is recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

()

Leases
Definition of a lease

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a period of
fime in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified on or ofter the date of
initial application or arising from business combinations, the
Group assesses whether a confract is or confains a lease
based on the definition under HKFRS 16 at inception,
modification date or acquisition date, as appropriate. Such
contract will not be reassessed unless the terms and
conditions of the confract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee
Allocation of consideration to components of a confract

For a confract that contains a lease component and one or
more additional lease or nonlease components, the Group
allocates the consideration in the contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative standalone price of
the lease component and the aggregate stand-alone price
of the non-ease components.

The Group applies practical expedient not to separate non-
lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated non-
lease components as a single lease component.

Shortterm leases and leases of low~value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption fo leases that have a lease ferm of 12 months or
less from the commencement date and do not contain a
purchase option. It also applies the recognition exemption
for lease of low-value assefs. lease payments on shortterm
leases and leases of low-value assets are recognised as
expense on a sfraightline basis or another systematic basis
over the lease ferm.
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4.

90

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Rightofuse assets

The cost of rightof-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;
* any lease payments made at or before the

commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

®  any inifial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

®  an estimafe of costs to be incurred by the Group in
dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring the
underlying asset to the condition required by the terms
and conditions of the lease other than adjusiments fo
lease liabilities resulting from Covid-19-related rent
concessions in which the Group applied the practical
expedient.

Right-of-use assefs are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabiliies other than
adjustments to lease liabilities resulting from Covid-19-
related rent concessions in which the Group applied the
practical expedient.

Rightof-use assefs in which the Group is reasonably certain
fo obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term is depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assefs are depreciated on a straightline basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—T - —F+ - A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

()

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under HKFRS
9 and inifially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value af initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.

lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the present
value of lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In
calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses the incremental borrowing rate at the lease
commencement date if the interest rate imp|icif in the lease
is not readily determinable.

The lease payments include:

e fixed paymenfs (including in-substance fixed payments)
less any lease incentives receivable;

*  variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rafe, initially measured using the index or rafe as at
the commencement date;

®  amounfs expected to be payable by the Group under
residual value guarantees; and

®  paymenfs of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising an option fo
terminate the lease.

Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or
a rafe are nof included in the measurement of lease
liabilities and right-of-use assets, and are recognised as
expense in the period in which the event or condition that
friggers the payment occurs.

After the commencement dafe, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accrefion and lease payments
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

92

(e)

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
lease liabilities (Continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related rightof-use assets)
whenever:

e the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate af the date of reassessment.

e the lease payments change due fo changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in which
cases the related lease liability is remeasured by
discounting the revised lease payments using the
initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

()

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
lease modifications

Except for Covid-19-related rent concessions in which the
Group applied the practical expedient, the Group accounts
for a lease modification as a separate lease if:

e the modification increases the scope of the lease by
adding the right fo use one or more underlying assets;
and

e the consideration for the leases increases by an
amount commensurate with the stand-alone price for
the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability,
less any lease incentives receivable, based on the lease
term of the modified lease by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the effective date
of the modification.

The Group accounts for the remeasurement of lease
liabilities by making corresponding adjustments to the
relevant right-of-use asset.

When the modified contract contains one or more
additional lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the modified contract to each lease
component on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of
the lease component. The associated non-lease components
are included in the respective lease components.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

()

Leases (Continued)
The Group as a lessee (Continued)
Covid-19-elated rent concessions

In relation to rent concessions that occurred as a direct
consequence of the Covid-19 pandemic, the Group has
elected to apply the practical expedient not to assess
whether the change is a lease modification if all of the
following conditions are met:

e the change in lease payments results in revised
consideration for the lease that is substantially the
same as, or less than, the consideration for the lease
immediately preceding the change;

®  any reduction in lease payments affects only payments

originally due on or before 30 June 2022; and

e there is no substantive change fo other terms and
conditions of the lease.

A lessee applying the practical expedient accounts for
changes in lease payments resulting from rent concessions
the same way it would account for the changes applying
HKFRS 16 if the changes are not a lease modification.
Forgiveness or waiver of lease payments are accounted for
as variable lease payments. The related lease liabilities are
adjusted 1o reflect the amounts forgiven or waived with a
corresponding adjustment recognised in the profit or loss in
the period in which the event occurs.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(f)

Intangible assets
Infangible assefs acquired in a business combination

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
acquired in a business combination are recognised
separately from goodwill and are initially recognised at their
fair value af the acquisition date.

Subsequent to initial recognition, intangible assefs acquired
in a business combination with finite useful lives are carried
at costs less accumulated amortisation and any accumulated
impairment losses, on the same basis as infangible assets
that are acquired separately.

Intangible assets acquired in a business combination with
indefinite useful lives are carried at cost less any subsequent
accumulated impairment losses.

An intangible asset is derecognised on disposal, or when
no future economic benefits are expected from use or
disposal. Gains and losses arising from derecognition of an
infangible assef, measured as the difference between the
net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset,
are recognised in profit or loss when the asset is
derecognised.
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4.

96

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(9)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets other than
goodwill

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assefs and infangible assets other than goodwill with
finite useful lives to defermine whether there is any indication
that those assefs have suffered an impairment loss. If any
such indication exists, the recoverable amount of the asset is
estimated in order fo determine the extent of the impairment
loss, if any. Infangible assets with indefinite useful lives are
test for impairment at least annually, and whenever there is
an indication that they may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment,
right-of-use assets, and intangible assets are estimated
individually. When it is not possible to estimate the
recoverable amount individually, the Group estimates the
recoverable amount of the CGU to which the asset belongs.

In testing a CGU for impairment, corporate assets are
allocated to the relevant CGU when a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be established, or
otherwise they are allocated fo the smallest group of CGUs
for which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can
be established. The recoverable amount is determined for
the CGU or group of CGUs to which the corporate asset
belongs, and is compared with the carrying amount of the

relevant CGU or group of CGUs.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of
disposal and value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pretfax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset [or a CGU) for which the esfimates of
future cash flows have not been adjusted.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(9)

Impairment on property, plant and equipment, right-
of-use assets and intangible assets other than
goodwill (Continved)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a CGU) is
estimated fo be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or a CGU) is reduced fo its recoverable
amount. For corporate assets or portion of corporate assets
which cannot be allocated on a reasonable and consistent
basis o a CGU, the Group compares the carrying amount
of a group of CGUs, including the carrying amounts of the
corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated fo
that group of CGUs, with the recoverable amount of the
group of CGUs. In allocating the impairment loss, the
impairment loss is allocated first to reduce the carrying
amount of any goodwill (if applicable) and then to the other
assets on a proTata basis based on the carrying amount of
each asset in the unit or the group of CGUs. The carrying
amount of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its
fair value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in
use (if determinable) and zero. The amount of the
impairment loss that would otherwise have been allocated
to the asset is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the
unit or the group of CGUs. An impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or CGU or a group of CGUs)
is increased tfo the revised estimate of ifs recoverable
amount, but so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been
determined had no impairment loss been recognised for the
asset (or a CGU or a group of CGUs] in prior years. A
reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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98

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments

Financial assefs and financial liabilities are recognised
when a group entity becomes a party fo the contractual
provisions of the instrument. All regular way purchases or
sales of financial assefs are recognised and derecognised
on a frade dafe basis. Regular way purchases or sales are
purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery of
assefs within the time frame established by regulation or
convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from
contracts with customers which are initially measured in
accordance with HKFRS 15 Revenve from Contracts with
Customers. Transaction cosfs that are directly atiributable o
the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets or financial liabilities at
FVTPL) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the
financial assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on
initial recognition. Transaction costs directly affributable to
the acquisition of financial assefs or financial liabilities at
fair value through profit or loss are recognised immediately
in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and
of allocafing inferest income and interest expense over the
relevant period. The effective interest rafe is the rate that
exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts and
payments (including all fees and points paid or received
that form an integral part of the effective interest rate,
fransaction cosfs and other premiums or discounts) through
the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriafe, a shorter period, fo the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)
(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Interest income which is derived from the Group's ordinary
course of business are presented as revenue.

Financial assefs

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assefs

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is 1o collect confractual cash flows;
and

e the contractual ferms give rise on specified dates fo

cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income ["FVTOCI"):

e the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

e the contractual ferms give rise on specified dates fo
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i & M58 R
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE_FE-__F+-_HA=+—HIFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(h)

100

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at initial recognition of a financial assef
the Group may irrevocably elect to present subsequent
changes in fair value of an equity investment in other
comprehensive income if that equity investment is neither
held for trading nor contingent consideration recognised by
an acquirer in a business combination to which HKFRS 3
Business Combinations applies.

A financial asset is held for trading if:

e it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

° on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
shorterm profittaking; or

e it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if doing so
eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting mismatch.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—T - —F+ - A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)

Classification and subsequent measurement of financial
assets (Continued)

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. For financial instruments other than
purchased or originated creditimpaired financial assets,
interest income is calculated by applying the effective
inferest rafe to the gross carrying amount of a financial
asset, except for financial assets that have subsequently
become creditimpaired. For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income is
recognised by applying the effective interest rate to the
amortised cost of the financial asset from the next reporting
period. If the credit risk on the creditimpaired financial
instrument improves so that the financial asset is no longer
creditimpaired, inferest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the
financial asset from the beginning of the reporting period
following the defermination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assefs that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assefs at FVTPL are measured at fair value af the
end of each reporting period, with any fair value gains or
losses recognised in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i & M58 R
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE_FE-__F+-_HA=+—HIFE

4.

102

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group performs impairment assessment under expected
credit loss ("ECL") model on financial assets which are
subject to impairment under HKFRS 9 [including trade and
other receivables, deposits, loan receivables and bank
balances). The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
period fo reflect changes in credit risk since initfial
recognifion.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all
possible default events over the expected life of the relevant
instrument. In contrast, 12-month ECL ("12m ECL") represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the
reporting date. Assessments are done based on the Group's
historical credit loss experience, adjusted for factors that are
specific to the debtors, general economic conditions and an
assessment of both the current conditions af the reporting
date as well as the forecast of future condifions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade
receivables.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss
allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been
a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the Group recognises lifetime ECL. The
assessment of whether lifefime ECL should be recognised is
based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of a
default occurring since initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HZEZZ__—_F+_H=+—HIFE

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as af the reporting date with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as af the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitafive
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken info
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

®  an actual or expected significant deferioration
in the financial instrument’s external (if available)
or internal credit rating;

e significant detferioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debior;

d existing or forecast adverse changes in
business, financial or economic conditions that
are expected to cause a significant decrease in
the debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

e an actual or expected significant deferioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

® an acfual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(h)

104

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(i

(i)

Significant increase in credit risk (Continued)

Irespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the
criteria used fo identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credif risk and revises them as
appropriate fo ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay ifs creditors,
including the Group, in full (without taking into
account any collaterals held by the Group).
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

4. ETESHBE®)

(h)  Financial instruments (Continued) (h) &mIAE
Financial assets (Continued) TREEE)
Impairment of financial assets (Continued) DEEERE ()
(i) Creditimpaired financial assets i) EERESREE

A financial asset is credirimpaired when one or more

events of default that have a defrimental impact on the

estimated future cash flows of that financial asset have
occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the
following events:

TREETE HENIALRBOEMN
(HZEMEEMBIARARBRSR
ERKINEE)BERLERE
BERE - eMEERRERRE
ZEREBEARTIEMF A
EHIE -

e significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the o  EBITASEZATZE AL
borrower: w

e a breach of confract, such as a default or past o  ENAYIEWNSEESE
due event; L

o the lenderls) of the borrower, for economic or o HEH AT ESARAEBE
contractual reasons relating fo the borrower’s FAGERABBE Y EERD
financial difficulty, having granted to the 49TB T A R A
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s) FANTSRITEETBE
would not otherwise consider:

e it is becoming probable that the borrower will o  [EEN ATEE B AT
enter bankruptcy or other financial HBAiEEA o
reorganisation; or

e the disappearance of an active market for that o ZIEAmMEAEVERTIE

financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Irespective of the above, the Group considers that a

financial asset is creditimpaired when it is more than
Q0 days past due.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE_FE-__F+-_HA=+—HIFE

4.

(h)

106

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(iv)

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is
information indicating that the counterparty is in severe
financial difficulty and there is no realistic prospect of
recovery, for example, when the counterparty has
been placed under liquidation or has entered info
bankruptcy proceedings, or in the case of trade
receivables, when the amounts are over two years
past due, whichever occurs sooner. Financial assets
written off may still be subject to enforcement activities
under the Group's recovery procedures, taking info
account legal advice where appropriate. A write-off
consfitutes a derecognition event. Any subsequent
recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.
The Group uses a practical expedient in estimating
ECL on frade receivables using a provision matrix
taking into consideration historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for forward looking information
that is available without undue cost or effort.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
confractual cash flows that are due to the Group in
accordance with the confract and the cash flows that
the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—T - —F+ - A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)

Financial assets (Continued)

Impairment of financial assets (Continued)

(V)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (Continued)

Lifetime ECL for certain trade receivables are
considered on a collective basis taking into
consideration past due information and relevant credit
information such as forward-looking macroeconomic
information.

For collective assessment, the Group takes into
consideration the following characteristics when
formulating the grouping:

° Past-due status;

. Nature, size and industry of debtors; and

e External credit rafings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to
ensure the constituents of each group continue fo
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case
interest income is calculated based on amortised cost
of the financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of frade and
other receivables and loan receivables where the
corresponding adjustment is recognised through a loss
allowance account.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE_FE-__F+-_HA=+—HIFE

4.

(h)

108

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition/modification of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire, or
when it fransfers the financial asset and substantially all the
risks and rewards of ownership of the asset to another

entfity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset's carrying
amount and the sum of the consideration received and
receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

A maodification of a financial asset occurs if the contractual
cash flows are renegotiated or otherwise modified.

When the contractual terms of a financial asset are
modified, the Group assesses whether the revised terms
result in a subsfantial modification from original ferms faking
into account all relevant facts and circumstances including
qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment is not conclusive,
the Group considers the terms are substantially different if
the discounted present value of the cash flows under the
new ferms, including any fees paid net of any fees received,
and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is at
least 10 per cent different from the discounted present value
of the remaining cash flows of the original financial asset,
after reducing gross carrying amount that has been written

off.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—T - —F+ - A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial assets (Continued)
Derecognition,/modification of financial assets (Continued)

For non-substantial modifications of financial assets that do
not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial assets will be calculated at the present
value of the modified confractual cash flows discounted at
the financial assets’ original effective interest rate.
Transaction costs or fees incurred are adjusted fo the
carrying amount of the modified financial assets and are
amortised over the remaining ferm. Any adjustment to the
carrying amount of the financial asset is recognised in profit
or loss af the date of modification.

Financial liabilities and equity
Classification as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments are classified as either financial
liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance of
the contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue
costs.

Repurchase of the Company's own equity instruments is
recognised and deducted directly in equity. No gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss on the purchase, sale, issue or
cancellation of the Company's own equity insfruments.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i & M58 R
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE_FE-__F+-_HA=+—HIFE

4.

(h)

110

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Confinued)
Financial liabilities

All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method or at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities including trade and other payables,
lease liabilities, borrowings and debt element of convertible
loan notes are subsequently measured at amortised cost,
using the effective inferest method.

Convertible loan notes

The component parts of the convertible loan notes are
classified separately as financial liability and equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual
arrangements and the definitions of a financial liability and
an equity instrument. A conversion option that will be sefiled
by the exchange of a fixed amount of cash or another
financial asset for a fixed number of the Company’s own
equity insfruments is an equity instrument.

At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability component
lincluding any embedded non-equity derivatives features) is
estimated by measuring the fair value of similar liability that
does not have an associated equity component.

A conversion option classified as equity is determined by
deducting the amount of the liability component from the fair
value of the compound instrument as a whole. This is
recognised and included in equity, net of income tax effects,
and is not subsequently remeasured. In addition, the
conversion option classified as equity will remain in equity
until the conversion option is exercised, in which case, the
balance recognised in equity will be transferred to share
premium account. Where the conversion optfion remains
unexercised at the maturity dafe of the convertible note, the
balance recognised in equity will remain in equity. No gain
or loss is recognised in profit or loss upon conversion or
expiration of the conversion option.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—T - —F+ - A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(h)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Confinued)
Financial liabilities (Continued)
Convertible loan notes (Continued)

Transaction costs that relate to the issue of the convertible
loan notes are allocated to the liability and equity
components in proportion fo the allocation of the gross
proceeds. Transaction costs relating to the equity component
are charged directly fo equity. Transaction cosfs relating to
the liability component are included in the carrying amount
of the liability portion and amortised over the period of the
convertible bonds using the effective interest method.

Derecognition/modification of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only
when, the Group's obligations are discharged, cancelled or
they expired. The difference between the carrying amount
of the financial liability derecognised and the consideration
paid and payable is recognised in profit or loss.

When the contractual terms of a financial liability are
modified, the Group assess whether the revised terms result
in a substantial modification from original terms taking info
account all relevant facts and circumstances including
qualitative factors. If qualitative assessment is not conclusive,
the Group considers that the terms are substantially different
if the discounted present value of the cash flows under the
new ferms, including any fees paid net of any fees received,
and discounted using the original effective interest rate, is af
least 10 per cent different from the discounted present value
of the remaining cash flows of the original financial liability.
The above said fees include only those paid or received
between the borrower and the lender, including fees paid
or received by either the borrower or lender on the other's
behalf. Accordingly, such modification of terms is accounted
for as an extinguishment, any costs or fees incurred are
recognised as part of the gain or loss on the extinguishment.
The exchange or modification is considered as non-
substantial modification when such difference is less than 10
per cent.
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(i)

112

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Financial instruments (Continued)
Financial liabilities and equity (Confinued)

Derecognition/modlification of financial liabilities

(Continued)

For non-substantial modifications of financial liabilities that
do not result in derecognition, the carrying amount of the
relevant financial liabilities will be calculated at the present
value of the modified contractual cash flows discounted at
the financial liabilities” original effective interest rate.
Transaction costs or fees incurred are adjusted fo the
carrying amount of the modified financial liabilities and are
amortised over the remaining term. Any adjusiment to the
carrying amount of the financial liability is recognised in
profit or loss at the dafe of modification.

Offsetting a financial asset and a financial liability

A financial asset and a financial liability are offset and the
net amount presented in the consolidated statement of
financial position when, and only when, the Group currently
has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognised
amounts; and intends either to setfle on a net basis, or to
realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Inventories

Inventories are inifially recognised af cost, and subsequently
at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost comprises
all costs of purchase, costs of conversion and other costs
incurred in bringing the inventories to their present location
and condition. Cost is calculated using the firstin first out
method. Net realisable value represents the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business less the estimated
costs of completion and the estimated costs necessary fo
make the sale. Cosfs necessary to make the sale include
incremental costs directly attributable to the sale and non-
incremental cosfs which the Group must incur to make the
sale.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)
)

Revenue recognition
Revenue from contracts with customers

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred fo the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service [or a
bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are subsfantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one of
the following criteria is met:

e the customer simulianeously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group's performance as
the Group performs;

e the Group's performance creates or enhances an
assef that the customer controls as the Group performs;
or

e the Group's performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(i

114

Revenue recognition (Continved)
Revenue from contracts with customers (Continued)

Otherwise, revenue is recognised af a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or service.

A confract asset represents the Group's right to consideration
in exchange for goods or services that the Group has
transferred to a cusfomer that is not yet unconditional. It is
assessed for impairment in accordance with HKFRS 9. In
confrast, a receivable represents the Group's unconditional
right to consideration, i.e. only the passage of time is
required before payment of that consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the Group's obligation to
transfer goods or services to a customer for which the Group
has received consideration (or an amount of consideration
is due) from the customer.

A confract asset and a contract liability relating to the same
confract are accounted for and presented on a net basis.

Further details of the Group's revenue recognition policies
are as follows:

(il Sales of Chinese health products
Revenue from sales of Chinese health products is
recognised at a point in time when control of the
goods is transferred, being delivery of the goods to
the cusfomers.

(il Interest income
Interest income is accrued on a time basis on the
principal oufstanding af the applicable interest rate.
(i) Sales of investment in financial instruments

Revenue from investment in financial instruments
includes realised fair value gains or losses on trading
investment on a trade date basis.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(k)

Taxation

Income tax expense represents the sum of the fax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profits for the
year. Taxable profit differs from profit as reported in profit or
loss because it excludes items of income and expense that
are taxable or deductible in other years and it further
excludes items that are never taxable or deductible. The
Group's liability for current tax is calculated using tax rates
that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end
of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities in the
consolidated financial statements and the corresponding tax
bases used in the computation of taxable profit. Deferred
tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally
recognised for all deductible temporary differences to the
extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can
be utilised. Such deferred tax assets and liabilities are not
recognised if the temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition (other than in a business combination] of assets
and liabilities in a fransaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit. In addition, deferred tax
liabilities are not recognised if the temporary difference
arises from the inifial recognition of goodwill.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal of the
temporary difference and it is probable that the temporary
difference will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Deferred
tax assefs arising from deductible temporary differences
associated with such investments are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that there will be sufficient taxable
profits against which to utilise the benefits of the temporary
differences and they are expected to reverse in the
foreseeable future.
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4.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(k)

Taxation (Continued)

The carrying amount of deferred fax assets is reviewed at
the end of each reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will
be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rafes that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is setfled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates
[and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted at the end of the reporting period.

The measurement of deferred tax assets and liabilities
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, fo recover or seftle the carrying amount of
its assets and liabilifies.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
fransactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assefs and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
defermines whether the tax deductions are aftributable to the
rightof-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies HKAS
12 requirements fo right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
separately. Temporary differences on inifial recognition of
the relevant rightof-use assets and lease liabilities are not
recognised due to application of the initial recognition
exemption. Temporary differences arising from subsequent
revision fo the carrying amounts of rightof-use assets and
lease liabilities, resulting from remeasurement of lease
liabilities and lease modifications, that are not subject to
initial recognition exemption are recognised on the date of
remeasurement or modification.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to set off current tax assefs against
current fax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes
levied to the same taxable entity by the same taxation

authority.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—T - —F+ - A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(k)

()

Taxation (Continued)

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss,
except when they relate fo items that are recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case,
the current and deferred tax are also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity respectively.

Foreign currencies

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies) are
recorded in the respective functional currency [i.e. the
currency of the primary economic environment in which the
entity operates| at the rates of exchanges prevailing on the
dates of the transactions. At the end of the reporting period,
monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign
currencies are refranslated at the rates prevailing at that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are refranslated af the
rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. When a fair value gain or loss on a non-
monetary item is recognised in profit or loss, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is also recognised in profit or
loss. VWWhen a fair value gain or loss on o non-monefary item
is recognised in other comprehensive income, any exchange
component of that gain or loss is also recognised in other
comprehensive income. Non-monetary items that are
measured in terms of hisforical cost in a foreign currency are
nof refranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the setlement of monetary
items, and on the translation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they arise.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Foreign currencies (Confinued)

For the purpose of presenting the consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group's foreign
operations are franslated into the presentation currency of
the Group [i.e. HK$) at the exchange rate prevailing at the
end of the reporting period. Income and expenses are
translated at the average exchange rates for the period,
unless exchange ratfes fluctuate significantly during that
period, in which case the exchange rates af the dates of
fransactions are used. Exchange differences arising, if any,
are recognised in other comprehensive income and
accumulated in equity under the heading of exchange
fluctuation reserve.

On the disposal of a foreign operation (that is, a disposal of
the Group's entire interest in a foreign operation, or a
disposal involving loss of control over a subsidiary that
includes a foreign operation, or a partial disposal of an
interest in a joint arrangement or an associate that includes
a foreign operation of which the refained interest becomes
a financial asset), all of the exchange differences
accumulated in equity in respect of that operation
affributable to the owners of the Company are reclassified
fo profit or loss.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments on identifiable assets
acquired arising on an acquisition of a foreign operation on
or after 1 January 2005 are freated as assefs and liabilities
of that foreign operation and translated at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the end of each reporting period.
Exchange differences arising are recognised in other
comprehensive income.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—T - —F+ - A=+—HILFE

4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(m) Employee benefits

(i) Short term employee benefits

Short term employee benefits are employee benefits
[other than termination benefits) that are expected to
be setled wholly before twelve months after the end
of the annual reporting period in which the employees
render the related service. Short term employee
benefits are recognised in the period when the
employees render the related service.

[i)  Termination benefits

Termination benefits are recognised on the earlier of
when the Group can no longer withdraw the offer of
those benefits and when the Group recognises
resfructuring costs involving the payment of termination
benefits.

Pension obligations

The Group participates in several defined contribution
refirement benefit schemes. A defined confribution plan is a
retirement benefit scheme under which the Group pays
confributions, on a mandatory, confractual or voluntary
basis, info a separafe enfity. The schemes are generally
funded through payments to insurance companies or state/
trustee-administered funds. The Group has no further
payment obligations once the contributions have been paid.
It has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets fo pay
all employees the benefits relating to employee service in
the current period and prior year.

The contributions are recognised as employment costs when
they are due and are reduced by contributions forfeited by
those employees who leave the scheme prior to vesting fully
in the contribufions.
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4.

(o)
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

Share-based payments
Equity-sefled share-based payment transactions
Share options granted fo employees

Equity-sefiled share-based payments to employees and
others providing similar services are measured at the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value of the equity-seffled share-based payments
determined at the grant date without taking info
consideration all non-market vesting conditions is expensed
on a straightline basis over the vesting period, based on the
Croup's estimate of equity instruments that will eventually
vest, with a corresponding increase in equity (share option
reserve). At the end of each reporting period, the Group
revises ifs estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest based on assessment of all relevant non-
market vesting conditions. The impact of the revision of the
original estimates, if any, is recognised in profit or loss such
that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the share option reserve.
For share options that vest immediately at the date of grant,
the fair value of the share options granted is expensed
immediately to profit or loss.

When share options are exercised, the amount previously
recognised in share option reserve will be transferred to
share premium. When the share options are forfeited after
the vesting date or are sill not exercised at the expiry date,
the amount previously recognised in share option reserve
will be transferred to accumulated losses.

Government grants

Government grants are not recognised until there is
reasonable assurance that the Group will comply with the
conditions affaching to them and that the grants will be
received.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)

(p)

(a)

Government grants (Continved)

Government granfs are recognised in profit or loss on a
systematic basis over the periods in which the Group
recognises as expenses the related costs for which the
grants are intended to compensate. Specifically, government
grants whose primary condition is that the Group should
purchase, construct or otherwise acquire non-current assets
are recognised as deferred income in the consolidated
statement of financial position and transferred to profit or
loss on a systematic and rational basis over the useful lives
of the related asses.

Government grants related to income that are receivable as
compensation for expenses or losses already incurred or for
the purpose of giving immediate financial support to the
Group with no future related costs are recognised in profit
or loss in the period in which they become receivable. Such
grants are presented under “Other income, gains and
losses, net”.

Borrowing costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the
period in which they are incurred.

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal
or constructive] as a result of a past event, it is probable that
the Group will be required to seftle that obligation, and a
reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the
obligation.

The amount recognised as a provision is the best estimate of
the consideration required to sefile the present obligation af
the end of the reporting period, taking info account the risks
and uncertainties surrounding the obligation. When a
provision is measured using the cash flows estimated to
seffle the present obligation, its carrying amount is the
present value of those cash flows.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE_FE-__F+-_HA=+—HIFE

4.

122

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

(s)

Contingent assets and liabilities
Contingent assets

Contingent assets arise from unplanned or other unexpected
events that give rise to the possibility of an inflow of
economic benefits fo the Group and they are not recognised
in the consolidated financial statements. The Group assesses
confinually the development of contingent assets. If it has
become virtually certain that an inflow of economic benefits
will arise, the Group recognises the asset and the related
income in the consolidated financial statements in the
reporting period in which the change occurs.

Contingent liabilities

A confingent liability is a present obligafion arising from
past events but is not recognised because it is not probable
that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits
will be required to seftle the obligation or the amount of the
obligation cannot be measured with sufficient reliability.

Where the Group is joinily and severally liable for an
obligation, the part of the obligation that is expected to be
met by other parties is treated as a confingent liability and it
is not recognised in the consolidated financial statements.

The Group assesses continually to determine whether an
outflow of resources embodying economic benefits has
become probable. If it becomes probable that an outflow of
future economic benefits will be required for an item
previously dealt with as a contingent liability, a provision is
recognised in the consolidated financial statements in the
reporting period in which the change in probability occurs,
except in the extremely rare circumstances where no reliable
estimate can be made.
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved)
()}  Related parties

[a)

(b)

A person or a close member of that person's family is
related fo the Group if that person:

(i)

(i)

(ifi)

has control or joint control over the Group;

has significant influence over the Group; or

is a member of key management personnel of
the Group or the Company's parent.

An entity is related to the Group if any of the following
conditions applies:

(i)

(i)

(ifi)

(iv)

(v)

The entity and the Group are members of the
same group (which means that each parent,
subsidiary and fellow subsidiary is related to the
others);

One entity is an associate or joinf venture of the
other entity (or an associate or joint venture of a
member of a group of which the other entfity is
a member):

Both entities are joint ventures of the same third

party;

One entity is a joint venture of a third entity and
the other enfity is an associate of the third enfity;

The entity is a postemployment benefit plan for
the benefit of the employees of the Group or an
entity related to the Group;
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4. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continved) 4. FEEEHE &)

()}  Related parties (Continved) ) BEEEALE)
lb)  [Continued) b) (%)
[vi)  The entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a (vi] ZEEZ()FMHIZALT
person identified in (a); b SRR
[vil A person identified in (a)li] has significant i) R TRz AT HE
influence over the entity or is a member of key BmEEATE 2TE
management personnel of the entity (or of a (KB AFTES
parent of the entity); BREBEZKE
[viii) The entity, or any member of a group of which (vii] ZER KEFBEEY
it is a part, provides key management personnel KB AR mALE
services to the Group or to the Company’s WADNT T B ATIEMEE
parent. EERERE R
A related party transaction is a fransfer of resources, service BHEATX S BRNEBEAGEEA
or obligations between the Group and a related party, + BT AR - RIS S TE
regardless of whether a price is charged. MAHEAKE -
Close members of the family of a person are those family 2Nt TR B AR TARNEE
members who may be expected fo influence, or be BT SRS E AT ESE
influenced by, that person in their dealings with the entity ATEETZERRKELBIE
and include:
[i)  that person’s children and spouse or domestic pariner; [l ZBATZFLEREEIREYE
53K
[i)  children of that person’s spouse or domestic partner; il ZBATZEEBRREZEEZTF
and L3
[ii)  dependents of that person or that person’s spouse or (i) ZBATHZEATZRESK
domestic partner. FERLPE Y ZEA o
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—T - —F+ - A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group's accounting policies, the directors
are required to make judgements, estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are not
readily apparent from other sources. Estimates and judgements
are continually evaluated and are based on hisforical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances. Actual results
differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an
ongoing basis. Revisions fo accounfing estimates are recognised
in the period in which the estimate is revised if the revision affects
only that period or in the period of the revision and future periods
if the revision affects both current and future periods.

Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and
other key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period that may have a significant risk of causing a
material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE_FE-__F+-_HA=+—HIFE

5. CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(i)

126

Estimated impairment of property, plant and equipment and
rightof-use assets

Property, plant and equipment and right-of-use assets are
stated at costs less accumulated depreciation and
impairment, if any. In deftermining whether an asset is
impaired, the Group has to exercise judgement and make
estimation, particularly in assessing: (1) whether an event
has occurred or any indicators that may affect the asset
value; (2) whether the carrying value of an asset can be
supported by the recoverable amount, in the case of value
in use, the net present value of future cash flows which are
estimated based upon the continued use of the assef; and
[3) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
estimating the recoverable amounts including cash flow
projections and an appropriate discount rate. When it is not
possible to estimate the recoverable amount of an individual
asset [including rightof-use assefs), the Group esftimates the
recoverable amount of the cash generating unit to which the
assets belong, including allocation of corporate assefs when
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can be
established, otherwise recoverable amount is determined at
the smallest group of cash generating units, for which the
relevant corporate assefs have been allocated. Changing
the assumptions and estimates, including the discount rates
or the growth rate in the cash flow projections, could
materially affect the recoverable amountfs.

As at 31 December 2022, impairment losses of nil
(2021:HK$216,000) and HK$622,000 (2021:
HK$3,023,000) in respect of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assefs have been recognised
respectively. Details of the impairment of property, plant and
equipment and right-of-use assefs are disclosed in Nofes 15
and 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—T - —F+ - A=+—HILFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY
SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
[Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(i)

(ifi)

Fair value measurement of financial instruments

As at 31 December 2022, the Group's unlisted equity
securities amounting to HK$ 1,143,000 (2021
HK$2,400,000) are measured at fair value with fair value
being defermined based on significant unobservable inputs
using valuation techniques. Judgement and estimation are
required in establishing the relevant valuation techniques
and the relevant inputs thereof. Changes in assumptions
relating to these factors could result in material adjustments
to the fair value of these instruments. Defails are sef out in
Note 38 to the consolidated financial statements.

Net realisable value of inventories

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling
price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated
selling expenses necessary fo make the sale. These estimates
are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer taste
and competitor actions in response to severe industry cycle.
The directors of the Company reassess the estimations af the
end of each reporting period.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i & M58 R
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE_FE-__F+-_HA=+—HIFE

CRITICAL ACCOUNTING JUDGEMENTS AND KEY

SOURCES OF ESTIMATION UNCERTAINTY
(Continued)

Key sources of estimation uncertainty (Continued)

(iv)

128

Provision of ECL for trade and other receivables and loan
receivables

The Group uses practical expedient in estimating ECL on
trade receivables which are not assessed individually using
a provision matrix. The provision rafes are based on aging
of debtors as groupings of various debtors taking into
consideration the Group's historical default rates and
forward-looking information that is reasonable and
supportable available without undue costs or effort. At every
reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
reassessed and changes in the forwardooking information
are considered.

The Group assesses whether the probability of default on a
loan receivables or other receivables at the end of the
reporting period has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group
considers reasonable and supportable information including
historical and forwardHooking information which is available
without undue cost or effort. The Group calculates ECL
allowance for loan receivables and other receivables based
on the estimated probability of default of counterparties with
similar credit ratings, with adjustment to reflect the current
conditions and forecasts of future economic conditions, as
appropriate.

The ECL assessment on frade and other receivables and
loan receivables involves significant management
judgements and estimates on credit risk assessment, the uses
of models and inputs in the calculation of ECL at the
reporting date. Defails of ECL assessment are disclosed in
Note 37 to the consolidated financial statements.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& MR

1= A=+—H LA

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING 6.

An Ono|ysis of the Group's revenue from its principo| activities for

WA R 7 B8 &
FRAREE S BEBE L KAHNT N

the year is as follows: T
2022 2021
—E-—=F —ET-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET T
Revenue from contracts with customers REBMBHREENE 155
within the scope of HKFRS 15: HERAZEFEHBA :
Trading of 858
— Chinese health products — FRERER 128,375 114,196
Revenue from other sources: HARRBA :
— Money lending business — REXER 14,628 22,291
— Investment in financial instruments —HEemI A (945) 33,592
13,683 55,883
142,058 170,079
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts ~ EERBEEFESHWA
with customers 2BEE5
Timing of revenue recognition from contracts RREBEL AN Z EE
with customers
— At a point in time — R—ERME2 128,375 114,196
Sales channels HERE
— Retail — 25 73,723 66,037
— Wholesale — #hE 1,010 1,580
— Direct sales event — HiEEH 41,170 33,978
— Internet — BB 12,472 12,601
Total @t 128,375 114,196
hEREREERERAT —B-—4F% 129
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REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continved)

The Group determines its operating segments based on the reports
reviewed by the chief operafing decision-maker (the “CODM”)
that are used fo make strategic decisions.

The Group has three reportable and operating segments. The
segments are managed separately as each business offers
different products and requires different business strategies. The
following summary describes the operations in each of the
Group's reportable segments:

e Chinese health products: sale of Chinese health products
®  Money lending business: granting loans

e Investment in financial insfruments: investing in financia
instruments

Segment revenue represents revenue generated from external
customers. There were no inter-segment sales in both years.
Corporate income and expenses are not allocated to the
operafing segments as they are not included in the measure of the
segments’ profit or loss that is used by the CODM for assessment
of segment performance.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE=—T_—_—F+_A=1+—HILFE

A

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Confinved) 6. UK A JB 5 SPER4E ()

(a) Segment revenue and results (a) DEUAREE
Year ended 31 December 2022 HE-—E-——&F+-—FH=+—AitE
E

Chinese Money Investment

health lending in financial
products  business instruments Total

RhgE REEH
Rigm REX® I et

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEx FERT FER FEx

Revenue to external customers SNERE UL 128,375 14,628 (945) 142,058
Segment profit/(loss) before METEMATDE
income tax wmA (EE) 1,888 (30,023) (17,748)  (45,883)
Year ended 31 December 2021 HE_T-_—F+_A=1+—HLHF
=

Chinese Money  Investment

health lending in financial
products business  instruments Total

FRgE "ESR
RER  HEEB IR @5t

HK$'000  HK$000  HK$000  HK$'000
TR TAT THETT TAT

Revenue fo external customers SNERE P U A 114,196 22,291 33,592 170,079
Segment (loss)/profit before BRETISE A D5
income tax (BB), &7 (8,871)  (97,828) 16,914 (89,785)
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. WARDERERE (&)

(a)

132

Segment revenue and results (Continued) () DEURARELSE &)
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—4F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TAETT
Reportable segment loss Al E D AP E 1R (45,883) (89,785
Gain on modification of BRI AR E SRR T 2 W
convertible loan nofes 2,459 -
Unallocated finance costs RO ECRRE R (4,569) (4,773]
Unallocated corporate income/expenses) 73 BE A B A, (BIsZ)
— Govemnment grant — BAMBE 72 -
— Staff costs — BT (5,256) (2,574)
— legal and professional fee — ERNEXER (1,214) (451)
— Others — i (2,013) 2,997
Consolidated loss before income tax MFTSIRATAR A 1B (56,401) (100,580)
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—T - —F+ - A=+—HILFE

REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continved)

Segment assets and liabilities

The following is an analysis of the Group's assets and

6. WARDEBE®E #)

STHEEHREE

AT RANRERAREDFE D 2E

liabilities by reportable segment: ERAET N
2022 2021
=== T —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FH&xT FHIT
Segment assets PHEE
— Chinese health products — RERER 92,731 84,448
— Money lending business — EES 137,084 167,244
— Investment in financial instruments — RELBIA 57,343 59,754
Segment assefs DEfEE 287,158 311,446
Unallocated corporate assefs RABLARIEE
— Cash and cash equivalents —BeRkBeEEY 350 2,498
— Other (Note) — E A (ffaE) 151 151
Consolidated total assets SAEBERA 287,659 314,095
2022 2021
—E-— —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&T BT
Segment liabilities pan:iy=Ni
— Chinese health products — PERER 54,712 27,984
— Money lending business — EE 1,290 2,376
— Investment in financial instruments —KRESmMITA 18,247 15,541
Segment liabilities DEAEE 74,249 45,901
Unallocated corporate liabilities AR ARIEE
— Convertible loan notes — ARBREREE 71,043 72,300
— Others (Note) — Htb (ff5F) 3,718 2,830
Consolidated total liabilities e BEER 149,010 121,031

Note: Other unallocated corporate assefs and liabilities include

fet - Bt ARDEE AR EELBEREET

Hip o8 - e RBENFIE &
TH MR R R S BRI RRIE
MIREE -

certain other receivables, deposits and prepayments, certain
other payables and accrual charges and deferred tax
liabilities.
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e year ended 31 De

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continved) 6. WARDEHME (&)

(c) Other segment information included in segment () PBLERDBEEZEiMHHE
results or segment assets Bl

Year ended 31 December 2022 HZE-—B-——&+t-HA=+—BILE
E

Interest expenses FERAZ

Depreciation of property, nE  BERREBTE

plant and equipment
Depreciafion of rightofuse assels ~ FFEEENE
Impairment loss on rightofuse assets 1 A1 & ERIEEE
Impairment loss on loan ERERAEBRFE

receivables, net

Fair value loss on financial assets — ZATE A B

at FVTPL, net JEREE
ZRTEEEFE
Employee coss (including EEKAK
directors’ remuneration) (BEESHS)
Additions to property, NENFE  BERR

plant and equipment

Additions o rightofuse assets NEFRELE

Other segment information MERELARETH
regularly provided fo CODM: Rt EthHE
AH

Income tox (credit)/expense s (Be)/Bx
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6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. WARDERERE (&)

(c) Other segment information included in segment () PHBEERIBEEZH D HE
results or segment assets (Continued) Bl
Year ended 31 December 2021 BE-—E-——F+—A=+—AI&F
5

Chinese Money — Investment

health lending in financial
products business  insfruments  Unallocated Total

i k&
RiEm  HEX®K  ERIA AN @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TEL TR

Inferest expenses FEHY 535 11 1,091 4773 6,410
Depreciation of property, 0¥ BERRIEBTE

plant and equipment 309 - - - 309
Depreciafion of rightofuse assels ~ FFEEENE 3,238 651 - - 3,889
Impairment loss on property, 0% BERRERE

plant and equipment B8 216 - - - 216
Impairment loss on rightofuse assets {if F1EE R EEE 3,028 - - - 3,023
Impairment loss on loan R ERREREEE

receivables, net - 102,606 - - 102,606
Fair value loss on financial assets A FET ABE

of FVTPL, net ZEREEL

AHEBEFE - - 15,300 - 15,300

Employee costs (including EEMA

directors’ remuneration) (BREZHS) 19,646 15,242 - 2,574 37,462
Additions o property, RENE  BERR

plant and equipment 360 - - - 360
Additions fo rightofuse assefs NEFRESE 6,096 - - - 6,006
Other segment information mERESREETEN

regularly provided to CODM: Rtz B 7

B

Income fax expense SR - 2,466 - - 2,466
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE_FE-__F+-_HA=+—HIFE

6. REVENUE AND SEGMENT REPORTING (Continued) 6. WARDERERE (&)

(d) Geographical information d #EEH
Information about the Group's revenue from external BB R E BT R A
customers and non-current assets by geographical region, EFEHIRESE  SEAEEK
according to location of operations or the location which BHNEEEE WA R IR EELR
the products are delivered and the location of asses, is as m
follows:
Revenue Non-current assets (Note (i)
LN FREEE (MEE()
2022 2021 2022 2021
—E-C-F —E-—F —E__F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET THT
Hong Kong (Note (ii]] & (BIE (i) 141,750 169,613 6,753 2,514
The People’s Republic of A EE AR HEFIE
China (the "PRC") ([E]) 308 466 - -
142,058 170,079 6,753 2,514
Note: Hfat -
(i) Excluding deferred tax assefs and financial insfruments. (i) TREECHBEEN ST -
lil  Revenue from interest income and sale of financial i) MBWANBEESITAEZWATIHZ
instruments are disclosed by location of operations. EEMWRIREE -
(e) Information on major customers: le) XEEFZEHR:
No external customer contributed 10% or more to the RWmEFERNREINBEFERESE
Group's revenue for both years. BWABDZTALE -
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OTHER INCOME, GAINS AND LOSSES, NET

ial Stateﬁé\%ts

ﬁ%ﬂﬂﬁiﬁil’ﬂi
= =15

7. HMWA - BmREE FHE

2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T

Fair value loss on financial assets BAFEFABE I ERHEEY
at FVTPL, net N EFEFE (15,325) (15,300
Gain on modification of convertible loan notes & 5] A 3% B = 7 Ui z5 2,459 -

Loss on written off of property, W% - BB REREH R

plant and equipment (1) -
Government grants BB & 2,593 -
Rent concession HeEE 160 152
Others i) 18 2
(10,096) (15,146|

During the year ended 31 December 2022, included in the
government grants recognised are mainly Covid-19 related
subsidies of approximately HK$ 1,909,000, which relates to Job
Support Scheme provided by the Hong Kong government. There
are no unfulfilled conditions or contingencies relating to these
grants.

HE_Z-—F+-_A=+—HIFE B
WRBF MBS T 28I Covid 19 1AL
HN—BNTETNTEL  MZmlhEE
BBUNRECRIEETEER - Z5@D e
I AR R RIEE R R IR s A B TR -
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SRR RMEE

vear ended 31 December 2

138

LOSS BEFORE INCOME TAX

8. BRITGHAIEE

Loss before income tax is arrived at after charging:

BR PT1S T A B 1R D8 F0RR T3 B IRR S

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET FHET
Cost of inventories sold BEEFERA 81,506 71,794
Auditors’ remuneration ZEED B &
— audit services — ZBURTE 1,080 1,280
— non-audit services — FERZBURTS 80 80
1,160 1,360
Depreciation of property, plant and W - WENERETE
equipment 184 309
Depreciation of rightofuse assets EREEENE 3,120 3,889
Employee costs (excluding directors’ BEXAR(TEFEEZHS)
emoluments) (Note 13) (HiaF13) 21,576 21,853
Direcfors’ emoluments (Note 14) EE=e (Wit 14) 20,161 15,609
Shortterm leases expenses RHRER X 3,635 4,453
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—T - —F+ - A=+—HILFE

10.

FINANCE COSTS Q. RERKA
2022 2021
—E_-_—F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Inferest on borrowings EEF L 2,242 1,090
Interest on lease liabilities HESGEME 489 547
Inferest on convertible loan notes AR E R BT B 4,566 4,773
7,297 6,410

INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE

Hong Kong Profits Tax is calculated at 8.25% on the estimated
assessable profits up to HK$2,000,000 and 16.5% on any part
of the estimated assessable profits over HK$2,000,000. No
Hong Kong Profits Tax was provided for the Company’s
subsidiaries in Hong Kong for both years as they either did not
derive any assessable profits from Hong Kong or had estimated
fax losses brought forward to offset against the estimated
assessable profifs.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the "EIT Law”)
and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the tax rate of the
PRC subsidiary is 25% for both years.

No Enterprise Income Tax has been provided as the Company’s
subsidiary in the PRC did not derive any assessable profits from
the PRC for both years.

10. FREH (B %) BX

BENERDREA RGN RZ S
B2 BDZ\HZH R ERTUR B
B_ABATZEABS BN Z /NI
A8 HRMEFEARRZEEHE QR
WRREBELETMAERTEH - TAREE
AETHIEE R AR HE AR ERTUEH - ikt
WARZERFWEL BB GHEME -

REBFEEEMETE((REMERE]D K
LERASTAERGD - FEMBARNE
EFEZREGRAD Z_TH

B R F 2z BB A R R EF IR
R B EE T ERTIEF - B R IEH
RAEHEE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEaMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZEZE=ZT=_—F +-_A=1+—HIEFE

10. INCOME TAX (CREDIT)/EXPENSE (Continved)

The amount of income tax (credit)/expense in the consolidated

10. FRA88 (E&R), Bx®
BAERREMR KRN AR (E

statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income %) X ers
represents:
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET FET
Hong Kong Profits Tax BEBNEH
— Over-provision in respect of prior years — BEFEREREE (940) -
Deferred tax RIERIA (1,187) 2,466
Income tax (credit]/expense FTiSfi (K%),/Fx (2,127) 2,466
The income fax (credit)/expense for the year can be reconciled to ERNFER(ER) HLERNGAERLE
the loss before income tax in the consolidated statement of profit ermEkEzER BTSN AIEBYEND
or loss and other comprehensive income as follows: T
2022 2021
—EC-CfF B
HK$’000 HK$'000
THET THET
Loss before income tax BrFTIS T ATE 1B (56,401) (100,580)
Tax calculated at the applicable tax WEARE (D2 TRETR)
rate of 16.5% ATE A (2,306) (16,590
Effect of different tax rates of subsidiaries HibRERER S E 2B AR
operating in other jurisdictions TRME 2 ZE (16) (17)
Tax effect of income not taxable for tox purposes BZEFNFRMA 2 TS (428) [1,938)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible RNAIBRA X 2 TR 8
for fax purposes 541 2,277
Over-provision in respect of prior years BEFEBREEE (940) .
Tax effect of fax losses not recognised RERMIEBEHETE 8,123 21,587
Utilisation of tax losses previously AR AR HIRER
not recognised (3) (2,8206)
Utilisation of deductible temporary differences  E)R LRI RER Z AT NG EE =R
previously nof recognised (98) (21)
Income tax (credit)/expense FTismt (&) FX (2,127) 2,466
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11.

12.

DIVIDENDS
The directors do not recommend any dividend in respect of the EETRSEENARE—E-——%F+—-A

year ended 31 December 2022 (2021: Nil).

LOSS PER SHARE

ial Stateme?‘its

ﬁ%ﬂﬂﬁiﬁil’ﬂi
T F+ZA=1+—H \

1. B2

—t+t—BIFEZEAKRE(ZE=—F:
/) o

12. BREE

The calculation of basic and diluted loss per share attributable o KATEA NEESIREAR#ESEIR TR
owners of the Company is based on the following data: B TSR E

2022 2021

—E-—F —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Loss for the year attributable to owners of
the Company used in the basic and

RN ESRERNREEER
AREHEABIEZFAEE

diluted loss per share calculations (54,27 4) (103,046)
2022 2021
—E-—fF T
Number of shares RHEE
Weighted average number of ordinary AT ESRERR#EEE
shares for the purposes of basic and 2 ERR N TaE A
diluted loss per share 770,480,836 770,480,836
The computation of diluted loss per share for both years does not RREFEz S8 EER 7 ELBERR
assume the conversion of the Company’s outstanding convertible AR ARERABRERRIBEC EESR
loan notes since their assumed exercise would result in a decrease REREBRETEASGRERERSE MR

in loss per share.

o
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

7 & M35 8 R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE_FE-__F+-_HA=+—HIFE

13. EMPLOYEE COSTS

Employee costs (excluding directors’ emoluments] comprise:

13. BERZE
BERA (TREEEMS) B

2022 2021

—E-—F T —F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET

Basic salaries and discretionary bonus HE AR FH < MEIET 20,129 20,387
Shorterm non-monetary benefits RHFER RN 482 476
Retirement benefits scheme contributions RNEFIFH IR 965 990
21,576 21,853

There was no forfeited contribution under any defined contribution
refirement plans available which may be used by the Group to
reduce the existing level of contributions, nor any confribution
under any defined contribution refirement plans was forfeited by
the Group during the years ended 31 December 2022 and
2021.

14. DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT’S
EMOLUMENTS

REEE-_—_FR-_ZFT-—F+=A
=t+—BULFE  AEEITERWET A F
BEKIR A HFOKTE 2 EEEFURRETEI T
ZHEEC INE A E A EFRRE T 2 4H®
SRR o

14 EEREREBAEBZHE

(a) Directors’ emoluments () EZEME

The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid and payable to ENNEENAARES M e A%ED

the directors of the Company are as follows: N
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—4F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FAT
Directors’ fee 58 11,620 9,068
Basic salaries and discrefionary bonus BERFH & REIBTELL 8,487 6,487
Retirement benefits scheme contributions 3R K& 5T 24t 7% 54 54
20,161 15,609

No emoluments have been paid by the Group fo the
directors as an inducement fo join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office in both years.
No directors waived or agreed to waive any of their
emoluments in both years.
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14

. DIRECTORS" AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMEREME
F#+=A=+—BILEE

For the year ended 31 December 2022  #;

e E

EMOLUMENTS (Continued)

(a)

4. EERESREBABZHME @)

Directors’ emoluments (Continved) (o) EEM<®)
The emolument of each director for the year ended 31 REENBE T -+ A
December 2022 is set out below: =t+—HIEEZMEeHNOT
Basic
salaries Retirement
and benefits
discretionary scheme
Name of director BEEps Fees bonus  contributions Total
HEXHE RIRER
e REBEAL B st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHx THET THEx THEx
Executive directors HITES
Mr. lei Hong Wai FHERE 4,940 = = 4,940
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elion REESEE 4,940 - - 4,940
Mr. leung Alex AN 120 3,510 18 3,648
Ms. Lo Ming Wan BBt 120 949 18 1,087
Mr. Tse Chi Keung HEHREE 120 2,028 18 2,166
Mr. Yuan Hui Xia RIEBEXE 1,020 2,000 - 3,020
Independent non-executive BYFHITES
directors
Mr. Lai Hok Lim RERELE 120 - - 120
Mr. Llien Wai Hung BRELE 120 - - 120
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen =EBLE 120 = = 120
11,620 8,487 54 20,161
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEaMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE_FE-__F+-_HA=+—HIFE

14. DIRECTORS” AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT'S 4. EENEREEBAEZHME &)
EMOLUMENTS (Continued)
(a) Directors’ emoluments (Continued) (o) EE#ME )
The emolument of each director for the year ended 31 SEENBRE T - —F+ - A
December 2021 is set out below: =t+—RIEEZMEHNOT
Basic
salaries Retirement
and benefits
discrefionary scheme
Name of director EEpnE Fees bonus  contributions Total
EX#H& RIRIEH
we  REEEAL SHEIfHR et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAT FAT FAT FHT
Executive directors HITES
Mr. lei Hong Wai FREEE 4,940 - - 4,940
Mr. Cheung Kwok Wai Elton REELE 3,090 - - 3,090
Mr. leung Alex PR 120 3,510 18 3,648
Ms. Lo Ming Wan L EE R 120 Q49 18 1,087
Mr. Tse Chi Keung HEFREE 120 2,028 18 2,166
Mr. Yuan Hui Xia RIEELE 318 - - 318
Independent non-executive BYFHITES
directors
Mr. Lai Hok Lim RERREE 120 - - 120
Mr. Lien Wai Hung BERERE 120 - - 120
Mr. Wong Tak Chuen =HERTE 120 - - 120
9,068 6,487 54 15,609
(b) Five highest paid individuals b)) EUEZSHMAL
Five (2021 five) directors whose emoluments are disclosed REBE-_FT-__F+=-_A=+—H1t
in the analysis presented above were among the five FE AR (ZT-_—F AR)EF
individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group ZHeR EX2IAEB RS
during the year ended 31 December 2022. ALz iREE -
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
R a8 MG HRME
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—T - —F+ - A=+—HILFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 15. Y13 - MERRME
Furniture,
leasehold fixtures and
improvements equipment Total
HE &# - £EB
L E 10 e et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TET FHET
At 1 January 2021 R-_ZE-_—%—Hf—H
Cost R 325 1,084 1,409
Accumulated impairment Z2:EE - [166) [166)
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (138) (710) (848)
Net carrying amounts REEE 187 208 395
Net carrying amounts at 1 January 2021 RZE-_—F—A—HZEAFE 187 208 395
Additions RE 255 105 360
Depreciation charge FEZH (216) (93) (309
Impairment bERES (170 (406) 216)
Net carrying amounts at RZE-——F+=-A=+—H
31 December 2021 ZREFE 56 174 230
At 31 December 2021 —E--F+-A=1+—H
Cost %N 396 1,154 1,550
Accumulated impairment ZETRE (170) (212) (382)
Accumulated depreciation Z:tinE (170) (768) (938
Net carrying amounts BREE(E 56 174 230
Net carrying amounts at 1 January 2022 RZEBE-_—_F—F—HBzEREFE 56 174 230
Additions NE 516 115 631
Depreciation charge FEL (108) (76) (184)
Written off ! - (1) (1)
Net carrying amounts at RZE-_—F+-A=+—H
31 December 2022 ZIREFE 464 212 676
At 31 December 2022 —E--F#+-A=1+—H
Cost PR 912 1,268 2,180
Accumulated impairment ZERE (170) (212) (382)
Accumulated depreciation ZEE (278) (844) (1,122
Net carrying amounts REFE 464 212 676
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FEaMBERERME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE_FE-__F+-_HA=+—HIFE

15. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Continved) 15. % - BERRZRE @)

Note:

During the year ended 31 December 2022, due fo continued losses for
several refail shops of the Chinese health products segment (2021:
unfavourable prospect of refail industry due to Covid-19 pandemic and
contfinued losses of several retail shops of the Chinese health products
segment), the directors of the Company considered there was indication
for impairment of property, plant and equipment and rightof-use assets
with carrying amount of HK$505,000 (2021: HK$216,000) and
HK$3,725,000 (2021: HK$3,023,000 ) (Note 16) respectively. The
Group estimates the recoverable amount of those retail shops, each
representing a CGU, to which the assefs belong when it is not possible to
estimate their recoverable amount individually, including allocation of
corporate assets when reasonable and consistent basis can be
esfablished.

The recoverable amount of CGUs was based on the value in use
calculation. The calculation uses cash flow projections based on financial
budgets approved by the directors of the Company covering a five-year
period, and pre-tax discount rate of 13% (2021: 13%). Other key
assumption for the value in use calculation relates to the estimation of cash
flows which include budgeted sales, such estimation is based on the
CGUs" past performance and the directors’ expectations for the market
development. The growth rate used to extrapolate the cash flows beyond
the five-year period is 2% (2021: 2%), which do not exceed the long-erm
growth rate for the industry in the corresponding country. During the year
ended 31 December 2022, the Group recognised impairment loss of nil
(2021: HK216,000) and HK$622,000 (2021: HK$3,023,000) on
property, plant and equipment and rightofuse assets respectively as the
carrying amounts of these assets exceeded the recoverable amount at 31
December 2022. As the carrying amounts of these assets have been
reduced to their recoverable amounts, any adverse change in the
assumptions used in the calculation of recoverable amount would result in
further impairment loss.

146 China Healthwise Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2022

fifat -

BHE_Z-—F+-AF=+—RHILFEE  EX$
BREKOSBTHETERFEHEER(ZZ
T—F ERCovid10B B RAFERERDET
YHZTEERESRBER) ARRESRAYD
¥ BMEARBLREAEEERMAES AR T
ETRTHEL(ZZ=_—F: —_+—8BX-THx)
r=Bt+ZBRATEL(ZZE=—F: =82
E=FFx) (Wi 16) HIRBERR - KEBEE
FEEREFT AR SEZIBERT - Het2E
EfMBzZERmH(SRE—EARSELEN)Z
AJiR Bl FE - BRI MY AR R — B B
FOERBEEE -

WEEEEM 2 AIRINEEREFEHEGETE
FIRETE o sTEHEADERBREARRESIE
CRERNTHMEZMEBEERR ZIESRETE A
ERAFREAEEDZT=Z(ZE_—F AN Z
+=) FRAEEHECEMFIZEREHEB SR
HET AR REBEEHEE BRI IRERS
EABNZBARRRESHMIBERE ZEHE
e BERAFHEZREFEFEHERERES 2
Z(ZEZ—F BEOZIDHE  ZRERETE
BREEERITEAZRPEER -HE2-T =
F+ZRA=+—BUEFE  AEERDE  BE
REARFEAREES HERREBEES (=22
——F - BERTET)RATBE-TE
T(ZEZ—F: ZEZEZEBE=TE1)  RAA
ZEEEZFERERBRBR T =-_—_F+=-A
—t+—BzZAKE¢E ARZEEEZRAAE
EREEANECE  FEJRESEMARSR
ZEAAFE B BT — SRERRE -



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

& MR

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—T - —F+ - A=+—HILFE

16. LEASES 16
Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee)

The Group leases a number of refail shops, offices and warehouses
for its operations. lease contracts are entered info for fixed term of
0.5 1o 3 years [2021: 0.5 to 3 years). Llease terms are negofiated
on an individual basis and contain different terms and conditions.
In determining the lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of a contract
and defermines the period for which the confract is enforceable.

Cerfain leases of retail shops comprise variable lease payments
that depends on the original monthly sales of those retail shops if
the amounts are higher than the original monthly rental. The rest of
the leases comprise only fixed payments over the lease terms.

. HE

HMETEE 2 HE (UABAASD)

AEERELERESMTEERE  NAE
LRE BEANNRTHAE=FZEE
FHFI (2~  THRE=F)-H
BRI ERELERE - BEA TREK
R o B RE A B GRK R & 1 AT s 85 HA
RzRER  AREEAAOERLETS
#IR] SR BIERTT 2 HARE

ETZERNHEEREYREENNK  ZF
NHRBURR ZETE/m MG A HER (i
ZEeEeREAEES) #HTITHEES
EREIA . BIEMR -

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Buildings leased for own use, carried EERARHEZETF
at depreciated cost (FRITEKATIER) 6,077 2,284

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in
profit or loss is as follows:

HERGTERZHERRZMAIAR DT
W

2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET

Variable lease payments not included in KT AHEGBETEZ
the measurement of lease liabilities FENRE K 161 79
Shorterm lease expenses RHREMX 3,635 4,453

The total cash outflow of leases for the year ended 31 December

2022 was HK$10,588,000 [2021: HK$12,815,000).

He_Z-_—4+-_A=+—HI9E2H
EReRHREA—TEA T \BNATET
(ZF=—%F: —FTZa/\+—BATAT) °
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S MR R
vear ended 31 December 2

16. LEASES (Continved) 16. HE (&)
Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee) HETEH I ME (LUABEAER) ()
(Continued)
Future rental payments relafing to leases nof yet commenced to AREFENR "S- —FN T —F+— 7
which the Group is committed as af 31 December 2022 and —H—HEAREAEB I AEEE Y Ak
2021 are as follows: BETOT :
Later than
one year and
Not later than not later than
one year two years Total
B —F
THEB—F BLRREF st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAT FAET
At 31 December 2022 N-ZE——
+ZA=+—H
Retail shop TEEH - - -
At 31 December 2021 R-T——F
+TZR=+—H
Retail shop TEMH 814 854 1,668
lease of retail shops are either with only fixed lease payments or TEEH 2 HEREEATHENREEER
contain variable lease payment that are based on 8% to 16% FABNEEASZN\EAD 2T A (ZE
(2021: 8% to 16%) of monthly gross sales and minimum lease Z—F B ZNEADZTRN)EEZA]
payment that are fixed over the lease term. The payment terms are BHENR  MxERENZIREESRA
common in refail shops in Hong Kong where the Group operates. BE - AEBEEZBEBTEERZNR
The amount of fixed and variable lease payments paid/payable 1GFABR > FACH,FEMBEEEAZE
fo relevant lessors during the year are as follows: ERFAIEEEMNRSEHINAT :
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
FaMEREME

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—T - —F+ - A=+—HILFE

16. LEASES (Continved) 16. HE (&)
Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee) HETHIME (LAEBASR)(E)
[Continued)
For the year ended 31 December 2022 BE-—E-——F+-—pB=+—HIEE
Number Fixed Variable Total
of shops payments payments payments

EHEE BIEMAR AR E L
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET FERT
Refail shops without variable lease WEAEEENRZ
payments TEEH 1 847 - 847
Retail shops with variable lease REAEBEENTZ
payments TEIEH 9 5,795 161 5,956
10 6,642 161 6,803
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BHE_Z-_—F+-A=+—HILFE
Number Fixed Varioble Total
of shops payments payments payments
EHE A Bl E 3% AR REE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET
Refail shops without variable lease VEATEHENRZ
payments TEEH 1 802 - 802
Retail shops with variable lease REAEEENTZ
payments TEEMH Q 7,517 79 7,596
10 8,319 79 8,398
The overall financial effect of using variable payment terms is that RAAENRER BB BT ERESR
higher rental costs are incurred by shop with higher sales. SHERZEHEERRESKA o FHHA
Variable rent expenses are expected fo contfinue fo represent a B2 M BSOS R R AR IR F Z 5 8
similar proportion of shop sales in future years. B BLLL -
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SR BRERME
vear ended 31 December 2

16. LEASES (Continued)

16. HE8#®)

Nature of leasing activities (in the capacity as lessee) HETEH I ME (LUABEAER) ()
(Continued)
Right-of-use assets ERESE
The carrying amounts of the Group's right-of-use assets and the NEBGERAEEEYEREREESHMT
movements are as follows:
Buildings
BgF
HK$'000
FHT
At 1 January 2021 R-_ZE_—%—HA—H 3,100
Additions NE 6,096
Depreciation e (3,889)
Impairment (Nofe 15) B (aE15) (3,023)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 REZB-—F+-_A=+—HK
—E-_F—H—H 2,284
Additions NE 7,535
Depreciation e (3,120)
Impairment (Note 15) BAE (e 15) (622)
At 31 December 2022 R-E-_—_F+_A=+—H 6,077
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
e MR RME
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE=—T_—_—F+_A=1+—HILFE

16. LEASES (Continved) 16. HE (&)
Lease liabilities HEE8E
The carrying amounts of the Group's lease liabilities and the ANEEBREaEEFEEAREEHNT

movements are as follows:

Buildings
BF
HK$'000
FAT
At 1 January 2021 R_E-_—9—HF—H 8,315
Additions NE 6,096
Interest expense MEFX 547
Covid-19-related rent concession Covid- 19 HEATH S B E (152)
lease payments HERK (8,283)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R-BE-_—F+-A=+—H8EK
—T--%—A—H 6,523
Additions NE 7,535
Interest expense MBI 489
Covid-19-elated rent concession Covid- 19 HEATE 2B = (160)
lease payments HE R (6,792)
At 31 December 2022 RZEBE-_—_F+_-_A=+—H 7,595
Future lease payments are as follows: RRAESREZHMOT
Minimum Present value
lease of minimum
payments Interest  lease payments
BEHE
RERASENS FE RRARE
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
At 31 December 2022 R-—EB-—+=-A=+-—H FH&T FExT F#ET
Within 1 year —FR 5,200 (448) 4,752
More than 1 year but BB —FELRRE
less than 2 years 2,650 (122) 2,528
More than 2 years but HBRmFEEDLRAF
less than 5 years 322 (7) 315
8,172 (577) 7,595
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iﬁ%ﬂ’l B R
‘ year ended 31 December 2

16. LEASES (Continued)

16. HE8#®)

Lease liabilities (Continued) HEEE(HE)
Minimum Present value
lease of minimum
payments Inferest  lease payments
HEHEE
RIEEERK ME fTRIRE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
At 31 December 2021 W-ZB-—#+-A=+—81 FHET FHET TET
Within 1 year —FR 5,377 (242) 5,135
More than 1 year but HiE—FEIRMF
less than 2 years 1,419 (31) 1,388
6,796 (273) 6,523
The present value of future lease payments are analysed as: RERMEMKZBBESTOT
2022 2021
—E-_F T
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Current liabilities mEAaE 4,752 5,135
Non-current liabilities IERBEaE 2,843 1,388
7,595 6,523

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the incremental
borrowing rate applied to lease liabilities range from 5.95% to
10.00% (2021: 5.74% 10 9.53%).

Total lease payment related to lease contract entered into between
the Group and a fellow subsidiary of a substantial shareholder of
the Company amounted to HK$ 1,645,000 for the year ended
31 December 2022 (2021: HK$1,773,000).
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—T - —F+ - A=+—HILFE

17. GOODWILL 17. 58
2022 2021
—E_-_—F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TET
Cost 5% 614 614
Accumulated impairment 2itRE 614 614

Net carrying amounts

BRMEFE =

Goodwill acquired in business combination is allocated, at
acquisition, to the CGU that is expected to benefit from that
business combination. For the purpose of impairment fesfing, cost
of goodwill and infangible assets with indefinite useful lives were

BREHAFEBZAERNKER DEER
HIRI XA R 2 RS ELEM - UM
BARME - AERAARAEFERAER
FHZEVEEIKECIHNCRSELRE

allocated to CGU identified as follows: (RN
Goodwill Intangible assets (Note 18]
[k BILEE (K 18)
2022 2021 2022 2021
—EC-CF —EC-—fF —E-CF —E-—fF
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR FET FTEx FHETT
Cost %N
— Chinese health products — PEERER 614 614 5,094 5,094
Accumulated amortisation and S £ 8
impairment
— Chinese health products — hERER 614 614 5,094 5,094
Net carrying amounts IREFE - - - -
FETERFEERERAT 25K 153
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18. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 18. B & E
Trademarks
Gk
(Note)
(Bf=E)
HK$'000
TET
Cost B
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, RZE-_—F—HF—HB ZF2=—F
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 +—-A=+—-8 -—ZE-—_F#—HF—HK
—E-o—E+=-A=+—82 5,094
Accumulated amortisation and impairment R T # 85 & B E
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021, WZE-_—F—AF—HB - ZT=_—F
1 January 2022 and 31 December 2022 +ZA=+—R -ZZE=Z=ZF—A—HXK
—E-—#+-A=+—A1 (5,094)
Net carrying amounts AR TE R E
At 31 December 2021 and AT —F+ZA=+—HK
31 December 2022 —E--F+=-A=+—H -
Note: Hiat -
The useful lives of frademarks, which were acquired through the acquisition EEBEEBUIE RSB P BRERESME
of the Group's Chinese health products business, are estimated by the B ARPDESEHFHECRFEHAER - BR
directors of the Company fo be indefinite as the trademarks are renewable REBAERBEIERARATEEE - REIEZ
at insignificant cost at the option of the Group. Full impairment loss was T-NFTZA=T—HBIENEARERZEA
recognised during the nine months ended 31 December 2019. BEE -
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19. @A A

Particulars of the subsidiaries of the Company at 31 December
2022 and 2021 are as follows:

R —FR_F-_—F+=-_A=+—
B AABRZMBRARGEBNT

Form of Particulars of
Place of incorporation  business issued share capital/

Name of subsidiary and operations structure registered capital Effective percentoge holding ~ Nature of business

£33 23 BRIRE/
HELAER AMATREREE KR AR EREREIM 34631

2022 2001
—BCCE “F--
% %
Shares held directly:
ERBEZRG
Future Empire Limited Biish Virgin lslands ~ Corporate Ordinary US$50,000 100 100 Invesimen holdings and
nvesting in financial instumens

Future Empire Limited ABERRES i L8R 50,000% REBRRRESRHIA
Ace Seoson Holdings Limited Biiish Virgin lslands ~~ Corporae Ordinary US$1,000 100 100 Invesimen holdings
Ace Season Holdings Limied RBUARES Ny £@R1000%T RERR
New Mind [Hong Kong) limited Hong Kong Corporole Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Investment holdings
#el(FR)ARAR (3 d LRk AT REER
Shares/investments held indirecly:
BEEE RS/ RE:
Hong Kong Healhwise limited Hong Kong Corporole Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Dormant
Hong Kong Healfwise limited (3 d ERRET EE%H
Haier Healfwise Company Limited ~ Hong Kong Corporate Ordinary HK$1 - 100 Invesiment holdings
BRERREARAT (3 2] LR BT REERK
Ulra Clossic Invesiments limited Brish Virgin lslonds ~~ Corporate Ordinary US$] 100 100 Invesimen holdings
Ulra Clossic Invesiments Limied AB4RRES A ERRIZT REER
Good Cheer Global Limited Hong Kong Corporole Ordinary HK$1 100 100 Money lending business
Good Cheer Global limited (3 Rl LRR1 AT MERH
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19. SUBSIDIARIES (Continued)

19. B AT (&)

Form of Particulars of
Place of incorporation  business issued share capital/
Name of subsidiary structure registered capital Effective percentage holding ~ Noture of business
FBRR BRfTRE/
il e AMRIRERLE PR ifEnE ERERAMM XHnE
2022 2021
—E-CE -
% %
Shares/investments held indirecly:
BEEEZRE/RE:
NPH Holdings limited Corporate Ordinary US$50,000 100 100 Invesimen holdings
NPH Holdings limited d ERIR50,000%7 REER
Poo Yuk Loong limited Corporole Ordinary HK$350,000 100 100 Invesimen holdings
RERBRAR A £38R 350,000 7 RERR
N P H Sinoeditech Limited Corporate Ordinary HK$2 100 100 Invesimen holdings
BT ERERAT 2] ERR2ER RERR
Nam Pei Hong Sum Yung Drugs Corporole Ordinary HK$1,200,000 100 100 Trading of Chinese healh
Company limited producls
BHTBERIERAR A L8R 1,200,0007 HERRRES
Poo Yuk Loong Food (Shenzhen| Corporate Registered RMB3,000,000 100 100 Trading of Chinese heath
Company limited* producls
REERR (RN ERAF! ] &R ARH 3,000,007 TERRRES
# Limited liability company (solely invested by Taiwan, Hong Kong or RPBEKY 2 EREELR(ZE2HAE -

Macau legal person) established in the PRC.

China Healthwise Holdings Limited  Annual Report 2022
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—T - —F+ - A=+—HILFE

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH

PROFIT OR LOSS

20. BAVPEFABRZEHEE

2022 2021
—=== —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET
Equity securities listed in Hong Kong — MNEE LT RAFS —
at fair value BAYE
— Current portion (Note (a)) — nREED (Mit(a)) 56,170 56,904
Unlisted equity securities FE LR E
— Non-current portion (Note (b)) — IEREE D (M aE (b)) 1,143 2,400
57,313 59,304

EHRAZ S 2 AT ETIIREN S PAAHRE
RETE ° IFLMBRAES 2 A FHEDRIERE
REEEBELMEHEETE -

Fair value of listed equity securities is defermined based on quoted
bid prices in the Stock Exchange. Fair value of unlisted equity
securities is determined based on valuation using asset-based

approach.

As at 31 December 2022, a portfolio of listed equity securities RIZE-_ZF+-A=+—RH  LHERAE
with carrying amount of HK$56,170,000 (2021 HFHEEEEERTRE-—TEEETL(ZZ
HK$52,591,000) have been pledged to secure margin loans ——F AFTZBARTAE—FTETIET
from securities brokers (Note 26). B - DEVS R BB HFLLE 2 RESER (K

FE20) °
Note: K -
(@) The equity securities are classified as financial assets at FVTPL as (o) HBHRREAZFZFDEFEREHALEMEA -

FERARAKIER ARG ERT AR
G2—&n  BE#EBEROIHERRE
BB zBERER SO BRRAFER
ANBHZEREE - ZFRAZFHZRF
BEHRBEHEANRR () -

they have been acquired principally for the purpose of selling in
near term, or are part of a portfolio of identified financial instruments
that are managed together and for which there is evidence of a
recent actual pattern of shortterm profittaking. Changes in their fair
values are recognised in profit or loss (Note 7).

SELETRAB R 2 A FEDNAEEREHR
ZIEETHEMERE - A TFEFEZHE
— FRHEN AR A B SRR ML 38 B EE -

(b) Fair value of unlisted equity securities was determined based on (b)
valuation using assetbased approach. Further details of fair value
measurement are disclosed in Note 38 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE_FE-__F+-_HA=+—HIFE

21. INVENTORIES 21. 7E
2022 2021
—EB_-_F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FHIT
Finished goods IR G 55,121 60,713

During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, no write-

down of inventories was recognised.

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS

RBE-_E-_—_Fh_FE=-_—9F+=A
= +t—RALFE  TERIAMRGTE -

22. BB 5 B K H 1l R W R OR -

AND PREPAYMENTS RERBEMNKE
The carrying amounts of frade and other receivables, deposits and FEUWE 28R K & H A FE MR IR - 2 MFAN
prepayments are as follows: FIBZ BREMENT :
2022 2021
—E-_F —E-—F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET TETT
Trade receivables FEWE 2 AR K 6,420 6,297
less: allowance for ECL H o EHEEEERE (616) (616)
5,804 5,681
Deposits and other receivables e M E A EUGKIA 5,714 4,712
Prepayments TR RIA 3,203 1,450
14,721 11,843

As at 1 January 2021, trade receivables from contracts with

customers amounted fo HK$6,749,000.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—T - —F+ - A=+—HILFE

22. TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES, DEPOSITS 22 EWESEREFREMEWRIE -

AND PREPAYMENTS (Confinved) BERENSFTE@®

[a) The ageing analysis of the trade receivables, net of o) EREBEREMAIBREZAHIER
allowance for ECL, based on invoice dates as of the end of BOEZ(NKRTERZESERE) 2
reporting period, is as follows: BRSO ¢

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET THET

0-90 days ZENTH 5,800 5174

91-180 days h+—BZ—B/N\+H 4 507

5,804 5,681

The Group's sales are on open account terms. Credit terms REE 2 HEHGUNRRGTET  E

are reviewed on a regular basis. The normal credit terms ERFechRs  EBEEHENT

range from 30 to Q0 days (2021: 30 to 90 days) but =t+HZzA+H(ZZE=—%: =+H

business partners with strong financial backgrounds may be ENTH) BEPNEEZ EBRBHE
offered longer credit terms. AR THRERZEES -

(b)  During the year ended 31 December 2022, no impairment b #HE-Z-_ "+ -_A=1+—HItHF
loss was recognised in respect of frade receivables (2021: B WESEWE 5 RSN HERR(EE
nil). B(ZF——%:8\)-

Further details of ECL assessment on the Group's trade and other BB ANEEEWSE 50 R B A E IR

receivables are disclosed in Note 37(a) to the consolidated TR EEBRITIGZE—FHERES

financial statements. BA TSR P 5E 37 (a) 2R ©
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE_FE-__F+-_HA=+—HIFE

23. LOAN RECEIVABLES 23. EWWE R

The carrying amount of loan receivables from money lending

BARKERERBELEZ BREEFREEN

business of the Group was as follows: T :
2022 2021
—E-—F T
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET

loan receivables arising from money BB E IS E A 2 EIRE R

lending business 320,800 300,537
less: allowance for ECL o TREEEEERE (186,749) (161,965)
134,051 138,572

As at 31 December 2022 and 2021, loan receivables are
unsecured, interestbearing at fixed rates ranging from 8%—13%
per annum.

The maturity profile of the loan receivables, net of allowance for
ECL, if any, at the end of the reporting period, analysed by the
remaining period to ifs confracted maturity, is as follows:

RZEZ—FR-_ZE-_—F+-_A=+—
B EREFAEERE  ZETEFFENT
BOZN\EBAHDZT=5tR -

RBERR - BREXFIRBHREEESR
BEA))ZANTATEA ZFHHR

DT 2 BIEIER AT -

2022 2021

—EB-—F —E-—F

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHET FHIT

Within 1 year —FR 132,002 32,392
Over 1 vear B—F 2,049 106,180
134,051 138,572

During the year ended 31 December 2022, impairment loss of
HK$24,784,000 was recognised in respect of loan receivables
(2021: HK$102,606,000).

Further details of ECL assessment on the Group's loan receivables
are disclosed in Note 37(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—T - —F+ - A=+—HILFE

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

24 RERBAEEEY

2022 2021

—E_-_—F —E-—F

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHExT T

Cash and bank balances B4 MIRITE % 16,850 40,007

Bank balances carry interest at floating rates and placed with
creditworthy banks with no recent history of default.

Further defails of ECL assessment on the Group’s bank balances
are disclosed in Note 37/(a) to the consolidated financial
statements.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUED

RITEBILEDNEGE - DFERLEE

KRR EERIFZIRTT ©

BRUAKBRTEHRETIRBIEEBR
A CE—FTFBREAM B RRME

37a) #E 5 o

25 ENESRIAREMEARER

CHARGES FETE A
2022 2021
—E-—F 2 —F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FAT
Trade payables e B Z R 23,770 17,604
Other payables and accrued charges H b e FIE K EAHE A 12,195 9,006
35,965 26,610

The ageing analysis of frade payables, based on invoice dates as

AERBERSHARZEZAH RN E K

of the end of reporting period, is as follows: RZ RO -
2022 2021
—EB-_—F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET TETT
0-90 days ZENTH 23,631 17,465
Q@1-180 days A+—HE—B/\+H = -
181-365 days —BN\T—REZE=B/THHA - -
Over 365 days B=EthH 139 139
23,770 17,604
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26. BORROWINGS 26, B8
2022 2021
—EC-CF —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHExT FET
Margin loans from securities brokers R BB H &L 2 REBESE R 15,472 12,036
Other loan HEER 15,792 -
31,264 12,036

As at 31 December 2022, the Group had margin loans from
securities brokers of HK$15,472,000 (2021: HK$12,036,000).
The interest rates of margin loans range from 8% to 10% per
annum (2021:10%) per annum, repayable on demand and were
secured by a portfolio of listed equity securities with carrying
amounts of HK$56,170,000 (2021: HK$52,591,000).

At 31 December 2022, the Group had other loan of
HK$15,792,000. The other loan is interest-bearing at Hong
Kong Prime Rate [as quoted by the designated bank) plus 4% per
annum, secured by share charge over issued shares in a
subsidiary of the Group and guaranteed by the Company. As the
other loan contains a repayable on demand clause, the entire
outstanding balance of the other loan was classified under current
liabilities.
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27. DEFERRED TAX 27 IRIERIE
The movements in deferred fax assefs and liabilities during the ENELFIBEERBEES (T RE—
year, without taking info consideration the offsefting of balances S a ARSI (mAE) T ¢
within the same tax jurisdiction, if any, were as follows:
Deferred fax assefs: BREBIBAE -
Allowance
for ECL
on financial
assefs
REREE
BHEE
EiETRZ
BE
HK$'000
THTT
At 1 January 2021 R-E-_—F—H—H 3,608
Charge to profit or loss BBk (2,466)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R-T-_—F+-A=+—H
rZZE-—F—F—H 1,142
Credit o profit or loss FAEE 1,555
At 31 December 2022 R-E-—F+-_A=+—H 2,697
Deferred tax liabilities: BELERARE
Convertible
loan notes
CIE:T.)
ERREE
HK$'000
TET
At 1 January 2021, 31 December 2021 RZEB-_—F—fF—H Z&=—F
and 1 January 2022 +TZA=+—BRZT-__F—-H—H -
Charge fo profit or loss gIEZEE 368
At 31 December 2022 R-ZE-—F+-_HA=+—H 368
FESERFEZRARAT —T--FH 163
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27. DEFERRED TAX (Confinved)

A deferred tax asset has not been recognised for the following:

27 REERIE (&)

WEPLIA TS REREEHAEE -

2022 2021
—EC-CF T —F
HK$’000 HK$'000
TR FHET

Deductible temporary differences AT R =R
— Accelerated tax depreciation — 2EHBERE 6,117 6,711
Unused tax losses RNE) R HIEE 18 278,737 229,525
284,854 236,236

Deferred tax assets are recognised for estimated tax losses carry
forward to the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefits
through future taxable profits are probable. The Group did not
recognise deferred fox assets in respect of estimated losses
amounting to approximately HK$278,737,000 (2021
HK$229,525,000) that can be carried forward against future
taxable income. All tax losses as at 31 December 2022 and
2021 may be carried forward indefinitely.
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28. SHARE CAPITAL 28. A&

Authorised
EE
Convertible cumulative
redeemable preference shares of

US$100,000 each Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
SRAEETEXTZ
ARRTRETERELR SREESEZT-EIZEER
Number of shares Number of shares
RAEE RAEE
US$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
TER Tk THx
At T January 2021 RZZZ—F—F—H 40 4,000 1,500,000 1,500,000
Capital reorganisation (Nofe) BREH (fi7E) - - 148,500,000 -
At 31 December 2021, 1 January ~ RZZ=—%+-A=+—-8-
2022 and 31 December 2022 —E-—&#—HF-AF
T -F+-RA=+—H 40 4,000 150,000,000 1,500,000
Issued and fully paid
BRTRARE
Convertible cumulative
redeemable preference shares of
US$100,000 each Ordinary shares of HK$0.01 each
EREETEZETZ
ARRTRETERELR BREEZHS-BI2EBR
Number of shares Number of shares
ROEE ROEA
US$'000 ‘000 HK$'000
e F& THr
At 1 January 2021 N-E-_—F—-A—H - - 770,481 770,481
Capital reorganisation (Nofe) BARER () - - - (762,776)
At 31 December 2021, 1 January ~ RZZ=—%+=-f=+—-H"
2022 and 31 December 2022 “E-F-A-Hk
—E--F+-A=+—H - - /70,481 7,705
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28. SHARE CAPITAL (Continued)
Note:

Pursuant to an exiraordinary general meeting held on 11 August 2021,
the resolution approving the capital reorganisation involving capital
reduction, share sub-division and share premium reduction (the “Capital
Reorganisation”) was duly passed by way of poll. The Company
completed the implementation of the Capital Reorganisation on 6 Ocfober
2021, in which the Capital Reorganisation involved:

(1) Capital reduction
The par value of each of the issued ordinary shares of the Company
was reduced from HK$1.00 to HK$0.01 by cancelling the paid-
up share capital to the extent of HK$0.99 per issued ordinary
share (the "Capital Reduction”). The credit arising from the Capital
Reduction of HK$762,776,000 were credited to the accumulated

losses of the Company.

(2)  Share subdivision
Immediately following the Capital Reduction, each of the authorised
but unissued ordinary shares of par value of HK$1.00 each will be
sub-divided into 100 adjusted shares of par value of HK$0.01

each.

(3)  Share premium reduction
The credit arising from the share premium reduction of
HK$311,491,000 were credited to the accumulated losses of the
Company.

Following the Capital Reorganisation, the authorised share capital of the
Company was HK$1,500,000,000 divided into 150,000,000,000
shares, of which 770,480,836 shares have been issued and are fully
paid.
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28. A& (&)
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G A REREIR - B AR E EH
R BEABH(EAEA D 2 RAZREBBRERE
RATAEER BB - ARFAENR T - —F+
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(1) BEARHIE
ARREBBEHBARABREHTE
BRZEHANEBLZ IR BEREET
EREZEER-HETETHRETH
T BEAREIR )  ABRABRES
ZERBLEATE L HEEATERR
FPAARRTZ REHERE -

(2) Bt
ZREEAERER  SREERHTETE
TZERBEEERETERREIFAR
—ERSHRAEATHTE BT ILRAE
Bt o

(3)  Beiyim{ERIR
A tm BoORMESZEKHE
=E-T-AEtTAE - TEIZSFAR
RAEZ REHEE -
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DR-THRARRERD  FhEECTEOHAE
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29. SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company operates a share option scheme (the "Scheme”) for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants who contribute to the success of the Group's
operation. The Scheme, which was adopted by an ordinary
resolution of the shareholders on 14 September 2012, constitutes
a share option scheme governed by Chapter 17 of the Llisting
Rules.

Under the Scheme, share options can be exercised at any time
during the periods to be defermined and notified by the directors
of the Company to the grantees at the time of making offers to
grant share options fo them, provided that such periods shall not
exceed the period of ten years from the date of grant. The scheme
mandate limit of the Scheme was refreshed pursuant to a
shareholders’ resolution passed in the annual general meeting of
the Company held on 4 September 2018 (the "AGM”"). The
maximum number of shares available for issue under the Scheme
is 85,213,083, representing 10% of the issued ordinary share
capital of the Company as at the date of the AGM, affer the
share consolidation of the Company on 25 September 2020. The
subscription price for the shares under the Scheme shall be a price
defermined by the directors at its discretion, provided that it shall
not less than the higher of (i] the closing price of the shares stated
in the daily quotation sheets of Stock Exchange on the date of
grant and (i) the average closing price of the shares stated in the
Stock Exchange's daily quotation sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of share options. A
nominal consideration of HK$1 is payable for each of the share
options granted.

The Scheme had been lapsed on 14 September 2022.
No share option was granted, exercised, lapsed or cancelled

during the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021.

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, there was no outstanding
share options under any share option scheme.

29. IR

AREEBET-EBREAS (58] B&
AHEANEE XBRABERMZAERSHE
ERMHERNEE - SHER_F——FNA
THEARRBEE RRERRN  BRF
ETRRIE+EEEE ZBRETE -

RIEFTE - BRETRAARESEELT
MERARZ R BRI Mg &R A ZH
FIABEEF7TE - HZBHAEBBR LA S
HBETTF o AT B 2T BIEE LR EREAA
ARZZE—NFNAEBRITZREBFKX
g ((REEFRY]) LBBr —HERERE
BT AEH o T8I T Al T 2 RIDEE &
BANTRHE-+—B8=FTZTN\+= 48
BN _Z-_ZFEANA-_THEARAKGAE
HEBRFAFAEAHARREHITERR
AZERZT s EETZRHBEERH
EXATHBET  TBER()REBH
B T B SR B R ATFI) 2 B D I (& K i)
S IR B HA AT LA ¥ B R AT
BRREXRMYZBROHFHRTEMED Z
Bas ERZBMHEREESN B
SHNRE-

AEER-Z_FAATMHBRI -

HEe_Z-_—FR-_ZT-_—F+-_A=+—
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30. RESERVES

The Group

The natures and purposes of reserves are sef out below:

Share premium

Under the Companies law [Revised) Chapter 22 of the Cayman
Islands, share premium of the Company is available for paying
distributions and dividends to shareholders subject to the
provisions of its Memorandum and Articles of Association and
provided that immediately following the distributions or dividend
payments, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in
the ordinary course of business.

Convertible loan notes — equity reserve

Amount of proceeds on issue of convertible loan nofes relafing fo
the equity component (i.e. opfion to convert the debt into share
capital).

Exchange fluctuation reserve

Exchange fluctuation reserve represents foreign exchange
differences arising from the translation of the financial statements
of foreign operations. The reserve is dealt with in accordance with
the accounting policy sef out in Note 4{l) to the consolidated
financial statements.

Retained profits/accumulated losses

It represents the cumulafive net gains and losses recognised in
profit or loss.
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30. RESERVES (Confinved) 30. @& @)
The Company PN/
Convertible
Share loan notes —  Accumulated
premium  equity reserve losses Total
CIE:3:d
BREE —
R RE EnF#E ZitEE st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FAET FAET FAET FAT
At T January 2021 NZZE-_—F—H—H 424,467 19,835 (1,137,894) (693,592)
Profit for the year F R - - 6,704 6,704
Capital reorganisation BREME (K7 28)
[Note 28] (311,491) - 1,074,267 762,776
At 31 December 2021 and R-ZE-_—F+-A=+—H
1 January 2022 rE—ZE-—F—H—8 112,976 19,835 (56,923) 75,888
Loss for the year FAEIE - - (14,635) (14,635)
At 31 December 2022 R-ZBE-_—F#+-A=+—8H 112,976 19,835 (71,558) 61,253
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31. HOLDING COMPANY STATEMENT OF 3. ER AT BMRRE
FINANCIAL POSITION
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
M5 F&ET FET
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES EEREE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Interests in subsidiaries AIB AR Z R 141,966 153,564
Financial assets at FVTPL BAVEGSAERZS
TREE 1,143 2,400
143,109 155,964
Current assets REEE
Prepayments ARt FRIE 151 151
Cash and cash equivalents BHehBESEED 350 2,498
501 2,649
Current liabilities RBEE
Other payables and accrued charges  Hth fE~ ZIB N fE -+ & A 3,241 2,720
Convertible loan notes AR ERER - 72,300
3,241 75,020
Net current liabilities REBEEFE (2,740) (72,371)
Total assets less current liabilities WEERARBER 140,369 83,593
Non-current liabilities kRBEME
Convertible loan notes B EREE 71,043 -
Deferred tax liabilities EEFIERE 368 -
71,411 -
Net assets EEZFE 68,958 83,593
EQUITY s
Share capital i 28 7,705 7,705
Reserves s 30 61,253 75,888
Total equity @ 68,958 83,593
Signed on behalf of the board of directors by: REREFEHEF -
Lei Hong Wai Tse Chi Keung
(R El=E:
Director Director
EE S
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #HE—T - —F+ - A=+—HILFE

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

At 31 December 2022 and 2021, the Group had no material
contingent liabilities.

RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS
During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, the

Group had fransactions and balances with related parties, some
of which are also deemed to be connected parties pursuant to the
Listing Rules. Besides, transactions between the Company and its
subsidiaries have been eliminated on consolidation and are not
disclosed in this note.

(a) During the years ended 31 December 2022 and 2021,
the Group entered info the following material transactions
with related parties:

Related party relationship

32.

33.

Types of transaction

HRERE

R —FR-_ZT-_—F+_F=+—
B AEBWESKHAREE -

BFREALRS

HE—_T-_—FR-_ZF-_—F+-_A=+—
HIEFE  AEBEGEFEEEAT(BHI
BIBELEMRAEEABEALD)ETRIR
BERREE - N ARBIRENBARZ
M2 XS5 EREGE ARSI - I ERAH
EAEE -

(o) BEZZE-_—FR=-_F=-_—F+=A
—t+t—HIEFE  ANEBSEGEEA
TEMNUATEARS !

Transaction amount

FEEALRAR REER REEH
2022 2021
—E-—F —E-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET TAET
Fellow subsidiary of a substantial Inferest on lease liabilities
shareholder of the Company HEBENE - 11
ARB—HBEERRZRARZME AT
Shorterm lease expenses
EHITE &R 2 1,645 1,069

(b) Compensation of key management personnel
remuneration

The remuneration of directors, who are key management
personnel, are disclosed in Nofe 14(a) fo the consolidated
financial statements.

The remuneration of directors is deftermined by the
remuneration committee having regard fo the salaries paid
by comparable companies, time commitment and
responsibilities, and employment conditions elsewhere in the

Group.

PEBRERRERERAR

b) FTEEEREREFMEE

EX(ERIEEERBE) FINER
B BEIRRMFE 14(a) B

EEFHAFMEE@2RUTELR
AR HE  BRARRETNR
AEEEAMERGEET -
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34. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES 34. T RREFE

On 8 October 2018 (the "Issue Date”), the Company issued
initially 8% straight bonds with a principal amount of
HK$120,000,000 with conditional conversion rights (the
"Conversion Rights”). The bonds mature two years from the lssue
Date at their principal amount, or subject to the satisfaction of
cerfain conditions precedent in relation to the Conversion Rights
(the “CB Conditions Precedent’), can be converted info ordinary
shares of the Company at the holder's option [the “Conversion
Option”) at the fixed rate of HK$0.1 per share. On 22 November
2018 (the “Change Date”), the CB Conditions Precedent have
been fulfilled and the straight bonds were changed to 6%
convertible loan notes embedded with the rights of early
redemption by the Company (the "Redemption Rights’]. The
convertible loan notes are denominated in Hong Kong dollars.
Further details of the convertible loan notes were set out in the
Company's announcements dated 8 October 2018 and 22
November 2018. On 28 August 2020, the Company entered
info the supplemental agreement with the subscriber that the
Company and the subscriber conditionally agreed to extend the
original maturity date of convertible loan notes for two years to 10
October 2022 and all the conditions precedent was fulfilled on @
October 2020.

The convertible loan notes contain the Redemption Rights that
allow the Company as the issuer fo redeem the convertible loan
nofes af par together with accrued inferests at any time during the
life of the convertible loan notes. The redemption price is
substantially equal to the amortised cost of the liability component
of the convertible loan notes. Accordingly, the Redemption Rights
are considered fo be 'closely related’ to the liability component of
the convertible loan notes, and the Redemption Right is therefore
not separately recognised from the liability component of the
convertible loan nofes.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
exercised Redemption Rights to redeem the convertible loan notes
with principal amount of HK$ 13,200,000.

On 17 August 2022, the Company entered info the supplemental
agreement with the subscriber that the Company and the
subscriber conditionally agreed to extend the maturity date of
convertible loan notes for two years to 10 October 2024 and fo
amend the conversion price of the convertible loan notes from
HK$1.00 per conversion share (adjusted after share consolidation
effective on 25 September 2020) to HK$0.38 per conversion
share. All the conditions precedent was fulfilled on 10 October

2022 and a gain on modification of HK$2,459,000 was

recognised.
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34. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (Continved)

The directors af the Company considered the terms of the
convertible loan notes met the ‘fixedforfixed’ criterion. Therefore,
the Conversion Option is recognised as equity component of the
convertible loan notes.

The fair values of the liability component and the equity conversion
component were determined af the Change Date. The fair value
of the liability component, was calculated using a market inferest
rate for an equivalent non-convertible loan notes. The residual
amount, representing the value of the equity conversion

34.

AREREFREZEE &)

RRREERRABRBRERERZIGRTE
[EFE S EE ] 1R - Fit - SRERERS
AR ERREERAD o

BESY MEREREOZ A FERERE
EE - AEIoZA ﬁfﬁ?XH%%TEiFT}ﬁ%Hx

ERERZITHNEAE - Rp B (S
mERES 2 BE) FTABREZR (RRT
BIA) °

component, is included in shareholders” equity net of deferred tox.

The convertible loan notes recognised in the consolidated

R AR BIRRERRY TR RERET)
BT -

statement of financial position are calculated as follows:

HK$'000
FET
Equity component of convertible loan nofes REBTHZABRREREE Z#ERITD

on the Change Date 19,835

Equity component of convertible loan nofes R-ZE-_—F+-_A=+—HRK

as at 31 December 2021 and —EF+ZA=+—HZ
31 December 2022 AR ERER s 19,835
Liability component at 1 January 2021 R-EBE-—F—HA—HzBEHXD 85,500
Partial redemption of convertible loan notes o BOI AR REREE (13,200
Interest expense FEMAZ 4,773
Coupon interest ESSN (4,773)

Liobi|ity component at 31 December 2021 RZE-_—F+-_A=1+—8xk
and 1 January 2022 —ToHF—-R-RAZAaEHs /2,300
Modification of convertible loan notes BT AR E R E (2,459)
Inferest expense MBI 4,566
Coupon interest zB (3,364)
Liabilities component at 31 December 2022 R-ZB-—HF+-_A=+—HZAaEMs 71,043
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34. CONVERTIBLE LOAN NOTES (Continved)

Inferest expense on the convertible loan notes is calculated af 6%

per annum fo the liability component.

Upon modification of the convertible loan notes on 10 October

2022, inferest expense on the convertible loan notes is calculated

at effective interest rate of 8% per annum to the liability

component.

35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(a)

(b)

174

Maijor non-cash transactions

During the year ended 31 December 2022, the Group had
non-cash addifions fo rightof-use assefs and lease liabilities
of HK$7,535,000 (2021: HK$6,096,000) and
HK$7,535,000 (2021: HK$6,096,000), respectively, in
respect of lease contracts for buildings.

The table below defails changes in the Group's liabilities
arising from financing activities, including both cash and
non-cash changes. Liabilities arising from financing activities
are those for which cash flows were, or future cash flows
will be classified in the Group's consolidated statement of
cash flows as cash flows from financing activities.
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35. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 35, REBE T8 > 8 @Y E «)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES (Confinued

(b)  (Continued) b) (&)
Interest  Convertible Leases
payable  loan notes  Borrowings  liabilities Total
k-3
BNAAE BERE 8 HEAE ast

HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
FHET FAL FAT FAT THET
[Note 34)  [Note 26)  [Note 16)
(Bt 34)  (Biaz26) (BiaE16)

At 1 January 2021 NZE-—F—F—H 2,757 85,500 20,000 8,315 116,572
Change from cash flows: Rene#s)
Repayment of borrowing BiEEm - - [7.964) - (7,964)
Repayment of convertible loan BRI ERZE
notes - (13,200) - - (13,200)
Inferest paid BEAFIE (2,144) (4,773) - (547) (7,464)
Repayment of principal portion  EEHEEEZ
of lease liabilities K& - - - (7,7306) (7,7306)
(2,144) (17,973) (7,964) (8,283) (36,364)
Other changes: Hih s
New leases IRk - - - 6,096 6,096
Finance costs BEMA 1,090 4,773 - 547 6,410
Covid-19-related rent Covid-19 18R £
concession BH - - - (152) (152)
1,090 4773 - 6,491 12,354
At 31 December 2021 N_B-—F
and 1 January 2022 +-A=+—HAK
—E--%—A—H 1,703 72,300 12,036 6,523 92,562
Change from cash flows: Rene#s)
New borrowing HE® - - 19,228 - 19,228
Interest poid BEAFE (3,118 (3,364] - (489) (6,971)
Repayment of principal porfion B2 EBEZ
of lease liabilities K& - - - (6,303) (6,303)
(3,118) (3,364) 19,228 16,792 5,054
Other changes: Hip &g :
New leases ;AL - - - 7,535 7,535
Finance cosfs BB R 2,242 4,566 - 489 7,297
Gain on modification &7z - (2,459) - - (2,459)
Covid-19-elated rent Covid- 19188 &
concession BR - - - (160) (160
2,242 2,107 - 7,864 12,213
At 31 December 2022 NZE-_F
+=—A=1+—8 82/ 71,043 31,264 7,595 110,729
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36. CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 36. EXERERE

The Group's objective of managing capital are to safeguard the
Group's ability fo continue as a going concem in order fo provide
refurns for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce cost of capital.

The capital structure of the Group consists of net debts, comprising
lease liabilities (Note 16), borrowings (Note 26), and convertible
loan notes (Note 34), less cash and cash equivalents (Note 24)
and listed equity securities at FVTPL (Note 20], and equity
afributable to owners of the Company, comprising share capital
(Note 28) and reserves (Note 30).

The directors review the capital structure periodically. As part of
this review, the directors consider the cost of capital and the risks
associated with each class of capital. Based on recommendations
of management, the Group will balance its overall capital structure
through the payment of dividends, issue of new share as well as
new debts or redemption of existing debts.

The net debts fo equity rafio of the Group at the end of reporting
period are as follows:

AEBEEEARZ B )RR S BEEHE
BRE  REREHLOBESEMNSREE
AR - WEFREZEARE LR

AEBEARBREERFH(EEEE
BEME16)  BE (FFE20) AT B E
REE(ME3)RRE RREEEY (HE
24) ~ BAVER AR Z LT RARE S (4
FE20) RAREHE AEERE (BB
(Bff=E 28) B f& & (B=E30)) ©

EEEHRFEARRE - ERULR 2 — &
D EFEEREANANEAERESNER
ZER - RIBEEE &R ARERER
IRATRCR  BITHBA R ES KEORE
7% FEHEERZENRE -

RESHRAEE B FERYEEAE
BT

2022 2021

—E-—F T

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET TET

Debts B 109,902 90,859

Cash and cash equivalents BHEMESEEY (16,850) 40,007
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABEZCRHEE

— listed equity securities — FmRARES (56,170) 56,904)

Net debts B 558 36,882 (6,052)

Equity i 138,649 193,064

Net debts to equity ratio B FRRAESEEREL X 26.60% N/A i
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
Financial risk factors

The Group's activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
credit risk, liquidity risk, interest rate risk, foreign exchange risk
and equity price risk.

These risks are limited by the Group's financial management
policies and practices described below.

(@) Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to ifs trade
and other receivables, loan receivables and bank balances
with @ maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of
these instruments. The direcfors has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

Trade receivables

In respect of trade receivables, individual credit evaluations
are performed on all customers requiring credit over a
certain amount. These evaluations focus on the customer’s
past history of making payments when due and current
ability to pay, and take info account information specific to
the customers as well as pertaining fo the economic
environment in which the customers operate. Ongoing credit
evaluation is performed on the financial condition of trade
customers and, where appropriate, credit guarantee
insurance cover is purchased. Trade receivables are due
within 30-90 days from the date of billing. Debtors with
balances that are more than 3 months past due are
requested fo seftle all outstanding balances before any
further credit is granted. Normally, the Group does not
obtain collateral from customers.

37. HEREEE
BB E %

AEBZEZHEEARMYTRAMEER : E8
Rk - RBESRERE - FEER - IMNERKR
AR AER R -

ZERRRIAEE M BERBERERER
ZRBIE o

(a) (FEER

AEEZEERREERAEEKE
SRR A M EWRIE - R E M
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(al

178

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

The Group's exposure to credit risk is influenced mainly by
the individual characteristics of each customer. The default
risk of the industry and country in which customers operate
also has an influence on credit risk but to a lesser extent. At
the end of reporting period, the Group has a certain
concentration of credit risk as 37% (2021: 36%) and 95%
[2021: 92%) of the total trade receivables was due from
the Group's largest customer and the five largest customers
respectively within the Chinese health products business
segments.

The Group measures allowance for ECL on frade
receivables at an amount equal fo lifetime ECL.

For trade receivables that are creditimpaired, the Group
assessed lifetime ECL individually. At 31 December 2022,
the Group considered that trade receivables with gross
carrying amount of HK$616,000 (2021 Nil) were credit
impaired and allowance for ECL was fully provided as af
31 December 2022.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(al

Credit risk (Continued)
Trade receivables (Continued)

For trade receivables that are not creditimpaired, the Group
assessed lifetime ECL using provision matrix. As the Group's
historical credit loss experience does not indicate
significantly different loss patterns for different customer
segments, the allowance for ECL based on past due status
is nof further distinguished between the Group's different
customer bases. At 31 December 2022, the Group
considered that trade receivables with gross carrying
amount of HK$5,804,000 (2021: HK$6,297,000) were
nof creditimpaired. No allowance for ECL was recognised
on these trade receivables as it is considered to be

insignificant at 31 December 2022 (2021: HK$616,000).

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience
over the past years. These rafes are adjusted to reflect
differences between economic conditions during the period
over which the historic data has been collected, current
conditions and the Group's view of economic conditions
over the expected lives of the receivables.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Confinved) 37 HREREE &)

Financial risk factors (Continved) BBREEZEZ)
(a)  Credit risk (Continued) o) EEER(E)

Trade receivables (Continued)

EWE SRR (&)
FRAHEKEZRAAREEBHE

Movement in the allowance for ECL on trade receivables

during the year is as follows: REE 2 2EBWT
Lifetime ECL
[not credit- Lifetime ECL
impaired)  (creditimpaired) Total
AIEAFHAY RIERAFEHRZ
TEHEERE EEEERE
(W EFERIE) (EERE) st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEIT FHT T
At 1 January 2021, RZE-_—F—H—8"
31 December 2021 and —ET-—%+=A
1 January 2022 =+—BRZZ=_Z
—H—H 616 - 616
Transfer to creditimpaired EEEEERE (616) 616 -
At 31 December 2022 R-TE-—F
+=-—A=+—H - 616 616
Other receivables H il JEY KA
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For other receivables, the directors make periodic individual
assessment on the recoverability of other receivables based
on historical seftlement records, past experience and
supportive forward-looking information. Except for other
receivables with gross carrying amount of HK$ 1,906,000
which is considered to be creditimpaired, the directors
believe that there is no significant increase in credit risk of
the remaining balances of other receivables since initial
recognition and the 12m ECL on these balances is
considered to be insignificant at 31 December 2022 and
2021. For creditimpaired other receivables, accumulated
allowance for ECL of HK$ 1,906,000 was recognised at
31 December 2022 and 2021.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(al

Credit risk (Continued)
Loan receivables

The Group's money lending business only provides loan
financing. The Group's customers principally include high
net worth individuals, private companies, or listed
companies infroduced fo the staff and management of the
Group through business/personal networks or are referred
to the Group by its existing or former customers. All the
cusfomers of the Group's money lending business are third
parties independent of the Company and its connected

persons.

The Group has developed a credit policy and procedures
manual for its money lending business. The credit policy and
procedures manual specifies the Group’s credit policy
towards its money lending business, the risk management of
the Group’s money lending business, and the credit
procedures for the Group’s money lending business, which
include, among others, the loan application, credit
approval, loan closing, and monitoring ongoing credit risk
procedures. All new customers of the Group are subject o
loan application procedures, which include customer due
diligence, reference check for credit and character, and
financial background check. The following internal control
procedures are put in place:

(i) Credit risk assessment of customers

Prior fo grant of a loan to a customer, the Group
carries out credit risk assessment on the customer,
taking info account, among other things, the following
factors:

(1) background and character of the customer, if
the customer is an individual;

(2)  shareholders’ background, character, and
management capability, if the customer is a
company;

(3] purpose of the loan;

[4)  source of repayment;
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

182

(al

Credit risk (Continued)

Lloan receivables [Continued)

(i)

(i)

Credit risk assessment of customers (Continued)

(5)  value of collateral and guarantee(s), if any; and

(6) the financial strength of the customer,
shareholder(s), and guarantor(s).

For renewal/extension of any granted loans, the
Group carries out an update assessment on the
customer. In addition, the Group also considers the
cusfomer’s repayment behavior in the past.

Mechanism in defermining loan terms

The terms of a loan are normally determined following
arm'’s length negotiation between the Group and the
cusfomer, taking into account the factors set out in (1)
above. Normally, The Group tends to grant loans
under loan tenure of not more than five years, subject
to renewals by mutual consent. The Group would
normally fest the customer’s willingness/reluctance to
provide collateral /guarantee to the loan, but will take
a pragmatic approach in order to maintain flexibility
and competitiveness as compared to banking
institutions who can normally offer better rates to the
customer if they can provide collateral /guarantee.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved)
Financial risk factors (Continved)

(a)  Credit risk (Continued)

Loan receivables [Continued)

(i)

Approval process for granting loans, and related

checks and balances

The approval process for granting or renewing loans

is normally as follows:

(1)

(4)

the Group would request the customer to
comp\efe the Loan Apphcoﬁon Form, the Know
Your Customer Form, and the Personal Financial
Information Form:

the Finance Department would seek to verify the
information provided by the customer, collect
supporting documents, and complete the Loan
Recommendation Form on the customer’s loan
application and submit to the responsible
directors;

the responsible directors would review the
recommendation from the Finance Deporfment,
spot check the supporting documents, and
indicate their approval (with or without
modification] or rejection of the loan
application;

the Finance Department will carry out
compliance procedures on all loan applications
approved by the responsible directors. Under
the credit policy and procedures manual, if the
grant of a loan does not consfitute a nofifiable
transaction under Chapter 14 of the Listing
Rules and the customer is not a connected
person, the grant of the loan would only be
required to be approved by the responsible
directors;
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

Credit risk (Continued)

(a)

184

Loan receivables [Continued)

(iii)

(iv)

Approval process for granting loans, and related

checks and balances (Continved)

(5)

(6)

if the grant of a loan constitutes a nofifiable
and/or connected transaction under Chapter
14 or 14A of the listing Rules, the grant of the
loan would be required to be submitted to the
board of directors for approval; and

the Finance Department would prepare the loan
documentation for signing, and the
announcement if the grant of a loan consfitutes
a nofifiable and/or connected transaction.

Monitoring loan repayment

The following procedures are in place for monitoring

loan repayment:

(1)

(2)

monthly loan repayment and inferest payment
schedules are prepared by the Finance
Department fo enable the responsible directors
fo monitor the tfimely payment of each customer.
If a custfomer does not make loan repayment or
interest payment in accordance with the loan
agreement, the Finance Department would
prompitly report to the responsible directors; and

the responsible directors conduct the following
loan monitoring procedures twice a year for
each loan, which include: a review of the
pattern of credit usage, contact with the
customer, review of periodic financial
statements/position of the customer, and
monitor compliance with existing covenants or

other conditions of the loan.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

37. BB EBER @)

Financial risk factors (Continved) BEEMEEZ)
(a)  Credit risk (Continued) () EERKE)
loan receivables (Continued) EWE (&)
liv)  Monitoring loan repayment (Continued) (v EEREEERE)
The conducting of semi-annual loan monitoring not ETHEFEEERERETMEEES

only enables the responsible directors to identify
problematic loans on a timely basis, but also serves
as an input for loan classification in calculating

B kRRNAREZER
I B A S T S N E R
ERRMEREER I BERTE

allowance for ECL on loan receivables for financial ,tj.,

IR DB AR -

reporting purposes.

[v)  Actions for recovering delinquent loans v BHHERERITH
The actions taken for recovering delinquent loans AR B SR Y (TR
would normally include the following: B TNEIE

(1) examine and evaluate the delinquent loan (1)

BE R EIEREFIOR ;

situation;

(2)  discuss with the customer of the delinquent loan; (2] BEEEHHIERER

(3)  discuss intfernally to formulate an action plan of (3)  AIEBET 0 A B SE B 51T B
recovery; and BE

[4)  recovery sirategy can involve a wide range of (4) BEEBEAIAEY RETT
actions, which includes the revising of the 3 BEBITBHKES .

repayment terms, adding of collaterals/

EAERGEER - EK
TR HEPFREEEF
A K/ ok 58 i B 1T 4K 4R
uu/y:1%°

guarantees, reaching of settlement, the
commencement of legal actions against the
customer, and/or enforcement on collaterals/
guarantees.

RESEREERERAT T 4R 185



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

i & M58 R
For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE_FE-__F+-_HA=+—HIFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(a)

186

Credit risk (Continued)
Loan receivables [Continued)

The directors consider that the above internal control
procedures significantly reduce the Group's credit risk.

The board of directors strives to ensure that the credit policy
and procedures manual is appropriate to the market need
and the procedures as set out in the manual are strictly
followed and carried out by the staff. The board of directors
has appointed APAC Compliance Consultancy and Internal
Control Services Limited, an independent firm, to conduct
independent review on adequacy and effectiveness of the
risk management and infernal confrol systems of the Group's
money lending business.

For internal credit risk management, the Group considers a
loan receivable as underperforming which indicates that
there is a significant increase in credit risk if (i) the
repayment of principal and/or inferest has been overdue for
more than one month, and [ii] the principal, accrued
interest, and/or future interest of the loan may not be fully
secured by the fair value of the collateral at its prevailing
market price. The Group considers a loan receivable as
non-performing which indicates that the loan receivable
becomes credit impaired if (i] the repayment of principal
and/or interest has been overdue for more than three
months, and (i) the collection of principal and/or inferest in
full is improbable after taking into account the fair values of
the collateral at prevailing market price.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(al

Credit risk (Continued)
Loan receivables [Continued)

The Group applies the general approach, which is often
referred to “three-stage model”, under HKFRS 9, in which
ECL of loan receivable are determined based on (i) the
changes in credit quality of the loan receivable since initial
recognition, and [ii] the estimated expectation of an
economic loss of the loan receivable under consideration.

Under the general approach, there are two measurement
bases for allowance for ECL:

(i) 12-months ECL, which are the ECL that result from
default events that are possible within 12 months affer
the reporting date and are calculated as the
allowance for ECL on a loan receivable weighted by
the probability of default accumulated over the 12
months affer the reporting date.

(i) lifetime ECL, which are the ECL that result from all
possible default events over the expected life of a
loan receivable and are calculated as the allowance
for ECL on a loan receivable weighted by the
probability of default accumulated over the entire life
of the loan receivable.

The allowance for ECL on loan receivables are prepared
with the help of independent valuer to identify the exposure
of default which equals the sum of the principal and the
accrued/unpaid interest; credit rating of the borrower; a
loss given default rate ("LGD") based on the credit rating
and the time horizon; a probability of default of each loan;
a K factor based on the current forward-ooking economic
scenario; and a discount rate to the date of valuation.

The allowance of ECL is arrived by:

Exposure at Default x LGD x Probobimy of Default x K Factor
x Discount Factor

37. BREABER &)

M EREEE)
(o) EERRGE)
EWE K (&)

PEBRERRERERAR

AEBRBEAMBHRSEAEONR
BTz BE(BRERS [ = ERRE
BBl BRERZEMEEES
BOREBETISHEET : (|BEER

ESMBRARISEEZ 2 B (i
Y T 7 B K T R R R 1
2 (st o

RE—KE REBEHREEBBRIEE
=B mIEEEZE

) TZEAEMEERRE BREZ
HMEHELZAREEER %
FEMHINBEBEMER T @A
WAL - WimE B HR
T-EAMRFTEOMEEEHZ
W ERFEREEBBERER

= o
7t

i) FIERFHAZEHREREES -
BN Y & SR TR HA R 6 A HAFR
NATBRIBEREZBNEMESL
ZEMEERRE - LiREWER
ERAERFEHAMRFEOM
KigEE 2z RREFIEHEEER
BEE -

EWEREREE BB R B
DB GEM B TRE - AR
BIHEERA S EBER RNFEZ
MZEDRR  (ERAZEEFR
REBEEFEEKHBESH ZED
BAR(TENBREX])  BEERE
#IZBRER ¢ ARYE B B AT RE B AR
AEZKAT: MREEEHZRER

o

BEHEEERBEB VIR TIEAE
B -

BRORR xBROBERE x BOBE xK
B+ x BRI EF

187

ZECFR



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

7 & M35 8 R

For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE_FE-__F+-_HA=+—HIFE

37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)
Financial risk factors (Continved)
[a)  Credit risk (Continued)
loan receivables (Continued)

Under HKFRS @, the allowance for ECL of the Group's loan

receivables are recognised in the following three stages:

[} Stage 1 (Performing) includes loan receivables that
have not had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition or that have low credit risk at the
reporting date. For these loan receivables, 12-month
ECL are recognised.

[i)  Stage 2 (Underperforming) includes loan receivables
that have had a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition (unless they have low credit risk at
the reporting date] but that do not have objective
evidence of impairment. For these loan receivables,
lifetime ECL are recognised.

li}  Stage 3 [Non-performing) includes loan receivables
that have objective evidence of impairment at the
reporting date. For these loan receivables, lifetime
ECL are recognised.

To ensure the adequacy of allowance for ECL on loan
receivables, the Group engaged APAC Appraisal and
Consulting Limited, an independent firm of professional
valuers, to conduct a valuation on the allowance for ECL on
loan receivables recognised for each reporting period.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Confinved) 37 BIEEREE
Financial risk factors (Continved) BEEBREE &)
(o)  Credit risk (Confinued) ) ZERRKE)
loan receivables (Continued) JEWEZ ()
The following table provides information about the Group's TEEHEAEAEER "S- —FR
exposure fo credit risk and allowance for ECL on loan —E-—F+—-A=+-—HACEER
receivables at 31 December 2022 and 2021: B EW S S EHE yER =B
BBz ER
2022 —EC-CHE
Accumulated
Gross carrying  allowance for Net carrying
ECL rate amount ECL amounts
AHREE RHEESEL
BRX REAE Rt FREFE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Internal credit quality classification ABEEEZSE TR TET TR
Performing B4 4% 117,544 (5,004) 112,540
Underperforming ) 35% 32,850 (11,339) 21,511
Non-performing TR 100% 170,406 (170,406 -
320,800 (186,749) 134,051
2021 T —%F
Accumulated
Gross carrying  dllowance for Net carrying
ECL rafe amount ECL amounts
THEE REEEERL
BiR% FEARE Rt RE#E
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
Internal credit quality classification  REHEEL &S THT TET FET
Performing [E#% 5% 131,620 (6,923 124,697
Non-performing TR 91% 168,917 (155,042 13,875
300,537 (161,965 138,572
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued) 37. MEEAKRERE &)
Financial risk factors (Continved) BBREEZEZ)
(a)  Creditrisk (Confinued) (o) EERRE)
loan receivables (Continued) JEWEF (42)
Movements in gross balance of loan receivables: FEU B S aE pp 4SBT

Year ended 31 December 2022
BE_E__F+-A=1+-HLEE

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

E-KR EoRR FZRER @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TET TET TET TET

At T January 2022 R-_ZE-—F—HF—H 131,620 - 168,917 300,537
Increase in loan receivables U B Zag A 16,274 2,500 1,489 20,263
Transfer fo Stage 2 EREE MR (30,350) 30,350 - -
At 31 December 2022 R-E-—F#+-fF=1—H 117,544 32,850 170,406 320,800

Year ended 31 December 2021
BE-E--F+-A=+-HIEE

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

FFEER FREER FEE @it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FET FET FET

At T January 2021 R-ZE-—F—H—H 185,237 - Q7,236 282473
Increase/ (decrease] in [EUEZSEN, GRD)

loan receivables 42,885 - (24,821) 18,064

Transfer fo Stage 3 BYEE=RE (96,502 - 06,502 -

At 31 December 2021 R_E-—F+-A=1+—H 131,620 - 168,91/ 300,537
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

37. BREABER &)
BEEBREE 2

a)  Credit risk (Continued) @) EERRE)
Lloan receivables (Continued) JEWE 2 (4)
Movements in allowance for ECL on loan receivables: FEU B Y FEH = B B RS E)

Year ended 31 December 2022
BE-E-—F+-A=1+-HLZFE

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total

KRR ERR KRR @t

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET THET THET THET

At T January 2022 R-E-—F—H—H 6,923 - 155,042 161,965
Transfer to Stage 2 BBEE-RE (1.972) 1,972 - -
Allowance for ECLrecognised ~ ERRBHEEEERE 53 9,367 15,364 24,784
At 31 December 2022 NZEZZF+TZA=1—H 5,004 11,339 170,406 186,749

Year ended 31 December 2021
BE-Z--F+-A=+-HItFE

Stage | Stage 2 Stage 3 Tofal

15 FIRE FZRE Bar

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

TEx TET TET TEL

At T January 2021 R-ZFE-_—4%—f—H 21,869 - 37,490 59,359

Transfer to Stage 3 BYEE-RER (11,543 - 11,543 -
Allowance for ECL (BBE),/ ERIBHEE

[reversed| /recognised EEEE (3,403) - 106,009 102,606

At 31 December 2021 RZB-_—F+-A=+—H 6,923 - 155,042 161,965

At 31 December 2022, the amounts of loan receivables RZEBE-ZZF+-A=+—H &K

(before accumulated allowance for ECL) from the largest EPRAREFR ZRWEE (RN

customer and the five largest customers in aggregate EHEEBBERAE®) DA A

amounted to HK$67,865,000 (2021: HK$67,865,000) ANTFEtENTAERTAEL(ZZ2=—

and HK$253,571,000 (2021: HK$251,342,000], F:XFTEEBNATARERATFAT) X

ZEAEF=ERTEE—THEL(ZE
T ZEAFT—E=THEE=T
BIL) e RZEZZF+A=+—
B Eo55ERKERCGRINBRIERE
EBEZFEE) cAE 2=+ — (=
T-—F @Hhz_t=Z)RBEHZ
tF N ZE=—F - 5Hz/\+H) -

respectively. They accounted for 21% (2021: 23%) and
79% [2021: 84%) respectively of the loan receivables
(before accumulated allowance for ECL) as at 31 December

2022.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Confinved) 37 HREREE &)

Financial risk factors (Continved) B i R B & (42)
(a)  Credit risk (Continued) o) EERRE)
loan receivables (Continued) JEWE ) (&)

Maijor terms of the outstanding loans as at 31 December

2022 and 2021 are as follows:

RZEZ—_FR-_ZE-_—F+=A
T HZAREBEBEERZEEEZM

T
Loan and Loan and
interest interest
receivables Allowance for receivables
[before ECL (after
accumulated  Accumulated reversed/  accumulated
cllowance for  allowance for ~ (recognised) for  allowance for Collateral
ECL) as ot EClasat  the year ended ECL) as ot and/or
31 December 1Jonvary 31 December 31 December Interest rate guarantee
2022 2022 2022 2022 per annum obfained  Maturing on Notes
BE-B-Cf
R-B=ZF TZA=t-B RZB-Zf
t=A=+-8 tFEZ t-A=1-H
ZEWEHRR WZB-CF BBE/ ZEWEHR
S (RHMk -B-B2 (B%R) ANk
BHFERE ROGEFR REGEER REGERE EREERR
i RE) ZitRE ] ESE ) Rz R/3ER HHA liFd
HK$:000 HK$:000 HK$/000 HK$'000
TiEn TiEn TiEx TR
Stage 1 £-[ER
Customer | %P 32,216 4,155 578 28,639 8% No 9 February 2023
f ZE-ZFZANA
Customer K REK 10,261 7 (162) 10,092 8% No 3 June 2023
& —F-=FXA=A
Customer | Pl 5575 (6] (82) 5,487 12% No 17 March 2023
T ZZ-ZF=AftR
Customer M EEM 50,315 (469) 352) 49,494 9% No 5 December 2023
& ZB-=E+-ARA
Customer G ZFG 11,386 (314 93 11,165 10% No 11 May 2023
£ ZE-=Fnft-A
Customer N ZEN 2,634 - (43) 2,591 8% No 11 March 2027
& ZEZ-t¥=At-H
Cusiomer O ZFO 5,157 - (85) 5,072 8% No 10 August 2023
& ZZ--%/\AtH
117,544 4,951 (53) 112,540
Stage 2 EZRE
Cusiomer F REF 32,850 (1,972) 9,367) 21,511 12% No 15 August 2023
& ZZ-=%/\AtaA
Stage 3 E-RR
Customer A ZEA 60,828 60,828) - - 8% No 30 July 2022 I
& CZE-CEHA=TH
Customer £ ZFE 41713 26,349) (15,364) - 13% No 7 November 2022 2
B T _£1-HtA
Cusfomer | 2B 67,865 (67,865) - - 12% Yes 3 October 2020 3
® ZE-TETA=R
170,406 (155,042) (15,364) -
320,800 (161,965) (24,784) 134,051
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

Credit risk (Continued)

(al

Loan receivables [Continued)

Note:

(1)

(2)

(3]

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the loan
receivable from Customer A was reclassified from Stage 1 fo
Stage 3 and was fully provided as the Group was nofified
of a cross-default event of Customer A. Customer A has
failed to pay the accrued interest on the loan since January
2022 and the principal amount in July 2022. The Group
was engaged in ongoing negotiation with him on repayment
arrangements with the view to entering into a binding
sefflement, and the negotiation is still ongoing up to the date
of this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the loan
receivable from Customer E was reclassified from Stage 1 fo
Stage 3 as Customer E failed to settle outstanding interest for
more than six months. Accordingly, accumulated allowance
for ECL of HK$26,349,000 was recognised. Customer E
has actively negotiated settlement plan with the Group
including the obtaining of a corporate guarantee provided
by a PRC company to guarantee Customer E's loan
obligations in January 2022. The major asset of the
guarantor includes a commercial property located in the
PRC. The Group has commenced legal proceedings against
the guarantor in the PRC in November 2022. The Group
and the guarantor then negotiated the ferms of setlement
with the view fo enfering info a mediation agreement. A
court hearing was held on 16 March 2023 to examine the
draft mediation agreement. Under the guidance of the
arbitration court, the mediation agreement was signed on
the day of hearing of 16 March 2023. No judgement was
handed down by the arbifration court up to the date of this
report.

The Group has commenced legal proceedings against
Customer | and the guarantor to recover the outstanding
principal and interests in November 2020. The first court
hearing was held on 12 May 2022 and the court handed
down the judgement in favour of the Group on 31 May
2022. On 7 July 2022, the borrower lodged an appeal
against the judgement and the court has not yet scheduled
the date of the next court hearing as af the date of this
report.

37. K RERERE @)
PABEE®)
o (EERE (&)
FEWEZ ()
Hiat -

1) REBEE—Z-_—+-A=+—H1
FE BEPAZEWRERHE B
BB BE ZREEIEH A
% REAASEERTFAHERR
NEHEH -BFABZZE=-—_F—
BERESNERNESFE MR
T _FLAKRESINALE A&
E R FE R T P E TR -
BRI AR DM 8 - BEA
wEBE - BEEIEETR -

2) HEZZE-_—4F+=-A=1+—HLHF
B BPEZEKREREHE B
EHOBEFRE  RRATFE
KReGBERERZFSBBNEAR -
EHi BEHEEEBE 2 8E
ZFRE-THEEALTELE 7#
R BFEEHRASEEREGERSE
2 BER T - —F— AEEH
—KPABREHRM 2 ARIER - LAE
REFEZERET - ERANTE
BESEMNTFENEEDE - A&
ER T —F+— ARPEEER
AABRERRRT - AEEEERARD
HABRRVIRE - LRI SRR ek o0&
REHSMER - -—=F=F+ A%
17 LERFARBROERE - BiE
ESAPTAIES] - AR IBED R
A —Z-—=F=-A+ HEE-&H
EAREAY - HEERTES X
R

3) AEEER-_Z-_TEFE+—AHEF
IRERARBEAEFA UBFHE
REBASBRAE - F—EER
MR- —FFA+-_HET A
[ — o = Ry b =K (e
NEBBFROHER - R - —F+
A8 {ERAEZHREL LR
MEEARSE BH AR ERLTHET
—IRERERFBBE -
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

37. EABER®)

Financial risk factors (Continved) BERBEEZ)
[a)  Credit risk (Continued) () =ERR (&)
loan receivables (Continued) TEUE 2 (48)
loan and loan and
interest inferest
receivables Allowance for receivables
before ECL [after
accumulated Accumulated  frecognised]/ accumulated
allowance for  allowance for reversed for — allowance for Collateral
ECl) s o EClasat  the year ended ECl s af and/or
31 December IJonary 31 December 31 December Inferest rate quarantee
2021 2021 2021 2021 per annum obiained  Mauring on
HE 2 _-%
RZE_-F TZR=+-B RIB-_-f£
+-F=t+-H tEE7 +ZA=1-A
JEUWETR  RIE-Z-F (BER)/ ZEUETR
FE (RI0k —A—Bz BER  FB(ENE
BHEERE BHEEFRE FOEEFE  REEEEE BRGHEAR
254E) iR B ZirifE) Efl% R/GER FER
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL FAL
Stage 1 £-KR
Customer | RE| 32,181 - (4,159 28,026 8% No 9 February 2023
& ZZCZECAAR
Customer K TEK 4125 - 7] 4118 8% No 3 March 2022
& —B--%=A=H
Customer L ZEL 3,014 - 6) 3,008 12% No 17 March 2022
& ZZ--F-ATtAH
Cusfomer M ZEM 50,245 - 469 49776 % No 5 December 2023
& “E--Ff-FER
Cusfomer F XFF 30,350 (1,422) (550] 28,378 12% No 15 August 2023
& —E-ZF)\AtEA
Customer G ZEG 11705 (544) 230 11,397 10% No 11 May 2022
& —Z--FnAt-H
Three ex-customers —ZHEF - (8,360) 8,360 -
131,620 (10,326 3,403 124,697
Stage 3 £ZRAB
Cusfomer A REA 60,828 (6,030) 54,798) - 8% No 30 July 2022
& ZEZZFtA=1H
Cusfomer £ XFE 40,224 5,513) 120,836 13,875 13% No 7 November 2022
& “B_F+-AtH
Cusfomer | RE| 67 865 (37,490) 130,375) - 12% Yes 3 October 2020
R ZZZEETA=H
168,917 49,033) (106,000) 13,875
300,537 59,359) (102,600) 138,572
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(al

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)
Bank balances

The Group's exposure to credit risk arising from bank
balances is limited because the counterparties are high-
credit-quality banks and 12m ECL on bank balances is
considered fo be insignificant, for which the Group
considers to have low credit risk.

Liquidity risk

Individual operating entities within the Group are
responsible for their own cash management, including the
shortterm investment of cash surpluses and the raising of
loans to cover expected cash demands, subject to approval
by the Company’s board when the borrowings exceed
cerfain predetermined levels of authority. The Group
maintains availability of funding through an adequate
amount of available credit facilities. The directors aim to
maintain flexibility in funding by keeping credit lines
available.

The following table details the remaining contractual
maturifies af the end of reporting period of the Group's non-
derivative financial liabilities, which are based on
contractual undiscounted cash flows (including interest
payments computed using confractual rafes) and the earliest
date the Group can be required to pay. Specifically, other
loan with @ repayment on demand clause are included in
the earliest time band regardless of the probability of the
counterparty choosing fo exercise their rights. The maturity
dates for other non-derivative financial liabilities are based
on the agreed repayment dates.

37. BREABER &)

Bt m bR R & (&)

(o) EERRGE)
RITHER
MRRSHFAREELRZRT

(b)

PRSI ER AR

AEERBEGERREE  MAK
BRBTEBEREERRAR -
miRTTAESR 2+ — B A TR EEE1E
BWRAMARE -

nBE R

AEEANBYILEERARRAZE
2EE  ERSREAMBEFEHRE

EEEFTURNERZRSHZR(E
fEERBEE TIHLEE 2 BREKF
RBAESARRESSHE) - AKH
BRFTMZAUPAEERERRAE
EHEL EFEERERETPA
EE #RESZTAML -

TRANANEETESRABNR
THRZHBAHOHBMR - HRESLH
ATRALRE (BRERAOFEFE
FBA ) R S B A i B R A 3R 2 B
FHHEFE - ARME  HHERER
BE R B EFE AR R EE -
MAwmE F I EL A& EITEEE
Mo HMETESRBEZRIMAT
RBHEEKAH -
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continved) 37. IERERE &)
Financial risk factors (Continved) BEEBEE &)
(b]  Liquidity risk (Continued) b) wHEERR(E)
Total More than Mo than
Weighted contractual Within 1 year but 2 years
average  Carrying undiscounfed 1 year or less than ~ but less than
inferest rate amount  cash flow  on demand 2 years 5 years

BRRRAH -FR  BB-F BEmF

MEFIFE REE REREAE SEER EORWE EOREE

2022 —g-Cf %  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
% TiEn TRL TER TR TR

Trade and other payables and B E 583 Kk 2 4 fE

accrued charges HENREER = 35,965 35,965 35,965 - -
lease liabilities MEBE 9 7,595 8,172 5,200 2,650 322
Borrowings TE 10 31,264 31,264 31,264 - -
Convertible loan notes MRREDZERE 8 71,043 80,976 4,338 76,638 =
145,867 156,377 76,767 79,288 322

Tofal More than ~ More than

Weighted confraciual Within 1 year but 2 years

average Camrying  undiscounted 1 year or less than ~ but less than

interest rafe omount  cashflow  on demand 2 years 5 years

AR —FR  BE-F  BBEmF

il SSERES REE RenEEE  AEEX BIRRF  EIRRF

2021 —E=-F % HKF000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HKEO00  HK$'000

% TR TET TET TET TET

Trode and other payables and &2 5 8R 5 & E A fE

accrued charges T RESER - 26,610 26,610 26,610 - -
Lease liabilities HEEE 7 6,523 6,796 5,377 1,419 -
Borrowings BN 10 12,036 12,036 12,036 - -
Convertible loan notes MHRERZER 6 72,300 75,663 75,663 - -
17469 121,005 119686 1419 -
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(b)

Liquidity risk (Continued)

Other loan with a repayable on demand clause is included
in the “within 1 year or on demand” time band in the above
maturity analysis. At 31 December 2022, the aggregate
undiscounted cash flows of other loan amounted to
HK$18,706,000. Taking into account the Group's
financial position, the directors do not believe that it is
probable that the counterparty will exercise its discretionary
rights to demand immediate repayment. The directors
believe that other loan will be repaid after the end of the
reporting period in accordance with the scheduled
repayment dates set out in the loan agreement, defails of
which are set out in the table below:

Maturity analysis — Borrowing with a repayable on
demand clause based on scheduled repayments

37. BREABER &)

M EREEE)
b) RBERR(E)

BEREREERINEME KT A
PR EA ST [ —FRHEERK]
NeRZE__F+=—A=+—H"
EMmERNATHEREREA LA
—FNANBETEZATEL KR
REBEMBBRN EEREEFH
181718 E B 15 4 2 SR BD B 8 XA AT B
MRK-BEERE HWERBENR
HSHRBRIZER HZEH VBT EER
AEMER @ FFBHESIN T -

FMELN — RERTERBIAR
ZRERFFINEER

Total More than  More than

Weighted contractual Within -~ 1 year but 2 years

average  Carrying undiscounfed 1 year or less than ~ but less than

inferest rate amount  cash flow  on demand 2 years 5 years

EYER i) -FR  BB-F BEmF

ik SR 2F IS REE REREAE JEER EIRRE EIREEF

2022 b St - %  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK§'000  HK$'000  HK§'000

% TRT TRT TRT TER TER

Other loan HEEH 10 15,792 18,706 1,477 17,229 -
REBERFERARAT T —FR 197
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(c)

(d)

198

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate risk in
relation to lease liabilities, fixed-rate borrowings and liability
component of convertible loan notes. The Group is also
exposed fo cash flow inferest rate risk in relafion fo variable
rates bank balances and borrowing. The Group's cash flow
inferest rate risk is concentrated on fluctuation of Hong Kong
Prime Rate arising from its HK$ denominated borrowing.

The Group currently does not have an inferest rate hedging
policy. It manages ifs interest rate risk by closely monitoring
the interest rate movements and where considered
appropriate using financial instruments to hedge the interest
rate risk.

Sensitivity analysis

The sensifivity analyses below have been defermined based
on the exposure to interest rates at the end of the reporting
period. The analysis is prepared assuming the financial
instruments outstanding at the end of the reporting period
were outstanding for the whole year. A 50 basis point
increase or decrease in variablerate borrowing represents
management’s assessment of the reasonably possible
change in interest rates. Bank balances are excluded from
sensifivity analysis as the management considers that the
exposure of cash flow inferest rate risk arising from variable-
rate bank balances is insignificant.

At 31 December 2022, if inferest rates of the borrowing
had been 50 basis points higher/lower, with all other
variables remain constant, the Group's loss and fotal
comprehensive expense for the year ended 31 December

2022 would have increased,/decreased by HK$66,000.

Foreign exchange risk

The Group operates in Hong Kong and the PRC with
majority of the transactions being seffled in HK$, United
States dollars ("USD") and Renminbi {"RMB”]. Foreign
exchange risk arises from future commercial transactions,
recognised assets and liabilities, which are denominated in
a currency that is not the functional currency of the Group.

China Healthwise Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2022

37. EABER®)

M EREEE)
() HMEER

(d)

AEEAAEABHEHEAR  TEME
ERABMBERRERERLD 22F
EFRER AEETBERERRA
BHNRBITHEBREEZRS R R
Bk ARENRSRMEARER
SHENETHEZRERMELEZR
BREEN K -

AL B AT A R PR o AR
EZBERT AT AL A XE
AR EREN KRR

BRE DT
TOBURED T R RIFRE HIR 2 F
KERIETE - 2o MTEBRRERS S
RAARFAZEMIEERBEFEANH
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Confinved) 37 BIEERREE )

Financial risk factors (Continved) BEEBREE &)
(d)  Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (d)  SNERRER (&)
The following table defails the Group's exposure at the end TR A EBRBLE IR R G FESF
of reporting period to currency risk arising from forecast TEH AR TR AL S AN
fransactions or recognised assefs or liabilities denominated BB O EREES B EZINE
in a currency other than the functional currency of the entity JElfa -
to which they relate:
2022 2021
—E-CF —E-—F
RMB Us$ RMB Us$
ARE EYH ARE e
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TEx TET THER
Assets EE 92 5 13 5
Liabilifies afE (330) - (1,148 -
(238] 5 (1,135) 5

The Company is mainly exposed to the foreign exchange
risk of RMB against HK$. Since HK$ is pegged to USD, the
Company does not expect any significant movement in
HK$/USD exchange rate and this is excluded from the
sensifivity analysis below. Management will monitor foreign
exchange exposure fo mitigate the foreign exchange risk.

The Company currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy in respect of assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currency. The Company will monitor
its foreign currency exposure closely and will consider
hedging significant foreign currency exposure should the
need arise.

ARBEBAEARE L ETTZIMNE
Bz o AR ITTEETHE - AQE
EEET ETEEXTEEEREKR
28 I TEEETXZHRESD
A o B EE FE A% BS 2% HME LR DA R B S
e

ARBEALESEINEEERAR
ZINEEHBER - NRARBBIER
HOMER g - WA EEE E S
ERINERR
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Confinued 37 BERBEE
Financial risk factors (Continued) BERBEEZ)
(d)  Foreign exchange risk (Continued) (d)  SNERER (&)
The following table indicates the approximate change in the TERBARNER Y KEEEIBEERN
Group's loss for the year in response fo reasonably possible =@ NI E Hk G B AR > SNEE
changes in the foreign exchange rates to which the Group RATRATAL B B 2| B > L)) -

has significant exposure atf the end of reporting period.

2022 2021

—E-CF —E-—F
Increase/ Increase/ Increase/ Increase/
(decrease) (decrease) [decrease] (decrease]
in foreign in loss for in foreign in loss
exchange rates the year  exchange rafes for the year
HNEER TEEFR SMNEER rERER
E#/(F&) 2,/ (H) £/ (FE) m/(Rd)
HK$'000 HK$'000
FER FEL
RMB AR 5% 12 5% 57
(5%) (12) (5%) (57)
The sensitivity analysis has been defermined assuming that FREEDTVA T BEMETE : 4b
the change in foreign exchange rates had occurred at the EEXSHONB/EHAELE . D
end of reporting period and had been applied to each of ERASEEERE : MEBEES I
the group entities’ foreign currency denominated monetary MEHEEKIER  RATA M EEY

items in existence at that date, and that all other variables, R TE o

remain constant.
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37. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Financial risk factors (Continved)

(e]

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed fo equity price risk arising from listed
equity securities in Hong Kong classified as financial assets
at FVTPL.

The Group manages its equity price risk by regularly
moniforing equity portfolio to address any portfolio issues
prompily and spreading price risk exposure by investing o
number of listed equity securities.

The sensitivity analysis has been determined based on the
exposure to equity price risk at the reporting date. As at 31
December 2022, if the prices of the listed equity securities
in Hong Kong with quoted market price held by the Group
had been 15% (2021: 15%) higher/lower, with all other
variables remain constant, the Group's loss for the year
would have decreased/increased by HK$8,426,000
(2021: HK$8,536,000).

38. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities as recognised at 31 December 2022 and 2021 are

37. BREABER &)

M EREEE)
(e] BAERRR

AEEEAZE 2 RAERRARBE DR
REBERAFEAANBRZEREEZE
BLEMBRAESFEL

AEEBBEHERRAES - A&
REEMAAHE  UBEBREZHE
EHBRABES D BMERER - EAE
BHEBRAERRER -

BREESWERERE AR ZBAE
BRARMEE R-ZTE-_—_F+=A
—+—H MAEEMRFEEAETS®R
B2EALTMRABESZEERER T
KA ZtHEH(ZE-_—F B 5H 2
+hH) EMBHEMESHFTE 2B
T AEEZFRNEEBERLD
MNEN+—EAFTAE (T =—
FONBRET=ZEATERL) -

38. ERE sz MEERSHME
BEHE
AEBR_E-_—_FR - - —F+=A
—t—HERZERmEERERBEZER

categorised as follows: BRI DFEINT
2022 2021
—E-CF —T-—F
HK$'000 HK$'000
TExT FET
Financial assets EREE
Financial assets at amortised cost HEEK AT EZ e MEE
lincluding cash and cash equivalents) (BB MRESEEY) 162,419 188,972
Financial assets at FVTPL BAFEFABRZZEREE 57,313 59,304
219,732 248,276
Financial liabilities sRas
Financial liabilities at amortised cost DAt E2 S AaE 145,867 117,469
PEELREERERAT —E-—FR 201
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38. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (Continued)

Fair value of the Group's financial instruments that are
measured at fair value on a recurring basis

The following table provides an analysis of financial instruments

carried af fair value by level of fair value hierarchy:

level 1:

Quoted prices [unadjusted) in active markets for

identical assets or liabilities;

level 2:

Inputs other than quoted prices included within

level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability,

either directly (i.e. as prices) or indirectly [i.e.

derived from prices); and

level 3:

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on

observable market dafa (unobservable inputs).

A

38. EHE sz eRMEERERME
BEBE @

FEEZRAVPELENFEZEMIA

AFE

TREFIARTFEIEREz @B TARATE

BRZDH

F—H: HRABEXBBENEEMSHZ
wECREHE)

F_H: BRE-RABEREIAEER
BEAEX(BIER) S HE (B
REERBEMASIHE &

F=M: REEXABZAABEDTSH
E(TABESE) 2 8U& -

2022
—E__F
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—& 1 F=/ #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTHET THEx FTHEx THEx
Financial assets at FVTPL NS IER PN Fad
TREE
— listed equity securities - FIRAES 56,170 - - 56,170
— unlisted equity securifies — FLEMBRAES = = 1,143 1,143
56,170 - 1,143 57,313
2021
—E-—F
level 1 level 2 level 3 Tofal
£/ EM E=R st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FET FAT
Financial assets af FVTPL PENTES A B% Y
TREE
— listed equity securifies — FIRAES 56,904 - - 56,904
— unlisted equity securities — JEETRAES - - 2,400 2,400
56,904 - 2,400 59,304
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38. SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND 38. ERE s zEeREERSRE
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (Continved) BHE )
Fair value of the Group's financial instruments that are AEBRATFEKLEUHEZSRMIE
measured at fair value on a recurring basis (Continued) 2R D)
In estimating the fair value of financial instruments, the Group uses EEHERTEY ANFER  AEEEa(E
market observable data to the extent it is availoble. VWhere Level IS AR eiE o (YEEMES —HE
1 inputs are not available, the Group engages independent g NEBeRIE Y S ERGEMETE
qualified valuers to perform the valuation. The Group work closely - NEBEBTAEBREEMEZAE -
with the independent qualified valuers fo establish the appropriate PAREE S 7 (S E R R AME -
valuation techniques and inputs.
Fair values of listed equity securities have been defermined by AL Y ATE R EHARE K
reference fo their quoted market closing prices at the end of the R TRBRE T -
reporting period.
Fair value of unlisted equity securities is determined based on EFTRAELE Y A EABE SRR Y
valuation using assetbased approach. Fair value of individual HEEET - Bt RRE AT ZAREBRE
business assefs less liabilities of the investment company was ERBE ATENEYH AE @5@&&&
considered to arrive the fair value of the Group's equity inferests in ARG AE Y A TE o B ABAIIEERN
the investee company. The significant input is the net asset value Zégﬁrﬁ BESRERIE PR A 3‘:}2
of the investee company. The net asset value is positively ANE(EHERKIEH, o
correlated to the fair value measurement of the unlisted equity
securifies.
The following table presents the changes in fair value of financial TEZ2NDEAATEERE=H T S/0E
assefs which are classified under Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy: ENT EEE
HK$'000
THBTT
At 1 January 2021 RZE-Z—F—HF—H 2,611
Fair value loss on financial assefs at FVTPL BRATEFABGZZCREEZ N FEEBRE (211)
At 31 December 2021 and 1 January 2022 R-E-—F+-_A=+—H
MZFE-Z—_F—H—H 2,400
Fair value loss on financial assets at FVTPL BRATEFABSZ CREEZ N FEEBE (1,257)
At 31 December 2022 R-E-_—_F+-_A=+—H 1,143
During the year ended 31 December 2022 and 2021, there was HE—_T-—_FR-ZT-—F+=-A=+—

no transfer between Llevel 1 and 2, or fransfer info or out of Level

3.

HER

AR TFEF—REF-_HZAZE
B BAFEEARERE=RZ2BER -

SRFEEBRERAT —T-—FH 203
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For the year ended 31 December 2022 #ZE_FE-__F+-_HA=+—HIFE

38.

39.

204

SUMMARY OF FINANCIAL ASSETS AND
FINANCIAL LIABILITIES BY CATEGORY (Continued)

Fair value of the Group's financial assets and financial
liabilities that are not measured at fair value on a
recurring basis

The carrying amounts of the Group's financial instruments
carried at amortised cost were not materially different from their
fair values at 31 December 2022 and 2021, except for the
convertible loan notes, which had a carrying amount and fair
value of HK$71,043,000 (2021: HK$72,000,000) and
HK$68,694,000 (2021: HK$72,239,000) at 31 December
2022 respectively.

The fair value measurement of the convertible loan notes was
classified under level 3 of the fair value hierarchy. The fair value
of the convertible loan notes was determined based on a
discounted cash flow and binomial opfion price model.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved and

authorised for issue by the board of directors on 28 March 2023.

China Healthwise Holdings Limited ~ Annual Report 2022
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39.

RERNESsZERMEERSREAE
BEBE @

rEECcTHEERTHEBBEZATVE
WHARFEEERTE

RZEZZFR=ZF_—F+A=4—
B NEEZREERAIRE R TAE R
AEEENFETESKAER U BRE
REERIN ER T - —F+-A=+—
AZEEERATFESR AT —BENE
=FET(ZE—F:LF-BEEEL)X
ATNABEATABETFAEL(ZE=—%F:
+tF-_EHE-+=BATET)

ABREERRRZAFEAESERATE

BRE=L - MR EREEREZ X HETR
BERBRRSRER _AANREERAETE -

mEMBRR AR

BAEMBHREN_Z_=F=A=+/\BE
EEeERRETE -



CHINA HEALTHWISE HOLDINGS LIMITED
TEERERZERERAF

Unit 1209, Shun Tak Centre, West Tower,
168-200 Connaught Road Central, Hong Kong
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Tel: (852) 2268 8248  Fax: (852) 2548 5575
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